
  www.greenwoodmn.com

 

 

 
 

 

AGENDA 
Greenwood City Council Meeting 
 

Wednesday, June 1, 2016 
20225 Cottagewood Road, Deephaven, MN 55331  
 
The public is invited to speak when items come up on the agenda (comments are limited to 3 minutes).  
The public may speak regarding other items during Matters from the Floor (see below).  
 
7:00pm 1. CALL TO ORDER  |  ROLL CALL  |  APPROVE MEETING AGENDA 
 
7:00pm 2.   CONSENT AGENDA 

Consent Agenda items are considered to be routine and are approved through one motion with no discussion by the city council. 
Council members may remove any Consent Agenda item for discussion and separate consideration under Other Business. 
 

A. Approve: 04-28-16 Local Board of Appeal & Equalization Meeting Reconvene Minutes 
B. Approve: 05-04-16 City Council Worksession Minutes 
C. Approve: 05-04-16 City Council Meeting Minutes 
D. Approve: 05-18-16 City Council / Planning Commission Joint Worksession &  
 City Council Worksession Minutes 
E. Approve: April Cash Summary Report 
F. Approve: April Certificates of Deposit Report 
G. Approve: May Verifieds, Check Register, Electronic Fund Transfers 
H. Approve: June Payroll Register 
I. Approve: Res 21-16 Appointing Election Judges and Absentee Ballot Board 
J. Approve: Res 22-16 Authorizing Hennepin County for Central Counting Location 

 
7:02pm 3.   MATTERS FROM THE FLOOR 

This is an opportunity for the public to address the council regarding matters not on the agenda. Comments are limited to 3 
minutes. Typically, the council will not take action on items presented at this time but will refer items to staff for review, action, 
and / or recommendation for future council action.  

 
7:05pm 4.   PRESENTATIONS, REPORTS, GUESTS, AND ANNOUNCEMENTS 

A. City Engineer Dave Martini: 2016 Street Improvement Bid, County Aid Application, I/I Smoke 
Test Report, St. Alban's Bay Road Drainage  

B. Announcement: July 4th Parade, Meet at Greenwood Park (Covington & Fairview) at 9:45am 
 

7:30pm 5.   PUBLIC HEARINGS 
A. Public Hearing: Conduit Financing for Main Street School of Performing Arts  

  
7:35pm 6.   PLANNING & ZONING ITEMS 

A. 2nd Reading: Ord 255, Regarding Tree Preservation Plans  
Res 23-16 Summary of Ord 255 for Publication 

B. Consider: Res 24-16, Variance Findings, 20870 St. Alban's Green 
 
7:45pm 7.   UNFINISHED BUSINESS 

A. None 
 
7:45pm 8.   NEW BUSINESS 

A. Consider: Res 25-16, Authorizing Issuance and Sale of Charter School Lease Revenue Bonds 
for Main Street School of Performing Arts  

B. Discuss: Potential Conduit Financing for Eagle Ridge Academy  
C. Consider: 2017-2020 Assessment Contract 
D. Consider: Requests Regarding the Fire Lane Between 5120 & 5130 Meadville Street   
E. Consider: 2016 Proposals for Weed Clean Up at St. Alban's Bay Docks 
F. Consider: 2017 Lake Minnetonka Conservation District Budget 
G. Consider: Res 26-16, 2017-2020 Deephaven-Greenwood Service Contract 

 
8:45pm 9.   OTHER BUSINESS 

A. None   
 

9:00pm 10.  COUNCIL REPORTS 
A. Cook: Planning Commission, Parks, Sewer Study, St. Alban’s Bay Bridge, Traffic Committee  
B. Fletcher: Lake Minnetonka Communications Commission, Fire 
C. Kind: Police, Administration, Mayors’ Meetings, Website 
D. Quam: Roads & Sewers, Minnetonka Community Education, Traffic Committee 
E. Roy: Lake Minnetonka Conservation District, St. Alban’s Bay Lake Improvement District  

 
9:15pm 11. ADJOURNMENT  
 



  www.greenwoodmn.com

	

	

Agenda Number: 2 

 

 
 
 

Agenda Item: Consent Agenda 
 
Summary: The consent agenda items are considered to be routine and are approved through one motion with no 
discussion by the city council. Council members may remove consent agenda items for further discussion. Removed 
items will be placed under Other Business on the agenda. 
 
The consent agenda items are included in the hard copy of the full council packet and in the electronic version of the 
packet available at www.greenwoodmn.com.  
 
Council Action: Required. Possible motion … 
 

1. I move the council approves the consent agenda items as presented. 
 



04-28-16 Greenwood Local Board of Appeal & Equalization Reconvene Meeting Minutes   |   Page 1 of 2 

MINUTES 
Reconvene Meeting of the Greenwood  
City Council Acting as the Local Board  
of Appeal & Equalization 
 

6pm, Thursday, April 28, 2016 
20225 Cottagewood Road, Deephaven, MN 55331  
 

	
1. RECONVENE MEETING  |  ROLL CALL   

 

 At 6pm, Mayor Kind reconvened the meeting that was recessed on 04-13-16. 
 

Members Present: Mayor Deb Kind; Councilmembers Bill Cook, Tom Fletcher, and Rob Roy 
Members Absent: Councilmember Bob Quam 
Others Present: Assessors Rob Winge and Michael Smerdon 
 

Mayor Kind explained the meeting process: The properties will be reviewed in the order they appear on the roster. 
Assessor Michael Smerdon will make his recommendation. The city council acting as the Local Board of Appeal & 
Equalization (LBAE) take action. If the assessor was not able to view the inside of the home, by law the LBAE cannot 
take action. In order to appeal to the County Board of Appeal & Equalization (CBAE), the property must be listed on 
the LBAE roster. Anyone who contacted Michael or the LBAE between 04-13-16 and 04-28-16 will be added to the 
roster to preserve their right to appeal to the CBAE. 

  
2.   ASSESSORS’ PRESENTATION REGARDING PROPERTIES ON ROSTER 
 

The assessors commented regarding the below appeals as each was discussed.  
 

3.   ROSTER OF PROPERTY VALUATION APPEALS: 
 

A. Fred Badiyan, 21750 Byron Circle Motion by Cook, second by Fletcher to set the  
land value at $803,000 and building value at $319,000 for a total valuation of $1,122,000 (no change).  
Motion passed 3-1, with Mayor Kind voting nay.  

 

B. Paul Boedecker, 21925 Byron Circle Motion by Cook, second by Kind to set the  
land value at $695,000 and building value at $508,000 for a total valuation of $1,203,000.  
Motion passed 3-1 with Councilman Fletcher voting nay. 

 

C. Joe Fronius, 5140 Meadville Street Motion by Roy, second by Cook to set the  
land value at $709,000 and building value at $20,000 for a total valuation of $729,000 since the property owner 
and assessor came to an agreement on this valuation. Motion passed 4-0.  

 

D. John Musgjerd, 5145 Curve Street Motion by Kind, second by Fletcher to set the  
land value at $681,000 and building value at $290,000 for a total valuation of $971,000 (no change) since the 
assessor was not able to view the inside of the home. Motion passed 4-0. 

 

E. Ted Hanna, 4960 Meadville Street Motion by Kind, second by Roy to set the  
land value at $912,000 and building value at $25,000 for a total valuation of $937,000 since the property owner 
and assessor came to an agreement on this valuation. Motion passed 4-0. 

 

F. John Sayer, 20890 Channel Drive Motion by Fletcher, second by Cook to set the  
land value at $361,000 and building value at $244,000 for a total valuation of $605,000 since the property owner 
and assessor came to an agreement on this valuation. Motion passed 4-0. 

 

G. Alan Lizee, 4980 Meadville Street Motion by Fletcher, second by Roy to set the  
land value at $1,555,000 and building value at $20,000 for a total valuation of $1,575,000 (no change).  
Motion passed 3-1 with Mayor Kind voting nay. 

 

H. Keith Stuessi, 5000 Meadville Street Motion by Roy, second by Cook to set the  
land value at $1,330,000 and building value at $25,000 for a total valuation of $1,355,000 (no change). 
Motion passed 3-1 with Mayor Kind voting nay. 

 
 
 



04-28-16 Greenwood Local Board of Appeal & Equalization Reconvene Meeting Minutes   |   Page 2 of 2 

I. Jean Lewry, 21690 Fairview Street Motion by Kind, second by Roy to set the  
land value at $869,000 and building value at $123,000 for a total valuation of $992,000 since the property owner 
and assessor came to an agreement on this valuation. Motion passed 4-0. 

 

J. Gene Dahlin, 21350 Excelsior Blvd Motion by Kind, second by Roy to set the  
land value at $1,205,000 and building value at $111,000 for a total valuation of $1,316,000 (no change) since the 
appeal came after 04-13-16, but to preserve the right to appeal to the CBAE. Motion passed 4-0. 

   
4.   ADJOURNMENT 

 

Motion by Cook to adjourn the meeting at 7pm. Second by Roy. Motion carried 4-0.  

 



05-04-16 Greenwood City Council Worksession Minutes   |   Page 1 of 1 

 
MINUTES 
Greenwood City Council Worksession 
 

Wednesday, May 4, 2016 
20225 Cottagewood Road, Deephaven, MN 55331  
 
 

 
1.  CALL TO ORDER  |  ROLL CALL  |  APPROVE AGENDA 
 
 Mayor Kind called the meeting to order at 6:02pm. 

Members Present: Mayor Kind; Councilmembers Bill Cook, Tom Fletcher, Bob Quam, and Rob Roy  
Others Present: Planning Commission Chair Pat Lucking 

 
Motion by Kind to approve the agenda. Second by Quam. Motion passed 5-0. 

 
2.   DISCUSSION WITH PLANNING COMMISSION CHAIR PAT LUCKING 
 

Councilman Fletcher explained his reasons for asking that the city council discuss the possibility of discontinuing the 
planning commission ... 

 

1. To save money. The city's costs are increasing in other essential areas, so we need to look at ways to save 
money to avoid raising taxes. 

 

2. To streamline the process for applicants and neighbors. It is more user-friendly for applicants and neighbors to 
go directly to the city council vs having to prepare for and attend two meetings. 

 

3. The timing is right. With the recent retirements of planning commissioners Beal and Paeper, the planning 
commission has lost a lot of experience. While Chairman Lucking has 15 years experience, the other 4 
commission members are relatively new and the 2 alternate seats are vacant. 

 
Mayor Kind said she valued the contributions of the planning commission, but was in favor of discontinuing the 
planning commission for financial reasons. 
 
Councilman Quam, Cook, and Roy stated that they did not support discontinuing the planning commission, so the 
remaining discussion focused on cost-saving ideas, recruitment, and training. 
 
The consensus of the group was to ... 

 

1. Save money by holding “housekeeping” items and ordinance reviews until planning commission meetings where 
variance or conditional use permits are on the agenda. This will reduce the number of planning commission 
meetings. 

 

2. Save money by having the city attorney attend future planning commission and city council meetings only on an 
as-needed basis as determined by Chairman Lucking and Mayor Kind. 

 

3. Consider reducing the size of the planning commission to 3 members and 3 alternates (including the city council 
liaison alternate) in the future to make it easier to achieve a quorum. Such a reduction would be achieved by 
attrition.  

 

4. Reach out to potential candidates to apply for the 2 vacant alternate seats on the planning commission. 
 

5. Hold mini-training sessions at the joint city council / planning commission worksession each May. Mayor Kind 
and Councilman Cook will determine an agenda for the upcoming joint worksession on May 18, 2016. 

 
3.   ADJOURNMENT 

 
 Motion by Cook to adjourn the worksession at 6:44pm. Second by Roy. Motion passed 5-0. 



05-04-16 Greenwood City Council Meeting Minutes   |   Page 1 of 3 

MINUTES 
Greenwood City Council Meeting 
 

Wednesday, May 4, 2016 
20225 Cottagewood Road, Deephaven, MN 55331  
 
1. CALL TO ORDER  |  ROLL CALL  |  APPROVE AGENDA 

 

 Mayor Kind called the meeting to order at 7pm. 
Members Present: Mayor Kind; Councilmembers Bill Cook, Tom Fletcher, Bob Quam, Rob Roy 
Staff Members Present: City Attorney Mark Kelly, City Engineer Dave Martini 

 

Motion by Kind to approve the agenda with the addition of “Newman / Larson Easement Agreements” to the 
4B discussion with the city engineer and remove “2D LBAE Reconvene Minutes” from the consent agenda. 
Second by Cook. Motion passed 5-0. 

  
2. CONSENT AGENDA 
 

 Fletcher requested items 2B and 2F be moved to Other Business for further discussion. 
 

A. Approve: 04-06-16 City Council Pre-Board Worksession Minutes 
C. Approve: 04-13-16 Local Board of Appeal & Equalization Meeting Minutes 
D. Approve: 04-28-16 Local Board of Appeal & Equalization Meeting Reconvene Minutes 
E. Approve: March Cash Summary Report 
G. Approve: April Verifieds, Check Register, Electronic Fund Transfers 
H. Approve: May Payroll Register 
I. Approve: Public Access Procedures 
 

Motion by Kind to approve the consent agenda. Second by Quam. Motion passed 5-0. 
A.  

3.   MATTERS FROM THE FLOOR 
 

No one spoke during matters from the floor. 
 

4.   PRESENTATIONS, REPORTS, GUESTS, AND ANNOUNCEMENTS 
 

A. Quarterly Police Update 
 

Chief Meehan shared that the coordinating committee authorized the purchase of 2 scales for load limit 
enforcement and a speed-monitoring device that is able to track speeds without changing driving behavior.  
View full comments at LMCC-TV.org. 
 

B. City Engineer Dave Martini: St. Alban’s Bay Road Stormwater Drainage Mitigation and Newman / Larson 
Easement Agreements 

 

Motion by Cook to authorize the city engineer to include the St. Alban's Bay Road Stormwater Drainage 
Mitigation project in the upcoming street program bid. Second by Roy. Motion passed 5-0. 
 

Motion by Cook to authorize the city engineer to investigate the location of property corners for a cost not 
to exceed $700 and authorize up to $1200 in additional funds to place monuments along the easement 
lines if corners are found. Second by Quam. Motion failed 2-3 with Fletcher, Kind, and Roy voting nay. 
  

C. Announcement: Planning Commission & City Council Annual Joint Worksession, Wed 5/18, Old Log’s Cast & Cru 
Restaurant (following planning commission meeting, approximately 7:30pm) 

 
5.   PUBLIC HEARINGS 
 

A. None 
 
6.   PLANNING & ZONING ITEMS 
 

A. 1st Reading: Ord 255, Construction-Related Tree Cutting and Tree Preservation Plans  
 

Motion by Cook to approve the 1st reading of Fletcher's draft (05-02-16) of ordinance 255 amending tree 
preservation section 1140.80. Second by Roy. Motion passed 5-0. 

 
 



05-04-16 Greenwood City Council Meeting Minutes   |   Page 2 of 3 

7.   UNFINISHED BUSINESS 
 

A. Consider: Installing Greenwood Park Basketball Wall Pads  
 

No council action taken. 
 

B. Consider: Future of Planning Commission 
 

No council action taken. 
 

8. NEW BUSINESS 
 

A. Consider: Res 20-16, Ethics Policy 
 

Motion by Kind to approve resolution 20-16 regarding an ethics policy with revisions as discussed. 
Second by Roy. Motion passed 5-0. 

 
B. Consider: Potential Installation of Duck Crossing Sign on Fairview Street 

 

Motion by Kind to approve the installation of 2 back-to-back duck crossing signs size 24 x 24 to be 
located on the Greenwood Park side of Fairview Street after the city receives $250 in private donations. 
Second by Quam. Motion passed 5-0. 

 
C. 1st Reading: Ord 256, Vehicles “For Sale” at Gas Stations and Garbage Regulations 

 

Motion by Kind to approve the 1st reading of ordinance 256 regarding vehicles “For Sale” and garbage 
regulations with revisions as discussed. Second by Quam. Motion passed 5-0. 
 

Motion by Cook to waive the 2nd reading of ordinance 256. Second by Quam. Motion passed 5-0. 
 

D. Consider: Installing Boulders by Greenwood Market Driveway 
  

No council action taken. 
 

E. Consider: Installing Solar Lights at the St. Alban's Bay City Docks 
 

Motion by Roy to authorize the removal of old lights and the installation of new solar lights at the city 
docks on St. Alban's Bay with the cost to be paid from the Marina Fund. Second by Cook.  
Motion passed 5-0. 

 
F. Consider: July 4th Contribution to Excelsior - South Lake Minnetonka Chamber of Commerce 

 

Motion by Kind to direct the city treasurer to disburse a check in the amount of $1,500 to the Excelsior -  
Lake Minnetonka Chamber of Commerce for the 2016 July 4th Celebration Fund. Second by Cook.  
Motion passed 5-0. 

 
G. Consider: E-Pollbooks Agreement with Hennepin County 

 

Motion by Fletcher to authorize the mayor to sign the E-Pollbooks agreement with Hennepin County and 
direct the city clerk to complete the blanks as appropriate. Second by Cook. Motion passed 5-0. 
 

9.  OTHER BUSINESS 
 

2B. Discuss: 04-06-16 City Council Meeting Minutes 
 

Motion by Fletcher to approve the 04-06-16 minutes with the change regarding the public hearing motion 
being made by Fletcher. Second by Kind. Motion passed 5-0. 

 
2F. Discuss: March Certificates of Deposit Report 
 

Motion by Quam to approve the March Certificates of Deposit Report. Second by Kind. Motion passed 5-0. 
 
10.  COUNCIL REPORTS 
 

A. Cook: Planning Commission, Parks, Sewer Study, St. Alban’s Bay Bridge, Traffic Committee  
 

No council action taken. 
 



05-04-16 Greenwood City Council Meeting Minutes   |   Page 3 of 3 

 
B. Fletcher: Lake Minnetonka Communications Commission, Fire 

 

No council action taken. 
 
C. Kind: Police, Administration, Mayors’ Meetings, Website 

 

Motion by Fletcher to move forward with a public hearing at the June council meeting for Main Street 
School of Performing Arts conduit financing. Second by Cook. Motion passed 5-0. 
 

D. Quam: Roads & Sewers, Minnetonka Community Education, Traffic Committee 
 

No council action taken. 
 
E. Roy: Lake Minnetonka Conservation District, St. Alban’s Bay Lake Improvement District  

 

No council action taken. 
 

11. ADJOURNMENT 
 

Motion by Roy to adjourn the meeting at 9:58pm. Second by Cook. Motion passed 5-0. 
 
This document is intended to meet statutory requirements for city council meeting minutes. A video recording was made of the meeting, 
which provides a verbatim account of what transpired. The video recording is available for viewing on LMCC TV channel 8 for 1 month, 
at www.lmcc-tv.org for 1 year, and on DVD at the city office (permanent archive).  



05-18-16 Greenwood City Council / Planning Commission Annual Joint Worksession & City Council Worksession Minutes   |   Page 1 of 4 

MINUTES 
Greenwood City Council / Planning  
Commission Annual Joint Worksession  
& City Council Worksession 
 

Wednesday, May 18, 2016 
Old Log's Cast & Cru Restaurant, 5175 Meadville Street, Greenwood, MN 55331  
 
 

 

CITY COUNCIL / PLANNING COMMISSION JOINT WORKSESSION 

 
1.  CALL TO ORDER  |  ROLL CALL  |  APPROVE AGENDA 
 

 Mayor Kind called the meeting to order at 7:45pm. 
Members Present: Mayor Kind; Councilmembers Bill Cook, Tom Fletcher, Bob Quam, and Rob Roy; Planning 

Commissioners Pat Lucking, Lake Bechtell, Kristi Conrad, Doug Reeder, Fiona Sayer 
Others Present: City Attorney Mark Kelly, City Zoning Administrator Dale Cooney 

 

Motion by Quam to approve the agenda. Second by Cook. Motion passed 10-0. 
 

2.   DISCUSS OUTCOMES OF CITY COUNCIL WORKSESSION WITH CHAIRMAN LUCKING  
  

A. Cost Saving Plan: Conduct planning commission meetings only when time-sensitive items are on the agenda 
(variances and conditional use permit requests that must comply with the 60-day rule for action), and hold off on 
ordinance reviews, etc. until a meeting takes place. The city attorney will attend meetings on an as-needed 
basis. Chairman Lucking will make the "call" whether or not the city attorney is needed at planning commission 
meetings. Mayor Kind will make the "call" whether or not the city attorney is needed at city council meetings.  

B. Recruitment Plan: City council members and planning commission members are going to personally invite 
people to apply to the planning commission. Articles will be included in upcoming city newsletters. If there is 
interest, an open house will be held. 

C.  Training Plan: Each year mini-training will be held at the annual joint worksession. Registration links for other 
training opportunities will be sent to the city council and planning commission. 

 
3. DISCUSS TREE PRESERVATION ORDINANCE 

 

Technical / Grammar Changes: The Tree Preservation Plan was referred to in subd 2E and Subd 6 of the current 
code. It was felt that one definition would be clearer. Thus, the definition in subd 2E of the new ordinance now refers 
directly to subd 5 of the amended code, which has the detailed requirements for a Tree Preservation Plan in one 
place. The variance requirements now also directly reference the Tree Preservation Plan instead of “tree stock” for 
better clarity. 
 

Substantive Changes: 
• Noxious trees are excluded from being considered in the Tree Preservation Plan and accordingly cannot be used 

to game the system. Cottonwood trees will be added to the list of Noxious Trees in the ordinance. 
• Subd 3A with its requirement for a conditional use permit for tree removals in shore and bluff impact zones will 

be deleted from the ordinance. While the intent of Subd 3A is excellent, it is questionable whether it achieves its 
desired purpose. It can be argued that Subd 3A is currently just an added expense and time-consumer for the 
property owner with little meaningful public benefit in terms of reducing the number of trees in the shore and bluff 
impact zones that are cut down.   

• Subdb 3B (now 3A) Annual Permitted Tree Harvest will be revised to allow the removal of 1 significant tree for 
properties up to 1/4 acre (up to 10,890 sq ft), 2 significant trees for properties between 1/4 acre and 1/2 acre 
(10,890 sq ft to 21,780 sq ft), 3 significant trees for properties between 1/2 acre and 3/4 acre (21,780 sq ft to 
32,670 sq ft), 4 trees for properties between 3/4 acre and 1 acre (32,670 sq ft to 43,560), etc. The intent of this 
change is to give consideration to the wide range of property sizes in Greenwood. 

• Subd 4 Permit to Exceed Annual Tree Harvest is deleted in the new ordinance. It is unclear that this provision 
has ever been used and its most likely potential use is felt to be to game the system. 

• Subd 5 (now 4) Construction Related Tree Cutting now uses diameter inches instead of numbers of trees to 
better protect larger significant trees. 

• Subd 8 (now 7) Type of Replacement Trees is deleted in the new ordinance since it is unclear that this has ever 
been a consideration and to give property owners flexibility to provide for greater tree diversity. 



05-18-16 Greenwood City Council / Planning Commission Annual Joint Worksession & City Council Worksession Minutes   |   Page 2 of 4 

• It was noted that the construction related provisions of the Tree Ordinance have been its key elements as 
Greenwood residents typically have very high appreciation for the benefits of trees on their own properties. 

 

4. MINI-TRAINING 
  

A. Relation of comprehensive plan to zoning. The city council and planning commission discussed the following 
excerpts from League of MN Cities Zoning Guide for Cities ... 

 

• Zoning and planning are not the same thing. Municipal planning is a lengthy process of collecting and 
analyzing economic, social and physical data about a city and organizing this information into a formal set of 
goals and standards for community development. The comprehensive plan is a document that embodies the 
city’s vision for the future, including its aspirations and plans for future development that may not appear for 
many years to come.  

• Once a comprehensive plan is adopted, the city needs a means of attaining its development goals as stated 
in the comprehensive plan. Zoning is one tool for implementing a comprehensive plan. In cities subject to the 
Metropolitan Planning Act, zoning directives must harmonize with and not contradict the city’s 
comprehensive plan.  

• It is important to emphasize that zoning is merely one of the tools available to a city to assist implementing a 
comprehensive plan. A city may also use its subdivision ordinance, building and housing codes, nuisance 
ordinance, capital improvement programs, and official map in conjunction with its zoning ordinance to 
achieve its goal of orderly development.  

 

B. Regulatory takings. The city council and planning commission discussed the following excerpt from League of 
MN Cities Zoning Guide for Cities ... 

 

To be ruled a “regulatory taking,” the zoning regulations must be so severe as to render the property practically 
useless for the purpose for which it is zoned. For example, a regulation that would prohibit a residence in a 
strictly residential zone. In such a case, the court will order the city to pay the affected landowner compensation 
for the land lost to the regulatory taking. 

 

C. Difference between a variance and conditional use permit. The city council and planning commission discussed 
the following excerpts from League of MN Cities Zoning Guide for Cities ... 

 

Variances 
• Variances are an exception to rules laid out in a zoning ordinance. They are permitted departures from strict 

enforcement of the ordinance as applied to a particular piece of property if strict enforcement would cause 
the owner “practical difficulties.” Variances are generally related to physical standards (such as setbacks or 
height limits) and may not be used to allow a use that is prohibited in the particular zoning district. 
Essentially, variances allow the landowner to deviate from the rules that would otherwise apply.  

• Under the statutory practical difficulties standard, a landowner is entitled to a variance if the facts satisfy the 
three-factor test of (1) reasonableness, (2) uniqueness, and (3) essential character.  

• The 2011 law also provides that: “Variances shall only be permitted when they are in harmony with the 
general purposes and intent of the ordinance and when the terms of the variance are consistent with the 
comprehensive plan.”  

• The practical difficulties factors are:  
 

1. The property owner proposes to use the property in a reasonable manner. This factor means that 
the landowner would like to use the property in a particular reasonable way but cannot do so under 
the rules of the ordinance. It does not mean that the land cannot be put to any reasonable use 
whatsoever without the variance.  

2. The landowner’s situation is due to circumstances unique to the property not caused by the 
landowner. The uniqueness generally relates to the physical characteristics of the particular piece of 
property and economic considerations alone cannot create practical difficulties.  

3. The variance, if granted, will not alter the essential character of the locality. This factor generally 
contemplates whether the resulting structure will be out of scale, out of place, or otherwise 
inconsistent with the surrounding area.  

 

• Variances are to be granted only if strict enforcement of a zoning ordinance causes practical difficulties. A 
landowner who purchased land knowing a variance would be necessary in order to make the property 
buildable is not barred from requesting a variance on the grounds the hardship was self-imposed.  

• In granting a variance, the city may attach conditions, but the conditions must be directly related and bear a 
rough proportionality to the impact created by the variance. For example, if the variance reduces side yard 



05-18-16 Greenwood City Council / Planning Commission Annual Joint Worksession & City Council Worksession Minutes   |   Page 3 of 4 

setbacks, it may be reasonable to impose a condition of additional screening or landscaping to camouflage 
the structure built within the normal setback.  

• An applicant for a variance is not entitled to a variance merely because similar variances were granted in the 
past, although in granting variances, the city ought to be cautious about establishing precedent.  
 

Conditional use permits  
• The concept of a conditional use permit (CUP) was created to give cities more flexibility in zoning ordinance 

administration. Generally, conditional uses are uses that are often too problematic to be permitted uses as of 
right in a district. However, since the use is still generally favorable or necessary, outright prohibition of the 
use is generally not practical or desired. A classic example of such a mixed positive / negative use is a gas 
station in a residential area. Conditional uses seek to strike a middle ground between outright, unchecked 
permissive establishment and complete prohibition. Conditional uses are uses that will be allowed if certain 
conditions (that minimize the problematic features of the use) are met.  

• Cities must specify conditional uses in a city ordinance. Generally, a list of conditional uses will be found 
alongside the permitted uses in a city ordinance. The ordinance must also establish what conditions or 
standards must be met to allow the conditional use. Ordinances that fail to establish standards for granting 
the listed conditional uses are problematic and potentially invalid.  

• The city must grant the CUP if the applicant satisfies all the conditions established in the ordinance.  
• CUPs are considered property interests that run with the land – that is, they pass from seller to buyer when 

the land is sold or transferred.  
• Once issued, a CUP’s conditions cannot be unilaterally altered by the city, absent a violation of the CUP 

itself.  
 

Neighborhood opposition  
• Certain zoning applications may generate vocal public opposition. Frequently, cities struggle with handling 

vocal neighborhood opposition in their findings of fact. However, general statements of public opposition 
should not be a finding of fact listed as a basis for denying a zoning application. Nor should the official record 
intimate that public opposition is the underlying basis for the city’s findings of fact. If a zoning application 
meets the requirements of the ordinance, it must be granted, despite the disapproval of the neighbors.  

• However, this does not mean that all statements of the public must be disregarded. A significant part of the 
zoning process is generally the public hearing mandated by the Municipal Planning Act. The Municipal 
Planning Act requires that all parties interested in an application, including the applicant and neighbors, be 
granted an opportunity to speak and present their views on the application. While general statements of 
opposition may not be used as a finding of fact, statements made by the public that are concrete and factual 
relating to the public welfare are acceptable findings. 

 

D. Massing ordinance perspective. Councilman Fletcher explained the intent of the massing ordinance was to 
control the size of homes in relation to the lot size. Since the massing ordinance was approved, there has not 
been a negative affect on property values. 

 

E. Hardcover ordinance perspective. Planning Commission Chairman Lucking explained that historically hardcover 
was one of the key zoning regulations that limited house sizes on a lots. Now that the city has a massing 
ordinance, we could consider relaxing hardcover regulations for smaller lots while still complying with state 
regulations regarding shoreland protection. 

 

F. Setback requirements perspective. Councilman Cook explained that setbacks from property lines have 
historically been used as a tool to reduce the impact of construction on neighboring properties. He suggested 
that the city could reduce the number of zoning districts to simplify the setback requirements in the city and 
possibly have graduated setbacks based on lot size. 

 

G. LMCD / DNR / MCWD / City / County / State ... “Who’s on first?” This topic was not discussed due to time 
constraints. 

 
5. OPEN DISCUSSION 
  

 A. Planning commission expectations. This topic was not discussed due to time constraints. 
B. An opportunity for planning commission and city council members to share thoughts or concerns. This topic was 

not discussed due to time constraints. 
     
6.   ADJOURNMENT 
 

Motion by Cook to adjourn the joint worksession at 9:45pm. Second by Bechtell. Motion passed 10-0. 
 



05-18-16 Greenwood City Council / Planning Commission Annual Joint Worksession & City Council Worksession Minutes   |   Page 4 of 4 

CITY COUNCIL WORKSESSION  
 

1.   CALL TO ORDER  |  ROLL CALL  |  APPROVE AGENDA 
 
 Mayor Kind called the meeting to order at 9:45pm. 

Members Present: Mayor Kind; Councilmembers Bill Cook, Tom Fletcher, Bob Quam, and Rob Roy 
Others Present: None 

 

Motion by Quam to approve the agenda. Second by Cook. Motion passed 5-0. 
 
2.   DISCUSS DEEPHAVEN SERVICES CONTRACT 
 

 The council discussed the Deephaven contract that will be placed on the June 1, 2016 city council agenda for 
approval. 

 
3.   ADJOURNMENT 
 

  Motion by Quam to adjourn the worksession at 9:57pm. Second by Roy. Motion passed 5-0. 



`

Variance with Variance with 
Month 2015 2016 Prior Month Prior Year
January $1,100,038 $1,103,197 -$59,352 $3,159
February $1,125,995 $1,128,257 $25,060 $2,262
March $1,105,199 $1,074,726 -$53,531 -$30,473
April $1,041,296 $1,003,064 -$71,662 -$38,232
May $1,025,022 $0 -$1,003,064 -$1,025,022
June $986,189 $0 $0 -$986,189
July $1,234,400 $0 $0 -$1,234,400
August $1,207,294 $0 $0 -$1,207,294
September $1,061,011 $0 $0 -$1,061,011
October $845,408 $0 $0 -$845,408
November $831,317 $0 $0 -$831,317
December $1,162,549 $0 $0 -$1,162,549

Bridgewater Bank Money Market $375,021
Bridgewater Bank Checking $29,247
Beacon Bank CD $408,325
Beacon Bank Money Market $186,028
Beacon Bank Checking $4,443

$1,003,064
ALLOCATION BY FUND
General Fund $185,292
Special Project Fund $0
General Fund Designated for Parks $22,685
Bridge Capital Project Fund $147,173
Road Improvement Fund $183,316
Stormwater Fund $4,756
Sewer Enterprise Fund $374,622
Marina Enterprise Fund $85,220

$1,003,064

$0 

$200,000 

$400,000 

$600,000 

$800,000 

$1,000,000 

$1,200,000 

$1,400,000 

City of Greenwood 
Monthly Cash Summary 

2015 

2016 



GREENWOOD CERTIFICATES OF DEPOSIT

Report Date:  10/31/154/30/16

Acct # Bank Date Term Maturity Rate Amount
101-10408 Beacon Bank 04/05/15 13 month 05/05/16 0.70% 61,666.69$       
101-10411 Beacon Bank 06/22/15 13 month 07/22/16 0.60% 80,661.40$       
101-10409 Beacon Bank 08/05/15 13 month 09/05/16 0.60% 61,545.47$       
101-10412 Beacon Bank 10/22/15 13 month 11/22/16 0.60% 80,851.00$       
101-10410 Beacon Bank 12/06/15 13 month 01/06/17 0.60% 61,571.24$       
101-10407 Beacon Bank 02/04/16 13 month 03/04/17 0.60% 62,029.05$       

TOTAL 408,324.85$     

CITY COUNCIL POLICY: 09-03-14 Motion by Roy to authorize the administrative committee to open CDs with a maximum initial maturity of
25 months with a combined maximum total CD balance of $500,000 at Beacon Bank or Bridgewater Bank. Second by Cook. Motion passed 5-0.



M = Manual Check, V = Void Check  

 
CITY OF GREENWOOD Check Register - Summary Report Page:     1 

May 24, 2016  03:55pm 
Check Issue Date(s): 05/01/2016 - 05/31/2016  

 
Per Date Check No Vendor No Payee Check GL Acct Amount

05/16 05/03/2016 12525 10 AMERICAN SOLUTIONS FOR BUSINES 101-20100 100.54 
05/16 05/03/2016 12526 9 CITY OF DEEPHAVEN 101-20100 8,198.72 
05/16 05/03/2016 12527 822 ECM PUBLISHERS INC 101-20100 258.75 
05/16 05/03/2016 12528 199 ELECTRIC PUMP 602-20100 5,006.24 
05/16 05/03/2016 12529 850 KENNEDY, GRAVEN, CHARTERED 101-20100 362.96 
05/16 05/03/2016 12530 867 RANDY'S ENVIRONMENTAL SERVICES 101-20100 1,628.25 
05/16 05/03/2016 12531 38 SO LAKE MINNETONKA POLICE DEPT 101-20100 16,267.61 
05/16 05/03/2016 12532 145 XCEL ENERGY 602-20100 163.58 
05/16 05/24/2016 12533 51 BOLTON & MENK, INC. 101-20100 3,723.00 
05/16 05/24/2016 12534 9 CITY OF DEEPHAVEN 101-20100 173.13 
05/16 05/24/2016 12535 761 DEBRA KIND 101-20100 164.64 
05/16 05/24/2016 12536 822 ECM PUBLISHERS INC 101-20100 189.75 
05/16 05/24/2016 12537 199 ELECTRIC PUMP 602-20100 1,000.00 
05/16 05/24/2016 12538 818 EXCELSIOR - LAKE MTKA CHAMBER 101-20100 1,500.00 
05/16 05/24/2016 12539 819 FINANCE & COMMERCE INC 404-20100 185.23 
05/16 05/24/2016 12540 68 GOPHER STATE ONE CALL 602-20100 65.25 
05/16 05/24/2016 12541 3 KELLY LAW OFFICES 101-20100 1,500.00 
05/16 05/24/2016 12542 841 LAW OFFICE GREGORY E KELLER PA 101-20100 379.50 
05/16 05/24/2016 12543 105 METRO COUNCIL ENVIRO SERVICES 602-20100 3,203.41 
05/16 05/24/2016 12544 868 ST ALBAN'S BAY 605-20100 5,000.00 
05/16 05/24/2016 12545 145 XCEL ENERGY 101-20100 383.55 

          Totals: 49,454.11 

           Dated: ______________________________________________________

           Mayor: ______________________________________________________

  City Council: ______________________________________________________

                       ______________________________________________________

                       ______________________________________________________

                       ______________________________________________________

                       ______________________________________________________

                       ______________________________________________________

City Recorder: ______________________________________________________



 

 
CITY OF GREENWOOD Payment Approval Report - for Council Approval Page:     1 

Input Date(s): 05/01/2016 - 05/31/2016 May 24, 2016  03:53pm 
 

Vendor Vendor Name Invoice No Description Inv Date Net Inv Amt

AMERICAN SOLUTIONS FOR BUSINES
INV02550870 04/18/201610 AMERICAN SOLUTIONS FOR BU ENVELOPES 100.54 

          Total AMERICAN SOLUTIONS FOR BUSINES 100.54 

BOLTON & MENK, INC.
0189774 04/30/201651 BOLTON & MENK, INC. 2016 DEVELOPMENT REVIEW 392.00 

2016 DEVELOPMENT REVIEW 152.00 
0189775 04/30/20162016 MISC ENGINEERING 60.00 
0189776 04/30/20162016 SEWER IMPROVEMENTS 972.00 
0189777 04/30/20162016 STREET IMPROVEMENTS 2,147.00 

          Total BOLTON & MENK, INC. 3,723.00 

CITY OF DEEPHAVEN
APR 2016 04/30/20169 CITY OF DEEPHAVEN ZONING 228.13 

SIGNS (CREDIT) 55.00 -
APRIL 2016 05/01/2016Clerk Services 2,829.60 

STREET SWEEPING 2,371.00 
RENT & EQUIPMENT 487.45 
Postage 27.52 
COPIES 119.40 
SEWER 1,607.35 
SNOW PLOWING/SANDING/SALT 189.10 
STREETS 94.55 
PARK MAINTENANCE 94.55 
STORM SEWERS 378.20 

          Total CITY OF DEEPHAVEN 8,371.85 

DEBRA KIND
051816 05/18/2016761 DEBRA KIND JOINT WK SESSION FOOD 164.64 

          Total DEBRA KIND 164.64 

ECM PUBLISHERS INC
336457 04/14/2016822 ECM PUBLISHERS INC LEGAL NOTICE 80.50 
336458 04/14/2016LEGAL NOTICE 97.75 
336459 04/14/2016LEGAL NOTICE 80.50 
344599 05/05/2016LEGAL NOTICE 51.75 
547207 05/12/2016LEGAL NOTICE 138.00 

          Total ECM PUBLISHERS INC 448.50 

ELECTRIC PUMP
0057559-IN 04/06/2016199 ELECTRIC PUMP LIFT STATION REPAIR 1,846.94 
0057607-IN 04/14/2016LIFT STATION REPAIR 3,159.30 
0057797-IN 05/13/2016LIFT STATION REPAIR 1,000.00 

          Total ELECTRIC PUMP 6,006.24 

EXCELSIOR - LAKE MTKA CHAMBER
2016 JULY 4 05/04/2016818 EXCELSIOR - LAKE MTKA CHAM JULY 4TH CONTRIBUTION 1,500.00 

          Total EXCELSIOR - LAKE MTKA CHAMBER 1,500.00 

FINANCE & COMMERCE INC
742749058 05/17/2016819 FINANCE & COMMERCE INC CONSRUCTION BID 185.23 



 

 
CITY OF GREENWOOD Payment Approval Report - for Council Approval Page:     2 

Input Date(s): 05/01/2016 - 05/31/2016 May 24, 2016  03:53pm 
 

Vendor Vendor Name Invoice No Description Inv Date Net Inv Amt

          Total FINANCE & COMMERCE INC 185.23 

GOPHER STATE ONE CALL
6040403 04/30/201668 GOPHER STATE ONE CALL Gopher State calls 65.25 

          Total GOPHER STATE ONE CALL 65.25 

KELLY LAW OFFICES
X425 05/03/20163 KELLY LAW OFFICES GENERAL LEGAL 1,500.00 

          Total KELLY LAW OFFICES 1,500.00 

KENNEDY, GRAVEN, CHARTERED
MAR 31 2016 03/31/2016850 KENNEDY, GRAVEN, CHARTERE 21200 MTKA BLVD SUBDIVISION 362.96 

          Total KENNEDY, GRAVEN, CHARTERED 362.96 

LAW OFFICE GREGORY E KELLER PA
051816 05/18/2016841 LAW OFFICE GREGORY E KELL PROSECUTION BILL 379.50 

          Total LAW OFFICE GREGORY E KELLER PA 379.50 

METRO COUNCIL ENVIRO SERVICES
0001054990 05/03/2016105 METRO COUNCIL ENVIRO SERV Monthly wastewater Charge 3,203.41 

          Total METRO COUNCIL ENVIRO SERVICES 3,203.41 

RANDY'S ENVIRONMENTAL SERVICES
APR 2016 04/19/2016867 RANDY'S ENVIRONMENTAL SER RECYCLING SERVICES 1,628.25 

          Total RANDY'S ENVIRONMENTAL SERVICES 1,628.25 

SO LAKE MINNETONKA POLICE DEPT
APR 13 2016 04/13/201638 SO LAKE MINNETONKA POLICE COURT OVERTIME 90.48 
APR 18 2016 04/18/2016Hennepin Co. Processing Fees 102.55 

MAY 2016 05/01/20162016 OPERATING BUDGET EXP 16,074.58 

          Total SO LAKE MINNETONKA POLICE DEPT 16,267.61 

ST ALBAN'S BAY
050516 05/05/2016868 ST ALBAN'S BAY INVASIVE SPECIES TREATMENT 5,000.00 

          Total ST ALBAN'S BAY 5,000.00 

XCEL ENERGY
042516 04/25/2016145 XCEL ENERGY SIREN 4.00 

Sleepy Hollow Road * 8.64 
4925 MEADVILLE STREET * 8.64 
LIFT STATION #1 41.49 
LIFT STATION #2 30.60 
LIFT STATION #3 30.70 
LIFT STATION #4 39.51 

050316 05/03/2016Street Lights * 383.55 

          Total XCEL ENERGY 547.13 



 

 
CITY OF GREENWOOD Payment Approval Report - for Council Approval Page:     3 

Input Date(s): 05/01/2016 - 05/31/2016 May 24, 2016  03:53pm 
 

Total Paid: 49,454.11 
Total Unpaid:  -     

Grand Total: 49,454.11 



 

 
CITY OF GREENWOOD Check Register Page:     1 

Pay Period Date(s): 05/02/2016 to 06/01/2016 May 24, 2016  03:58pm 
 

Pay Per Check Check Description GL Amount
Date Jrnl Date Number Payee Emp No Account

06/01/16 PC 06/01/16 6011601 COOK, WILLIAM B. 37 001-10100 184.70 
06/01/16 PC 06/01/16 6011602 Fletcher, Thomas M 33 001-10100 84.70 
06/01/16 PC 06/01/16 6011603 Kind, Debra J. 34 001-10100 277.05 
06/01/16 PC 06/01/16 6011604 Quam, Robert 32 001-10100 184.70 
06/01/16 PC 06/01/16 6011605 ROY, ROBERT J. 38 001-10100 184.70 

          Grand Totals: 915.85 



 

Greenwood Resolution 21-16   |   Page 1 of 1 
 

RESOLUTION NO 21-16 
 

RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF GREENWOOD, MINNESOTA 
  

_________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
 

A RESOLUTION APPOINTING THE 2016 STATE PRIMARY AND GENERAL ELECTION JUDGES  
AND ESTABLISHING HENNEPIN COUNTY AS THE ABSENTEE BALLOT BOARD 

_________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
 
WHEREAS, Minnesota Election Laws 204B.21 requires the certification of Election Judges for the State 
Primary Election and General Election to be appointed by the governing body of the municipality at least 25 
days before the election. 
 
WHEREAS, the City of Greenwood has one voting precinct and the City Hall will serve as the absentee ballot 
center for the residents of Greenwood; and 
 
WHEREAS, Minn. Statute Section 203B.121 stated that an Absentee Ballot Board must be established by the 
City to facilitate the absentee process for an upcoming election; 
  
NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED that the Greenwood City Council hereby appoints the individuals 
named below to officiate at the State Primary and General Elections: 
 

Susan Allen Mary Jo Newman 
Kristi Conrad Cynthia Paeper 
Pam Canning Cynthia Reeder 

Marybeth Darusmont Douglas Reeder 
Jenifer Forst Diane Shelgren 
Janice Gray Anne Spaeth 
Bonnie Lane Judith Spiegel 

Patricia McGowan Henry Wudlick 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED the City Clerk is, with this, authorized to make substitutions and additions to the 
Election Judge Roster, as deemed necessary, in order to fill vacancies and meet party splits;  
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED Minn. Statute Section 204B.31 states payment of a wage for each hour spent 
performing election duties at the polling place and in attending sessions required for election judge training, 
plus mileage in the same amount as allowed pursuant to section 471.665, subd. 1 to conduct the 2016 Primary 
& General Election: Election Judges: $9.00 per hour; Head Judges: $9.50 per hour; Mileage: Set by City 
Council Resolution; and 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED the Greenwood City Council also appoints City Election Officials and approves 
all members appointed to the Hennepin County Absentee Ballot  Board as authorized under Minn. Stat. 
204B.21, Subd. 2, under the direction of the Election Manager to serve as the Greenwood Absentee Ballot 
Board as required by Minn. Stat. 203B.121.  
 
PASSED this ___ day of _______, 2016 by the city council of the city of Greenwood, Minnesota. 
 
___ AYES   ___ NAYS  
 
CITY OF GREENWOOD 
 
By: _____________________________________ Attest: __________________________________ 
Debra J. Kind, Mayor     Dana H. Young, City Clerk 



 

Greenwood Resolution 22-16   |   Page 1 of 1 
 

RESOLUTION NO 22-16 
 

RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF GREENWOOD, MINNESOTA  
 
_________________________________________________________________________________________________ 

 
A RESOLUTION DESIGNATING HENNEPIN COUNTY OR ITS DESIGNEE AS THE CENTRAL 

COUNT LOCATION, THE USE OF E-POLL BOOKS EQUIPMENT, AND FOR THE USE OF THE  
CENTRAL COUNTER 650 FOR ABSENTEE BALLOTS FOR THE 2016 STATE PRIMARY AND 

GENERAL ELECTIONS. 
_________________________________________________________________________________________________ 

 
 
WHEREAS, the passage of Session Laws Ch 194 (HF 3111) in the 2010 Minnesota legislative session 
provided for centralized processing and counting of absentee ballots in Minnesota counties and cities, and 

 
WHEREAS, in order to permit the timely and effective processing and counting of absentee ballots, the City of 
Greenwood requires the use of an electronic central ballot counter, and 
 
WHEREAS, Hennepin County has leased Elections Systems and Software Inc. Model 650 central ballot 
counters for the 2016 election season 
 
WHEREAS, the Elections Systems and Software Inc. Model 650 central ballot counter has been approved by 
the secretary of state pursuant to Minnesota Statutes, Section 206.57, and 

 
WHEREAS, pursuant to Minnesota Statutes, Section 206.58, subd. 1, the governing body of a municipality 
may provide for the use of an electronic voting system in one or more precincts and at all elections in the 
precincts, subject to approval by the county auditor, and  

 
WHEREAS, the county auditor has approved the use of the Elections Systems and Software Inc. Model 650 
central ballot counter in the precincts of Hennepin County,  
 
WHEREAS, e-poll books have been purchased by Hennepin County and will be used in the 2016 Primary and 
General elections.  
 
NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED that the Greenwood City Council hereby designates Hennepin County 
or its designee as the central count location, the use of the DS200 voting equipment, the use of the Model 650 
central ballot counter for all absentee ballots, and the use of e-poll books for voter check-in, identification and 
registration.   

 
 

PASSED this ___ day of _______, 2016 by the city council of the city of Greenwood, Minnesota. 
 
 
___ AYES   ___ NAYS  
 
CITY OF GREENWOOD 
 
By: _____________________________________ Attest: __________________________________ 
Debra J. Kind, Mayor     Dana H. Young, City Clerk 
 



  www.greenwoodmn.com

	

	

Agenda Number: 4B 

Agenda Date: 06-01-16 
Prepared by Deb Kind 

 
 
 
 
Agenda Item: City Engineer – 2016 Street Improvement Bid, County Aid Application, St. Alban's Bay Road Drainage,  
I/I Smoke Test Report 
 
Summary: City Engineer Dave Martini will attend the 06-01-16 city council meeting to discuss the below topics.  
 
2016 Street Improvement Bid: The full council packet and the online packet at www.greenwoomn.com include a copy of 
Dave's cover letter and bid sheet. As of 04-31-16, the Road Improvement Fund balance is $183,316.  

County Aid to Municipalities: In 1957, Hennepin County established a County Aid to Municipalities (CAM) program to 
provide financial assistance for roadways and bridges to cities with populations under 5,000. Typically the funding is 
between $1,000 and $3,000 per year. The city must submit a project approval form to receive the funds 
 
St. Alban's Bay Road Drainage Project: Dave will present bid information at the 06-01-16 meeting. As of 04-31-16, the 
Stormwater Fund balance is $4,756. In addition, the Sewer Enterprise Fund balance is $374,622 – minus $250,000 goal 
balance = $124,622 “excess.” Sewer Enterprise Fund money may be used for any city purpose, so the council could 
transfer money from this fund to the Stormwater Fund for the St. Alban's Bay Road Drainage Project if desired.  

Inflow & Infiltration Smoke Test Report: The full council packet and the online packet at www.greenwoomn.com include a 
copy of Dave's cover letter and the report with his recommendations.  
 
Council Action: No action required. Potential motions ... 
 
1. I move the city council (1) awards the 2016 Street Improvement Project to the lowest bidder Midwest Asphalt for an 

amount of $146,916; and (2) authorizes the city engineer to submit the project approval form to receive CAM funds for 
the city's 2016 road projects. 

 
2. I move the city council (3) awards the St. Alban's Bay Road Drainage Project to the lowest bidder __________ in the 

amount of $_______; (4) authorizes the city clerk to transfer $_______ from the Sewer Fund to the Stormwater Fund 
for the St. Aban's Road Drainage Project. 

 
3. I move the city council authorizes the city engineer to: (1) secure bids to raise and seal manholes and lift stations that 

were identified following June / July 2014 rain events and identified during smoke testing; (2) in accordance with the 
Metropolitan Council I/I Surcharge program, report activities performed in 2015 and update the required work plan for 
2016; (3) secure bids for a trenchless rehabilitation project that includes CIPP Lining of the pipes near the waterline or 
known to have an invert below the normal water level of lake Minnetonka; and (4) secure bids for additional Inflow and 
Infiltration investigation to further direct the required work in the remaining years of the MCES I/I Workplan. 

 
4. Do nothing or other motion. 
 
 



H:\GRWD\C13111223\1_Corres\C_To Others\Street Bid Results 5-24-16.doc

May 24, 2016

City of Greenwood
Attn: Bob Quam
20225 Cottagewood Road
Deephaven, MN 55331

RE: Bid Results for 2016 Street Improvements

Dear Mr. Quam:

Enclosed is the bid tab for the 2016 Street Improvements Project. The following is a summary of the
bids:

Midwest Asphalt $146,916.00
Valley Paving $159,631.20
Buck Blacktop $183,079.00
Park Construction $198,401.55

The project includes the following scope of work:

 Resurfacing and drainage improvements on Covington Street between Fairview and Meadville
Streets

 Pavement reclamation and paving on Minnetonka Blvd. between Meadville and West Street
 Pavement patching on St. Albans Bay Road
 Pavement markings for traffic calming on the west leg of Greenwood Circle, the south leg of

Covington, and on Meadville Street.

I will be at the City Council meeting on June 1st to discuss the bids with the Council. Please let me know
if you have questions or need additional information.

Sincerely,
BOLTON & MENK, INC.

David P. Martini, P.E.
Principal Engineer



CITY OF GREENWOOD
2016 STREET IMPROVEMENTS

BID DATE: MAY 24, 2016 - 10:00 AM

MIDWEST ASPHALT $146,916.00

VALLEY PAVING $159,631.20

BUCK BLACKTOP $183,079.00

PARK CONSTRUCTION $198,401.55

TOTAL AMOUNT BIDCONTRACTOR

H:\GRWD\C13111223\6_Plans-Specs\B_Bid Tabulation\111223 Bid Tab.xls 1



H:\GRWD\C13111222\1_Corres\C_To Others\I & I Study Cover Letter 5-25-16.doc

May 25, 2016

City of Greenwood
Attn: Bob Quam
20225 Cottagewood Road
Deephaven, MN 55331

RE: Inflow & Infiltration Study

Dear Mr. Quam:

Attached is the Inflow & Infiltration Study that was completed this spring. The study details the results of
the smoke testing that was completed last year and includes recommended actions. I will be at the City
Council Meeting on June 1st to review the study with the Council.

Please let me know if you have questions or need additional information.

Sincerely,
BOLTON & MENK, INC.

David P. Martini, P.E.
Principal Engineer



City of Greenwood, MN

Inflow & Infiltration Study

Smoke Testing Results & 
Recommendations

March, 2016

Submitted by:

Bolton & Menk, Inc.

2638 Shadow Lane

Suite 200

Chaska, MN 55318

P: 952.448.8838

F: 952.448.8805



Executive Summary: 

In August we held an open house and sent out notifications to residents in the areas where we were 

going to be performing the smoke testing.  Smoke testing was performed over the course of one day on 

September 22, 2015.  Smoke testing did not reveal any illegal cross connections or obvious breaks and 

points of inflow or infiltration in the areas we tested.   

 

Public Engagement and Communications: 

Mailings were sent to all the residents in the areas where the smoke testing was planned to be 

performed, because the smoke can enter residences if there are dry traps, or other illegal connections.  

These residents were invited to an open house held on August 6th, 2015.  This open house was held from 

5:00pm -7:00pm, and was well attended.  We also took that opportunity to do some public education on 

the I & I problem and presented the smoke testing process and introduced the MCES I & I Surcharge 

program.   

Public services including Fire and Police were engaged in the communication process in case emergency 

services were called.   

 

Smoke Testing Process: 

Smoke testing was originally planned for August 18-21, 2015.  The testing was subsequently rescheduled 

to September due to weather.  The second attempt on September 22, 2015 was successful.   

Smoke testing was performed to locate connections to the system that could be contributing surface or 

ground water also known as clean water. Clean water in the sanitary sewer system is charged the same 

rate as sewage, even though no treatment is necessary and is subject to additional charges if the 

gallonage exceeds the threshold.  This usually occurs during a precipitation event.     

 

During the testing, smoke appeared at manholes in the system and at vent stacks (on the roof) of 

homes.  This is an indication of a correctly connected sanitary sewer.  Had we discovered an illegal 

connection Smoke may have appeared in rooms of homes, around the perimeter of homes or in open 

areas near the sewer lines.  These are all indicators of potential sources of clean water and potential 

sewer problems.  

The smoke used in this process is non-toxic and non-harmful, but it can be a minor irritant.  At the open 

house we performed a short presentation on the process, showed examples of smoke testing as well as 

answered questions and received input from residents.    

 

Smoke Testing Results: 

Smoke testing did not reveal any illegal cross connections at residents.  There were also no obvious 

breaks and points of inflow revealed by the smoke testing.  Smoke was observed from many of the 



manholes in the areas tested, which is an expected result for correctly operating sanitary sewer systems.  

There were 2 manholes that were indicated on the sanitary sewer map that we did not locate as part of 

the process, and those are in areas near the shoreline of the lake.  The attached maps show the areas 

where smoke testing was performed and where we observed smoke from manholes as well as lift 

stations that need to be raised and sealed.   

 

Recommended Actions: 

1. The City should pursue the work proposed in the 2015 Manhole and Lift Station project, as a 2016 

project.   

The manholes and lift stations that were identified during smoke testing, and following the 

precipitation events of June/July 2014 should be raised above the localized flood level and sealed 

from inflow.  These includes Weeks Road LS, St Albans LS, and Meadville St LS.   

2. In accordance with the Metropolitan Council I/I Surcharge program, Greenwood will be required to 

report activities performed in 2015 and update their required work plan for 2016.  MCES has agreed 

to allow Greenwood to shift a portion of their required work from 2015 into 2016.   

3. The City should pursue a trenchless rehabilitation project for 2016 that includes CIPP Lining of the 

pipes near the waterline or known to have an invert below the normal water level of lake 

Minnetonka 

4. The City should consider additional Inflow and Infiltration investigation to further direct the required 

work in the remaining years of the MCES I/I Workplan  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Attachments: 

Appendix A - Maps of Smoke Testing Areas 

Appendix B - 2015 I/I Community Response Form 



 

 

 

 

 

Appendix A 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



£¤7
")82

M
in

n
e

to
n

k
a
 B

lv
d

M
in

n
e

to
n

k
a
 B

lv
d

Excelsior Blvd
Excelsior Blvd

M
an

or
 R

d

M
an

or
 R

d

Radiss
on In

n R
d

Radiss
on In

n R
d

Lake St

Lake St

S
t A

lbans B
ay R

d

S
t A

lbans B
ay R

d

S
u

b
u
rb

a
n

 D
r

S
u

b
u
rb

a
n

 D
r

F
a
ir
vi

e
w

 S
t

F
a
ir
vi

e
w

 S
t

2nd St

2nd St

Ivy La
Ivy La

R
us

tic
 W

ay

R
us

tic
 W

ay

Forest D
r

Forest D
r

Garden Rd
Garden Rd

West LaWest La

F
e

rn
c
ro

ft D
r

F
e

rn
c
ro

ft D
r

Arey La

Arey La

L
a
ke

w
a
y Te

r

L
a
ke

w
a
y Te

r

M
eadville S

t

M
eadville S

t

B
a

y
w

a
te

r 
R

d
B

a
y
w

a
te

r 
R

d

Hidden LaHidden La

L
in

w
o
o
d
 R

d
L
in

w
o
o
d
 R

d

W
at

er
 S

t

W
at

er
 S

t

Woodhaven Pl
Woodhaven Pl

Greenwood Cir

Greenwood Cir

S
ch

oo
l A

ve

S
ch

oo
l A

ve

Idlewild Path

Idlewild Path

Byron Cir
Byron Cir

F
a
tim

a P
l

F
a
tim

a P
l

K
n

ig
ts

b
ri
d

g
e

 R
d

K
n

ig
ts

b
ri
d

g
e

 R
d

W
e
e
ks

 R
d

W
e
e
ks

 R
d

V
ine S

t

V
ine S

t

L
in

w
o
o
d

 C
ir

L
in

w
o
o
d

 C
ir

W
e

st S
t

W
e
s
t S

t

C
urve S

t

C
urve S

t

H
ig

h
v
ie

w
 P

l
H

ig
h

v
ie

w
 P

l

W
oo

de
n
d 

P
l

W
oo

de
n
d 

P
l

C
o

v
in

g
to

n
 S

t
C

o
v
in

g
to

n
 S

t

C
hannel D

r

C
hannel D

r

Kings CtKings Ct

Mac Lynn Rd
Mac Lynn Rd

Queens CirQueens Cir

Union Pl

Union Pl

C
o

v
in

g
to

n
 S

t
C

o
v
in

g
to

n
 S

t

Smoke 
Testing

I
0 1,000

Feet

March, 2016

Figure 1.0

Legend

Sanitary Sewer

Smoke Testing Areas

Parcel Boundary

Municipal Boundary

Source:

Map Document: H:\GRWD\C13108948\GIS\ESRI\Smoke Testing.mxd
Date Saved: 3/21/2016 3:58:26 AM



M
ea

d
vi

lle
 S

t

M
ea

d
vi

lle
 S

t

Fairview St

Fairview St

M
in

ne
to

nk
a 

B
lv

d

M
in

ne
to

nk
a 

B
lv

d

W
e

st S
t

W
e

st S
t

C
o

v
in

g
to

n
 S

t
C

o
v
in

g
to

n
 S

t

C
o

v
in

g
to

n
 S

t
C

o
v
in

g
to

n
 S

t

Smoke 
Testing

I
0 300

Feet

March, 2016

Figure 2.3

Legend

Location Unknown

Smoke Observed

Sanitary Sewer

Smoke Testing Areas

Source:

Map Document: H:\GRWD\C13108948\GIS\ESRI\Smoke Testing.mxd
Date Saved: 3/21/2016 3:58:26 AM



M
in

ne
to

nk
a 

B
lv

d

M
in

ne
to

nk
a 

B
lv

d

Fairview St

Fairview St

W
e

st S
t

W
e

st S
t

C
urve S

t

C
urve S

t

G
re

e
n

w
o

o
d
 C

ir
G

re
e

n
w

o
o

d
 C

ir

C
o

v
in

g
to

n
 S

t
C

o
v
in

g
to

n
 S

t

Meadville
 St

Meadville
 St

Central Pl
Central Pl

P
ineview

 C
t

P
ineview

 C
t

C
o

v
in

g
to

n
 S

t
C

o
v
in

g
to

n
 S

t

Smoke 
Testing

I
0 300

Feet

March, 2016

Figure 2.4

Legend

Location Unknown

Smoke Observed

Sanitary Sewer

Smoke Testing Areas

Source:

Map Document: H:\GRWD\C13108948\GIS\ESRI\Smoke Testing.mxd
Date Saved: 3/21/2016 3:58:26 AM



S
t A

lbans B
ay R

d

S
t A

lbans B
ay R

d

Minnetonka BlvdMinnetonka Blvd

G
re

e
n

w
o

o
d

 C
ir

G
re

e
n

w
o

o
d
 C

ir

W
e
e
ks

 R
d

W
e
e
ks

 R
d

H
ig

h
v
ie

w
 P

l
H

ig
h

v
ie

w
 P

l

W
oo

de
nd

 P
l

W
oo

de
nd

 P
l

Kings CtKings Ct

Forest DrForest Dr

Queens CirQueens Cir

S
le

e
p

y
 H

o
llo

w
 R

d
S

le
e

p
y
 H

o
llo

w
 R

d

Smoke 
Testing

I
0 300

Feet

March, 2016

Figure 2.5

Legend

Location Unknown

Smoke Observed

Sanitary Sewer

Smoke Testing Areas

Source:

Map Document: H:\GRWD\C13108948\GIS\ESRI\Smoke Testing.mxd
Date Saved: 3/21/2016 3:58:26 AM



Minnetonka Blvd

Minnetonka Blvd

L
in

w
o
o
d
 R

d
L
in

w
o
o
d
 R

d

F
atim

a P
l

F
atim

a P
l

L
in

w
o
o

d
 C

ir
L
in

w
o
o

d
 C

ir

Linwood La

Linwood La

Woodhaven PlWoodhaven Pl

U
n
k
n
o
w

n
 o

r N
o
 S

tre
e
tn

a
m

e

U
n
k
n
o
w

n
 o

r N
o
 S

tre
e
tn

a
m

e

Smoke 
Testing

I
0 300

Feet

March, 2016

Figure 2.1

Legend

Location Unknown

Smoke Observed

Sanitary Sewer

Smoke Testing Areas

Source:

Map Document: H:\GRWD\C13108948\GIS\ESRI\Smoke Testing.mxd
Date Saved: 3/21/2016 3:58:26 AM



F
a
ir
vi

e
w

 S
t

F
a
ir
vi

e
w

 S
t

M
in

neto
nka

 B
lvd

M
in

neto
nka

 B
lvd

Sleepy Hollow Rd

Sleepy Hollow Rd

C
o

v
in

g
to

n
 S

t
C

o
v
in

g
to

n
 S

t

Meadville St

Meadville St

G
re

e
n

w
o

o
d
 C

ir
G

re
e

n
w

o
o

d
 C

ir

P
ineview

 C
t

P
ineview

 C
t

C
o

v
in

g
to

n
 S

t
C

o
v
in

g
to

n
 S

t

Smoke 
Testing

I
0 300

Feet

March, 2016

Figure 2.2

Legend

Location Unknown

Smoke Observed

Sanitary Sewer

Smoke Testing Areas

Source:

Map Document: H:\GRWD\C13108948\GIS\ESRI\Smoke Testing.mxd
Date Saved: 3/21/2016 3:58:26 AM



 

 

 

 

 

Appendix B 





briansi
Pencil







CITY OF GREENWOOD
2014 I/I REDUCTION GRANT APPLICATION
CONSTRUCTION COST ESTIMATE

BMI PROJECT NO. C13.108948

ITEM EST. EST. 
NO. QUANTITY UNIT UNIT PRICE AMOUNT

1

WEEKS RD LIFT STATION - RAISE TOP, ADD CHIMNEY SEAL, REPLACE 
PUMP GUIDE PIPES, MODIFY ELECTRIC CONNECTION TO ALLOW RAISE, 
REDIRECT DRAINAGE & RESTORATION 1 EA $15,000.00 $15,000.00

2
ST. ALBANS LIFT STATION - RAISE TOP, ADD CHIMNEY SEAL, REPLACE 
PUMP GUIDE PIPES, REDIRECT DRAINAGE AND RESTORATION 1 EA $12,000.00 $12,000.00

3 MEADVILLE ST LIFT STATION - ADD CHIMNEY SEAL & RESTORATION 1 EA $1,000.00 $1,000.00

4
MANHOLES - RECONSTRUCT ADJUSTING RINGS, RESET CASTING, ADD 
CHIMNEY SEAL AND STREET PATCHING 8 EA $1,400.00 $11,200.00

5 MANHOLE CASTING WITH GASKETED COVER 4 EA $700.00 $2,800.00

$42,000.00

$10,500.00

$52,500.00

ESTIMATED CONSTRUCTION COST:

DESCRIPTION

TOTAL ESTIMATED PROJECT COST:

25% ADMIN, ENGINEERING, & CONTINGENCY:

CITY OF GREENWOOD

C13.108948 Bolton Menk, Inc.
COST ESTIMATE







  www.greenwoodmn.com

	

	

Agenda Number: 5A 

Agenda Date: 06-01-16 

Prepared by Deb Kind 
 
 

Agenda Item: Public Hearing, Conduit Financing for Main Street School of Performing Arts 
 
Summary: Jennifer Hansen, the Dorsey & Whitney attorney who represents Deephaven for conduit financing projects, 
contacted the Greenwood city clerk to see if Greenwood would be interested in a conduit financing opportunity for Main 
Street School of Performing Arts (MSSPA), currently located in Hopkins. MSSPA would like to relocate to the former 
Eagle Ridge Academy site at 7255 Flying Cloud Dr, Eden Prairie, MN 55344. The $8-$10 million project will be 
underwritten by Piper Jaffray. The terms would be the same as what would normally be done with Deephaven. The rate 
would 1/2 of 1 percent = $40,000 to $50,000 money to the city. There is no financial risk to the city. MSSPA would pay all 
of the costs including the city's costs for legal review.  
 
06-01-16 at the Deephaven Council Chambers is the date and place fixed by administrative action for a public hearing to 
be held on the proposal that the city of Greenwood undertake financing on behalf of Main Street School of Performing Arts 
Affiliated Building Company, a Minnesota nonprofit corporation (the “Borrower”), pursuant to Minnesota Statutes, Sections 
469.152 through 469.165. The city clerk has certified that an affidavit is on file at the office of the city clerk showing 
publication of the notice of public hearing on May 12, 2016 in the Sun-Sailor, the official newspaper of the city and a 
newspaper of general circulation in the city. The certification and other documents are located in section 8A of the full 
hard copy of the council packet and in the electronic packet available for viewing at www.greenwoodmn.com. In addition, 
hundreds of pages of other related documents are available for viewing at city hall. As of the council packet deadline, no 
written comments have been received by the city.  
 
Representatives from Dorsey & Whitney, the Main Street School of Performing Arts, and the underwriter (Piper Jaffray)	
will be at the 06-01-16 city council meeting to answer questions. 
 
Council Action: Suggested motions for the public hearing ... 
 

1. I move the council opens the public hearing. 
 

2. I move the council closes the public hearing. 



  www.greenwoodmn.com

	

Agenda Number: 6A 

Agenda Date: 06-01-16 
Prepared by Deb Kind 

 
 
 
 
Agenda Item: 2nd Reading Ord 255, Construction-Related Tree Cutting and Tree Preservation Plans and Res 23-16 
Summary of Ord 255 for Publication 
 
Summary: The council approved the 1st reading of the ordinance at the 05-04-16 meeting and discussed the ordinance 
further at the annual joint worksession with the planning commission on 05-18-16. The attached ordinance includes 
revisions that were discussed at the worksession. 
 
Timeline: 
03-16-16  Review of draft ordinance by city council. 
04-06-16  Review of draft ordinance by city council. 
04-07-16  Public hearing notice published in the Sun-Sailor. 
04-20-16  Planning commission holds public hearing and makes a recommendation to the city council. 
05-04-16  City council considers 1st reading of the ordinance (may make revisions/may waive 2nd reading). 
06-01-16  City council considers 2nd reading of the ordinance (may make revisions). 
06-02-16  The ordinance is submitted to the Sun-Sailor for publication. 
06-09-16  The ordinance is published in the Sun-Sailor (goes into effect on this date). 
 
City Council Action: No action required. Potential motions ... 
 

1. I move that the city council approves the 2nd reading of ordinance 255 regarding tree preservation plans, as 
written. 

2. I move that the city council approves the 2nd reading of ordinance 255 regarding tree preservation plans, with the 
following revisions: ______________________________. 

3. I move the city council approves resolution 23-15, a summary of ordinance 255 for publication. 

4. Do nothing. 
 
 
Greenwood code section 1215 requires 2 readings of all ordinances prior to adoption. The 2nd reading shall be within 3 months of the 1st reading. There 
may be changes between the 1st and 2nd readings. The 2nd reading may be waived by a unanimous vote of city council members present at the 
meeting. Ordinances go into effect once they are published in the city’s official newspaper. The planning commission must review and make a 
recommendation to the city council regarding any changes to the zoning code chapter 11. A public hearing, typically held by the planning commission, 
also is required for changes to chapter 11. 
 



05-20-16 Greenwood Ordinance 255   |   Page 1 of 5 

 

ORDINANCE NO. 255 
 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF GREENWOOD, MINNESOTA AMENDING GREENWOOD ORDINANCE CODE 
SECTION 1140.80 REGARDING TREE PRESERVATION 

 
THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF GREENWOOD, MINNESOTA DOES ORDAIN: 

 
SECTION 1. 
Greenwood ordinance code sections 1140.80 is amended to read as follows:  

“Section 1140.80. Tree Preservation. 
 
Subd. 1. Public Purpose. The protection of the public welfare requires the preservation of an urban forest in and amongst 
the commercial buildings, homes, and streets of the city. Among the benefits of an urban forest are soil stabilization, 
control of water pollution, tempering noise, provision of a habitat for wildlife, and shade and beauty. Indiscriminate 
removal of trees deprive the community of these benefits. It is in the interest of the general public welfare, the city and its 
residents to prevent the indiscriminate removal of trees and the unregulated clearing of vegetation. 
 
Subd. 2. General. 
 

A.  Tree or Trees as used herein includes: 

(1)  A coniferous / evergreen tree, being a woody plant of at least 6 feet in height which at maturity is at least 12 feet 
or more in height, having foliage at the outermost portion of the branches year round; or  

(2)  A deciduous tree, either hardwood or softwood, being a woody plant with a trunk of 3" diameter (9" circum- 
ference) or greater for hardwood, or 4" diameter (13" circumference) or greater for softwood, and which at 
maturity is at least 15 feet or more in height, having a defined crown and which loses leaves annually. The trunk 
diameter shall be measured at 48" above grade or at the top of the remaining stump if already cut or harvested. 

B.  Hardwood Deciduous Tree examples are Ash, Birch, Catalpa, Elm, Hickory, Ironwood, Maple (hard), Oak, and 
Walnut.  

 

C.  Softwood Deciduous Tree examples are Poplars, Aspen, Silver Maple, Basswood, and Willow.  
 

D.  Significant Tree is a healthy tree, measuring a minimum of 10" in diameter (31" circumference) or greater for 
hardwood deciduous trees, 14" in diameter (44" circumference) or greater for softwood deciduous trees, or 12" in 
diameter (38" circumference) or greater for conifer / evergreen trees. The trunk diameter of significant trees shall be 
measured at 48" above grade or at the top of the remaining stump if already cut or harvested. 

 

E.   Noxious Trees are Buckthorn, Sumac, Box Elder, Siberia Elm, Green Ash, Prickly Ash, and Cottonwood. 
 

F.  A Tree Preservation Plan is a plan which meets the requirements of subdivision 5 of this section. 
 

G. Intentional Harm to a tree shall include the cutting, poisoning, damaging, killing, or causing of disease or other act 
intended to damage, disease, or kill a tree. 

 
Subd. 3. Property Owner Restrictions on Cutting of Trees. 
 

A.  Annual Permitted Tree Harvest - No property owner or their employees, independent contractors, or agents, shall cut, 
kill, disease, or permit the killing or cutting or infection of significant trees (as defined in subdivision 2D above) upon 
their property in excess of the number listed on the below table in any 1 calendar year without a variance pursuant to 
section 1155 being first obtained. The removal of significant trees as listed on the below table in any 1 calendar year, 
shall constitute the “annual permitted tree harvest.”  

 

Property size Number of significant trees allowed  
to be removed in any 1 calendar year 

Up to 1/4 acre (up to 10,890 sq ft) 1 
1/4 acre+ to 1/2 acre (10,891 sq ft to 21,780 sq ft) 2 
1/2 acre+ to 3/4 acre (21,781 sq ft to 32,670 sq ft) 3 
3/4 acre+ to 1 acre (32,671 sq ft to 43,560)  4 

Follow the same pattern for properties larger than 1 acre 
 
B.  Noxious Trees may be cut or removed from property without limitation.  
 

C.  Tree Trimming - A property owner may trim an otherwise healthy tree in such a manner as to manage its growth, 
improve its appearance, or eliminate branches which encroach upon structures and improvements without permit first 



05-20-16 Greenwood Ordinance 255   |   Page 2 of 5 

 

obtained, provided, however, that such trimming does not cause the tree to become diseased or will likely cause the 
tree to die. In the event such trimming is likely to cause the tree to become diseased or die, such activity shall be 
counted against the property owner’s “annual permitted tree harvest” per subdivision 3A. 

 
Subd. 4. Construction-Related Tree Cutting Permits. If the improvement of property necessitates the removal of trees for 
construction purposes, property owners and / or developers subsequent to issuance of a valid building permit may cut 
trees from a specific property in accordance with the following provisions and limitations and conditions attached to such 
building permit: 
 

A.  The property owner / developer shall be limited to the property owner’s annual permitted tree harvest of 2 significant 
trees in any given calendar year for construction-related tree cutting / harvesting, unless a permit under this 
subdivision is issued based upon a tree preservation plan prepared by the applicant and submitted to the attention of 
the building official in conjunction with a building permit application. The building permit application or a zoning code 
review shall not be considered complete unless and until a tree preservation plan has been submitted by the property 
owner, developer, or its agent. 

 

B.  Limitations on Construction-Related Tree Cutting. 

 (1)  The city building official and / or the zoning administrator may impose restrictions on construction-related tree 
trimming or cutting: 
 

(a)  On a given property so as to preserve trees that would not otherwise need to be cut or harvested to permit 
access, grading, and construction-related activities;  

(b)  Of “significant trees” so as to preserve and protect same in the course of construction; and 
(c)  Significant trees lost in the course of access, grading, and construction-related activities be replaced in 

accordance with the tree replacement schedule per subdivision 7. 

C. Construction-Related Tree Cutting / Trimming Permit Types. The following construction-related tree cutting / trimming 
permits may be issued by the city: 
(1)  Home Addition / Accessory Structure Construction. In conjunction with an approved building permit to 

accommodate the expansion of an existing residence and / or the construction of an otherwise code permitted 
accessory structure, a property owner / developer may cut or remove up to 10% of the total diameter inches of 
trees on a property identified on a submitted tree preservation plan. 

 

(2)  New Home Construction / General Property Development. In conjunction with an approved building permit for a 
new home construction and / or the razing of an existing home and the construction of a new home thereat, a 
property owner / developer may cut or remove up to 20% of the total diameter inches of trees on a property 
identified on a submitted tree preservation plan. 

D.  Variance. In the event planned construction activity would necessitate the cutting of more than 10% of total diameter 
inches of trees identified in the tree preservation plan in conjunction with a home addition or accessory structure 
construction, or more than 20% of total diameter inches of trees identified in the tree preservation plan in conjunction 
with a new home development or general development, a variance pursuant to section 1155 must be first obtained. 
The variance, if approved, shall be conditioned upon the planting of replacement trees in accordance with the tree 
replacement schedules of this code. 

 
Subd. 5. Tree Preservation Plan Requirements. A tree preservation plan shall be prepared by a licensed land surveyor, 
civil engineer, arborist, landscape architect, or other person whose credentials are deemed acceptable by the city zoning 
administrator. Such tree preservation plan shall include the following: 
 

A.  A map (scale not less than 1" to 30') designating all existing structures, roads, utilities, driveways, and illustrating by 
species: 

(1)  All deciduous trees (excluding noxious trees) on the property greater than  
 (a) 3 inches in diameter for hardwood trees, and  
 (b) 4 inches in diameter for softwood trees measured at 48" above grade; and  
(2)  All coniferous trees greater than 6 feet in height; and 
(3)  All significant trees (excluding noxious trees). 
 

B. A written inventory of all trees included in the tree preservation plan map by type, size, and species and an indication of 
the trees that would be at risk or will be lost to grading and construction activities. 

 

C. The tree preservation plan shall show how the remaining trees will be protected. 
 

Subd. 6. Subdivision Approval - Tree Replacement. No simple subdivision or full plat subdivision shall be approved by the 
city council except on condition that: 
 



05-20-16 Greenwood Ordinance 255   |   Page 3 of 5 

 

A.  All “Significant Trees”; and  
 

B.  All trees to be cut down in excess of the maximum permitted under subdivision 4 hereof for construction-related tree 
cutting permits shall be replaced in accordance with the tree replacement schedule below.  

 
Subd. 7. Tree Replacement Schedule: 
 

A.  Replacement Trees Size Categories Defined:  
 
Replacement Trees Size Categories Defined       

  Size of Replacement Trees Required Per Category 
  A B C 

Deciduous Trees Not Less than 2" in 
diameter 

Not Less than 2.5" in 
diameter 

Not Less than 3" in 
diameter 

Coniferous Trees Not Less than 6' in 
height 

Not Less than 8' in 
height 

Not Less than 10' in 
height 

 
B.  Replacement of “Trees” or “Significant Trees.”  Where replacement of a tree or significant tree is required, the 

property owner, and their agent, shall be responsible for furnishing and planting the number and size of tree(s) 
identified in Category A, Category B, or Category C of the following schedules: 

 
Replacement of “Trees” or “Significant Trees”       

  Quantity of Replacement Trees Required Per Category 

Size of Tree Damaged or Destroyed              A              or             B             or              C 

Coniferous: 1-1/2" diameter but less than 6' tall 1 – – 

Coniferous: 6' to 12' tall 2 1 – 

Coniferous: 12' to 24' tall 4 2 1 

Coniferous: 24' or taller 8 4 2 

Deciduous, Hardwood: 1-1/2 " to less than 6" diameter         
(5" to 18" circ.) 3 2 1 

Deciduous, Hardwood: 6" to less than 10" diameter              
(19" to 30" circ.) 4 3 2 

Deciduous, Hardwood: 10" to less than 20" diameter           
(31" to 62" circ.) 4 2 1 

Deciduous, Hardwood: 20" diameter (63" circ.) or greater 8 4 2 

Deciduous, Softwood: 1-1/2 " to less than 6" diameter           
(5" to 18" circ.) 3 2 1 

Deciduous, Softwood: 6" to less than 14" diameter              
(19" to 43" circ.) 4 3 2 

Deciduous, Softwood: 14" to less than 24" diameter           
(44" to 74" circ.) 4 2 1 

Deciduous, Softwood: 24" diameter (75" circ.) or greater 8 4 2 

 
 

A.  Alternate Site. In the event a property does not offer a reasonable site for planting of replacement trees on the 
property, the owner shall pay to the city the fair market value of each replacement tree required per the tree 
replacement schedule including installation costs as determined by the city’s zoning administrator. 



05-20-16 Greenwood Ordinance 255   |   Page 4 of 5 

 

 

B. Source of Replacement Trees. Replacement trees shall consist of “certified nursery stock” or state inspected 
transplant stock as defined by Minnesota statutes chapter 18 as amended. 

 

C.  Tree Survival. Replacement trees shall be chosen with consideration given to the available soil types and available 
space such as to accommodate the anticipated natural growth and survival of the replacement tree. 

 
Subd. 8. Property Owner / Developer Warranties of Replacement Trees. The property owner shall warrant the survival of 
replacement trees planted pursuant to this ordinance for a term of 2 years from the date of planting. The property owner, 
their successors and assigns shall be responsible for the replanting of replacement trees which die during the 2 years 
following initial planting or replanting. The property owner shall be responsible to remove and restore any replacement 
tree that is not alive and healthy 2 years after the date that the replacement tree was planted, unless such tree was 
planted on public lands. In the event a dead or unhealthy tree is not replaced on 30-day written demand to the owner from 
the city, the property owner shall be subject to the process outlined in chapter 12 of this code book. 
 
Subd. 9. Property Owner / Developer’s Security for Replacement Trees Planted. The owner shall provide security to the 
city for the performance of these obligations as follows: 
 

A.  Form. Security may consist of a bond, letter of credit, or cash in such form and substance as shall be approved by the 
city clerk. 

 

B.  Amount of Security. The amount of security until modified by subsequent city council resolution shall be 125% of the 
estimated cost to furnish and plant replacement trees as required in conjunction with any building permit. The 
estimated cost shall be at least as much as the reasonable amount charged by local nurseries for furnishing and 
planting of the requisite number of replacement trees. The estimated cost shall be at the sole discretion of the city.  

 

C.  Release of Security. The security deposit shall be retained for the 2-year period from the date that the last 
replacement tree has been planted. Security may be released only to the party that made the deposit with the city, the 
city may retain such portion of the security deposit as is equal to the cost of: 

 

 (1) Removing dead and unhealthy trees and planting new replacement trees; or 
 (2) Replacing any tree on which protective fencing has been encroached upon. 
 
Subd. 10. Construction-Related Tree Protection. The city, as a condition to the grant of any building or zoning code 
permit, may require protective fencing, mandate that no soil disturbance occur within city engineer specified distances 
from a significant tree or any other city specified tree, and mandate such other action as may be necessary to preserve a 
“significant tree” or other city specified tree. 
 
Subd. 11. Enforcement.  
 

A.  Intentional Harm of Tree. Intentional harm, in excess of the a) property’s permitted annual tree harvest; or b) a valid 
construction-related tree harvest shall constitute harvesting without a permit and subject the owner, and his agents, to 
the penalties provided hereunder. 

 

B.  Harvesting Without a Permit. Harvesting without a permit is a misdemeanor and is subject to the process outlined in 
chapter 12 of this code book. 

 

C.  Prohibitions on actions by a property owner extend to and are binding on the property owner’s heirs, administrators, 
successors, assigns, agents, invitees, guests, employees, and independent contractors. A general, or sub-contractor, 
engaged by a property owner shall, for the purpose of this ordinance, be considered an authorized agent of the 
property owner. 

 
Subd. 12. Municipal Projects Tree Replacement in Conjunction with Public Improvement Projects. All public improvement 
projects conducted by the city shall be required to replace trees lost in the course of such public improvement projects in 
accordance with the tree replacement schedule. 
 
Subd. 13. Ordinance Administration. The administration of this ordinance shall be through the offices of the city zoning 
administrator who shall have the authority to sign complaints of violation. Fees for permits hereunder shall be set by the 
city council from time to time and set forth in chapter 5 of this code book. 
 
Subd. 14. Tree Contractor License Required. No person may conduct or offer commercial (service for hire) tree trimming 
or removal services in the city without first obtaining a tree contractor license. The license shall be issued on an annual 
basis and licensees must pay the fee and provide proof of insurance in the amounts set forth in chapter 5 of this code 
book. (THIS SUBD. ADDED JAN. 2012 ORD. 204, THIS PARAGRAPH ALSO INCLUDED IN SECTION 435.00)” 
 



05-20-16 Greenwood Ordinance 255   |   Page 5 of 5 

 

SECTION 2. 
Effective Date. This ordinance shall be effective upon publication according to law. 
 
Enacted by the city council of Greenwood, Minnesota this ___ day of _____________, 2016. 
 
____ AYES ____ NAYS 
 
 
CITY OF GREENWOOD 
 
By: _____________________________________ Attest: __________________________________ 
Debra J. Kind, Mayor     Dana H. Young, City Clerk 
 
First reading: _____, 2016 
Second reading: _____, 2016 
Publication: _____, 2016 
 



RESOLUTION 23-16 
 

A RESOLUTION APPROVING PUBLICATION  
OF ORDINANCE NUMBER 255 BY TITLE AND SUMMARY 

 
WHEREAS, on June 1, 2016 the city council of the city of Greenwood adopted “Ordinance 255 Amending Greenwood 
Ordinance Code Section 1140.80 Regarding Tree Preservation.” 
 
WHEREAS, the city council has prepared a summary of ordinance 255 as follows: 
1. The purpose of this ordinance is to clarify the city's Tree Preservation regulations.  
2. The ordinance specifies that noxious trees are Buckthorn, Sumac, Box Elder, Siberia Elm, Green Ash, Prickly Ash, 

and Cottonwood and that noxious trees may be removed without limitation. 
3. The ordinance changes the "annual permitted tree harvest" from 2 significant trees to the following limitations based 

on the property size: 
 

Property size Number of significant trees allowed  
to be removed in any 1 calendar year 

Up to 1/4 acre (up to 10,890 sq ft) 1 
1/4 acre+ to 1/2 acre (10,891 sq ft to 21,780 sq ft) 2 
1/2 acre+ to 3/4 acre (21,781 sq ft to 32,670 sq ft) 3 
3/4 acre+ to 1 acre (32,671 sq ft to 43,560)  4 

Follow the same pattern for properties larger than 1 acre 
 

4. The ordinance states that a variance is required to exceed limits in the above chart and removes the conditional use 
permit requirement for tree removal in the shore impact / bluff impact zones.  

5. The ordinance states that a tree preservation plan shall be prepared by a licensed land surveyor, civil engineer, 
arborist, landscape architect, or other person whose credentials are deemed acceptable by the city zoning 
administrator. Such tree preservation plan shall include the following: 
 

A.  A map (scale not less than 1" to 30') designating all existing structures, roads, utilities, driveways, and illustrating 
by species: 

 

(1) All deciduous trees (excluding noxious trees) on the property greater than  
 (a) 3 inches in diameter for hardwood trees, and  
 (b) 4 inches in diameter for softwood trees measured at 48" above grade; and  
(2)  All coniferous trees greater than 6 feet in height; and 

 (3)  All significant trees (excluding noxious trees). 
 

B.  A written inventory of all trees included in the tree preservation plan map by type, size, and species and an 
indication of the trees that would be at risk or will be lost to grading and construction activities. 

 

 C.  The tree preservation plan shall show how the remaining trees will be protected. 
 

NOW THEREFORE, IT IS HEREBY RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF GREENWOOD: 
1. The city council finds that the above title and summary of ordinance 255 clearly informs the public of intent and effect 

of the ordinance. 
2. The city clerk is directed to publish ordinance 255 by title and summary, pursuant to Minnesota statutes, section 

412.191, subdivision 4. 
3. A full copy of the ordinance is available at the Greenwood city office, 20225 Cottagewood Road, Deephaven, MN 

55331. 
 

ADOPTED by the city council of the city of Greenwood, Minnesota this ___ day of _____________, 2016. 
 
____ AYES   ____ NAYS  
 
CITY OF GREENWOOD 
 
By: _____________________________________ Attest: __________________________________ 
Debra J. Kind, Mayor     Dana H. Young, City Clerk 
 
CITY OF GREENWOOD 
Debra J. Kind, Mayor 
Attest: Dana H. Young, City Clerk 
First reading: May 4, 2016 
Second reading: ________, 2016 
Publication: ________, 2016 



  www.greenwoodmn.com

	

Agenda Number: 6B 

Agenda Date: 06-01-16 
Prepared by Zoning Administrator Dale Cooney 

 
 

Agenda Item: Consider Variance Request, Damian and Jennifer Novak, 20870 St Albans Green. 

Summary:	Damian and Jennifer Novak, homeowners at 20870 St Albans Green, are seeking a variance from the side 
yard setback requirements to build an addition onto their existing house. 
 
 Front 

Setback 
North 

Setback 
West 

Setback 
East Side 
Setback 

Impervious 
Surface 

Area 
Volume 

Principal 
Structure 

Height 
Permitted/Required 30 15’ 35’ 15’ 30% 113,950	cf 28’ 

Existing 36’-6” 15’ 39’ 17’-1” 21.5% unknown unknown  
Proposed 36’-6” 10’-1” 39’ 17’-1” 21.6% 73,653 cf 25’  

 
The proposal would expand the existing house by adding a 413 square foot addition. The home expansion would 
encroach 4 feet, 11 inches into the north setback. 
 
While it can be debated whether or not this should be considered a side setback, the west yard meets the rear yard 
setback. The location of the house suggests the north setback was given the side yard setback when the house was 
constructed. 
 
Section 1120:15 of the Zoning Ordinance requires a minimum side yard setback of 15 feet. The applicant proposes a 
side yard setback of 10 feet, 1 inch for the proposed home addition. The proposal requires a variance of 4 feet, 11 inches 
from the side yard setback. 

The existing home was built at an angle. The proposed addition starts 15 feet off of the property line, but because of how 
the house is angled, the addition gradually encroaches into the setback. If the house were originally built parallel to the 
property line, a variance would not be required. 

The location of the addition is logical, based on the topography of the lot and the shape of the existing home. Placement 
of a similar sized addition on any other part of the property would encounter similar setback issues or face significant 
challenges based on topography. Further, it is the opinion of staff that due to the steep grade on the adjacent lot to the 
north, the encroachment will have minimal impacts on the neighboring property. 
 
The addition is built over partially over existing hardcover, and some hardcover will be removed as a part of this project. 
Therefore, the project would only increase hardcover on the property 33 square feet. (The planning commission requested 
updated hardcover calculations as a condition of approval. The survey included in this application is an updated version 
submitted by the applicant in an effort to meet the planning commission’s request.) The proposal is otherwise zoning code 
compliant in terms of height, structure volume, grading and tree preservation. 
 
Staff Recommendation: 
Staff recommends approval of the variance request of Damian and Jennifer Novak to encroach 4 feet, 11 inches from the 
minimum required side yard setback for the proposed home addition at  20870 St Albans Green, as presented.  
 
Staff findings, based on the practical difficulty standards found in city code section 1155.10:  

1. The variance, if granted, will be in harmony and keeping with the spirit and intent of the zoning ordinance 
because: The purpose and intent of the ordinance is to allow the orderly development and redevelopment of 
property within the city and when the ordinance standards cannot be met, it outlines the procedures to vary from 
these standards. The applicant is seeking to vary from the setback  standards in order to complete an otherwise 
reasonably sized and zoning code compliant home addition that would not be possible due to the angle of the 
existing home, and the grading and layout of the lot. 
 
 
 
 



  www.greenwoodmn.com

	

2. The variance, if granted, will be consistent with the comprehensive plan’s guiding use for the subject property in 
the applicable zoning because of the character of the proposed use is consistent with the applicable zoning. 

 
3. Though the property owner's proposed manner of use of the property is not permitted by the zoning ordinance 

without a variance, the proposed manner of use is reasonable because: it maintains the single family nature of the 
property at a scope and scale consistent with the zoning standards. The addition is a relatively modest expansion 
and well below the allowable building volume limits for a property of this size. 
 

4. The plight of the landowner-applicant is due to circumstances unique to the property and not created by the 
landowner because: The existing home was built at an angle. If the house were originally built parallel to the 
property line, a variance would not be required. Placement of a similar sized addition on any other part of the 
property would encounter similar setback issues or face significant challenges based on topography. 
 

5. The variance, if granted, will not alter the essential character of the locality, because: the proposed expansion 
would remain consistent with the scope and scale of the surrounding properties. 
 

6. The variance, if granted, will not: 
a. Impair an adequate supply of light and air to adjacent property; 
b. Unreasonably increase the congestion in the public street; 
c. Increase the danger of fire or endanger the public safety; or 
d. Unreasonably diminish or impair established property values within the neighborhood or in any way be 

contrary to the intent of this ordinance. 
 
Planning Commission Recommendation: Motion by Bechtell to recommend that the city council approve the variance 
request as proposed, based on the findings of staff with the condition that the hardcover calculations be revised to 
accurately reflect what the city considers hardcover. Motion was seconded by Reeder. Motion carried 5-0. 

Key Dates: April 27, 2016 Application complete  
 May 5, 2016 Notice of Public Hearing published   
 May 18, 2016 Planning Commission Public Hearing 
 June 1, 2016 City Council Consideration    
 June 26, 2016 60-Day Deadline     
 August 25, 2016 120-Day Deadline (if necessary)   
 
City Council Action: The city council must take action by 06-01-16 unless the council decides to exercise the city’s 
option to take another 60 days to consider the request. Suggested motions … 
 
1. I move the city council adopts resolution 24-16 laying out the findings of fact approving the variance application of 

Damian and Jennifer Novak, 20870 St Albans Green as written. I further move that the council directs the city clerk to 
mail a copy of the findings to the applicant and the DNR, and place an Affidavit of Mailing for each of the mailings in 
the property file.  

 
2. I move the city council adopts resolution 24-16 laying out the findings of fact approving the variance application of 

Damian and Jennifer Novak, 20870 St Albans Green with the following revisions: ________________.  
I further move that the council directs the city clerk to mail a copy of the findings to the applicant and the DNR, and 
place an Affidavit of Mailing for each of the mailings in the property file.  
 

3. I move the city council directs city staff to exercise the city’s option to take 60 additional days to process the variance 
application of Damian and Jennifer Novak, 20870 St Albans Green by mailing written notice and placing an Affidavit of 
Mailing in the property file. The written notice shall state the reason for the extension is: __________.   

 
 
Note: MN statue 15.99 requires a council decision within 60 days. The council may approve or modify a request based on verbal findings of fact and the 
applicant may proceed with their project. However, if the council denies the request, the council must state in writing the reasons for denial at the time 
that it denies the request. The council may extend the 60-day time limit by providing written notice to the applicant including the reason for the extension 
and its anticipated length (may not exceed 60 additional days unless approved by the applicant in writing). 
  



 
  



 

  



 
  



 



























PDF created with pdfFactory trial version www.pdffactory.com

http://www.pdffactory.com
http://www.pdffactory.com


 

Greenwood Resolution 24-16   |   Page 1 of 3 
 

RESOLUTION NO 24-16 
 

RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF GREENWOOD, MINNESOTA  
ACTING AS THE BOARD OF APPEALS & ADJUSTMENTS 

 
_________________________________________________________________________________________________ 

 
APPROVING  

 
IN RE: The application of Damian and Jennifer Novak, 20870 St Albans Green for a variance from  

Greenwood ordinance code section 1120.15 to encroach into the minimum side yard setback for the construction 
of a house addition. 

 
_________________________________________________________________________________________________ 

 
 
WHEREAS, Damian and Jennifer Novak, are the owners of property commonly known as 20870 St Albans Green, 
Greenwood, Minnesota 55331 (PID No. 26-117-23-44-0042) being real property in Hennepin County, Minnesota and 
legally described as follows: 
 
LOT 004, BLOCK 001, ST ALBANS GREEN 2ND ADDITION 
 
WHEREAS, application was made for a variance to section 1120.15 to permit construction of a home addition that 
encroaches into the minimum required side yard setback by 4 feet, 11 inches; and 
 
WHEREAS, notice of a public hearing was published, notice given to neighboring property owners, and a public hearing 
was held before the planning commission to consider the application; and 
 
WHEREAS, public comment was taken at the public hearing before the planning commission on May 18, 2016; and 
 
WHEREAS, the city council of the city of Greenwood has received the staff report, the recommendation of the planning 
commission, and considered the application, the comments of the applicant and the comments of the public. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, the city council of the city of Greenwood, Minnesota acting as the Board of Appeals & Adjustments 
does hereby make the following: 
 

FINDINGS OF FACT 
 

1. That the real property located at 20870 St Albans Green, Greenwood, Minnesota 55331 (PID No. 26-117-23-44-0042) 
is a single-family lot of record located within the R1A district. 

 
2. The applicant proposes to construct a home addition that encroaches into the minimum required side yard setback by 

4 feet, 11 inches. 
 
Greenwood ordinance code section 1120.15 states, “Subject to the provisions of section 1176 et seq., the following front, 
side, rear, and lake yard setbacks shall be considered as minimum standards for buildings: 

Land Use Front Yard Side Yard  

Exterior Side  
Yard   

(Corner Lot) Rear Yard  Lake Yard  

Single-Family Principal Structure 30 feet 15 feet 30 feet 35 feet 50 feet 

Municipal Park Equipment & Buildings 50 feet 50 feet 50 feet 50 feet Not Allowed 

Public & Private Utilities 50 feet 100 feet 50 feet 100 feet 100 feet 

Accessory Structures See section 1140.10 for Accessory Structures and Uses (primary and secondary) Setbacks 
and General Regulations 

 

 
3. Greenwood ordinance section 1155.10, subd 4, 5 & 6 states: 



 

Greenwood Resolution 24-16   |   Page 2 of 3 
 

“Subd. 4. Practical Difficulties Standard. “Practical difficulties,” as used in connection with the granting of a variance, 
means: 
 

(a) that the property owner proposes to use the property in a reasonable manner not permitted by the zoning 
ordinance; 

(b) the plight of the landowner is due to circumstances unique to the property and not created by the landowner; 
(c) and the variance, if granted, will not alter the essential character of the locality 
 
Economic considerations alone shall not constitute practical difficulties.  
 
Subd. 5. Findings. The board, in considering all requests for a variance, shall adopt findings addressing the following 
questions: 
 

(a) Is the variance in harmony with the purposes and intent of the ordinance? 
(b) Is the variance consistent with the comprehensive plan? 
(c) Does the proposal put property to use in a reasonable manner? 
(d) Are there unique circumstances to the property not created by the landowner? 
(e) Will the variance, if granted, alter the essential character of the locality? 
 
Subd. 6. Practical Difficulties Considerations. When determining reasonable manner or essential character, the board 
will consider, but will not be limited to, the following: 
 

(a) Impair an adequate supply of light and air to adjacent property.  
(b) Unreasonably increase the congestion in the public street.  
(c) Increase the danger of fire or endanger the public safety.  
(d) Unreasonably diminish or impair established property values within the neighborhood or in any way be contrary to 

the intent of this ordinance.” 
 

4. The applicant asserts that the proposed variance request complies with the practical difficulties standards in 
Greenwood ordinance section 1155.10, subd 4, 5, & 6. 
 

5. The planning commission discussed the variance request and on a 5-0 vote recommended the council accept the 
recommendation and findings of staff to approve the application of Damian and Jennifer Novak for the variance to 
encroach 4 feet, 11 inches into the minimum required side yard setback for the property located 20870 St Albans 
Green, as presented. The proposal meets the practical difficulties standards outlined in section 1155.10(4) in that: 
 
a) The variance, if granted, will be in harmony and keeping with the spirit and intent of the zoning ordinance because 
the applicant is seeking to vary from the setback standards in order to complete an otherwise reasonably sized and 
zoning code compliant home addition that would not be possible due to the angle of the existing home, and the 
grading and layout of the lot. 
  
b) The variance, if granted, will be consistent with the comprehensive plan’s guiding use for the subject property in the 
applicable zoning because of the character of the proposed use is consistent with the applicable zoning. 
 
c) Though the property owner's proposed manner of use of the property is not permitted by the zoning ordinance 
without a variance, the proposed manner of use is reasonable because: it maintains the single family nature of the 
property at a scope and scale consistent with the zoning standards. 
 
d) The plight of the landowner-applicant is due to circumstances unique to the property and not created by the 
landowner because the existing home was built on an angle; if the house were originally built parallel to the property 
line, a variance would not be required. Placement of a similar sized addition on any other part of the property would 
encounter similar setback issues or face significant challenges based on topography. 
 
e) The variance, if granted, will not alter the essential character of the locality, because: the proposed expansion 
would remain consistent with the scope and scale of the surrounding properties. 
 

6. Based on the foregoing, the city council determined that variance request: 
 

(a) Complies with the practical difficulties standards in Greenwood ordinance section 1155.10, subd 4, 5, & 6. 
 



 

Greenwood Resolution 24-16   |   Page 3 of 3 
 

And the city council has determined that the following conditions should be imposed on any variance grant: 
(a) The project must be completed according to the specifications and design requirements in the submitted plans. 
(b) A certified copy of this resolution shall be filed by the applicants with the Hennepin County Register of Titles and 

proof of filing provided to the city of Greenwood before any permits may issue or the project commence. 
 

7. Subject to the stated conditions, the variance, if granted, will be in harmony with the purpose and intent of the zoning 
ordinance and may be granted. 

 

CONCLUSIONS OF LAW 
 

Based upon the foregoing findings of fact, the city council acting as the Board of Appeals & Adjustments makes the 
following conclusions of law: 
 
The applicant has made an adequate demonstration of facts meeting the standards of section 1155.10 necessary for the 
grant of a variance and therefore: 
 
A.   A variance to section 1120.15 to encroach 4 feet, 11 inches into the minimum required side yard setback should be 

granted. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the city council of the city of Greenwood, Minnesota acting as the Board of 
Appeals & Adjustments: 
 
That the application of Damian and Jennifer Novak 20870 St Albans Green, Greenwood, Minnesota 55331 (PID No. 26-
117-23-44-0042) for: 
 
A.  A variance to section 1120.15 to encroach 4 feet, 11 inches into the minimum required side yard setback is 

APPROVED with the following conditions:  
 

(a) The project must be completed according to the specifications and design requirements in the submitted plans. 
(b) A certified copy of this resolution shall be filed by the applicants with the Hennepin County Register of Titles and 

proof of filing provided to the city of Greenwood before any permits may issue or the project commence. 
 

 
PASSED this ___ day of _______, 2016 by the city council of the city of Greenwood, Minnesota acting as the Board of 
Appeals & Adjustments for the city of Greenwood, Minnesota. 
 
 
___ AYES   ___ NAYS  
 
CITY OF GREENWOOD 
 
By: _____________________________________ Attest: __________________________________ 
Debra J. Kind, Mayor     Dana H. Young, City Clerk 
 



  www.greenwoodmn.com

	

	

Agenda Number: 8A 

Agenda Date: 06-01-16 

Prepared by Deb Kind 
 
 

Agenda Item: Consider Res 25-16, Authorizing Issuance and Sale of Charter School Lease Revenue Bonds 
for Main Street School of Performing Arts  
 
Summary: Jennifer Hansen, the Dorsey & Whitney attorney who represents Deephaven for conduit financing projects, 
contacted the Greenwood city clerk to see if Greenwood would be interested in a conduit financing opportunity for Main 
Street School of Performing Arts (MSSPA), currently located in Hopkins. MSSSP would like to relocate to the former 
Eagle Ridge Academy site at 7255 Flying Cloud Dr, Eden Prairie, MN 55344. The $8-$10 million project will be 
underwritten by Piper Jaffray. The terms would be the same as what would normally be done with Deephaven. The rate 
would 1/2 of 1 percent = $40,000 to $50,000 money to the city. There is no financial risk to the city. MSSPA would pay all 
of the costs including the city's costs for legal review. The city clerk recommends the city council appoint Jennifer Hansen 
to represent the city regarding conduit financing projects. The public hearing information was published by administrative 
action. The certification of the public hearing affidavit and other documents are attached in the full hard copy of the council 
packet and in the electronic packet available for viewing at www.greenwoodmn.com. In addition, hundreds of pages of 
other related documents are available for viewing at city hall.  
 
Representatives from Dorsey & Whitney, the Main Street School of Performing Arts, and the underwriter (Piper Jaffray)	
will be at the 06-01-16 city council meeting to answer questions. 
 
Council Action: Suggested motions for the public hearing ... 
 

1. I move the council adopts resolution 25-16, authorizing issuance and sale of charter school lease revenue bonds 
for Main Street School of Performing Arts, and directs the city clerk to complete a certification of minutes relating 
to the project. 

 
2. I move the city council appoints Jennifer Hansen of Dorsey Whitney as Greenwood's attorney representative for 

conduit financing projects. 



First Draft 
Friday, May 13, 2016 
 
 
  
 

 
BOND PURCHASE AGREEMENT 

 
 

BETWEEN 
 
 

CITY OF GREENWOOD, MINNESOTA, 
as Issuer, 

 
 

MAIN STREET SCHOOL OF PERFORMING ARTS, 
as Charter School, 

 
 

MAIN STREET SCHOOL OF PERFORMING ARTS ABC, 
as Company, 

 
 

AND 
 
 

PIPER JAFFRAY & CO.,  
acting on behalf of itself and as representative for Herbert J. Sims & Co. Inc.,  

as Underwriter 
 
 
 

Dated July ___, 2016 
 

Relating to: 
 

$_____ 
City of Greenwood, Minnesota 

Charter School Lease Revenue Bonds 
(Main Street School of Performing Arts Project) 

Series 2016A 

$____ 
City of Greenwood, Minnesota 

Taxable Charter School Lease Revenue Bonds 
(Main Street School of Performing Arts Project) 

Series 2016B 

 
  
 
This instrument drafted by: 
Barnes & Thornburg LLP (BWJ) 
225 South Sixth Street, Suite 2800 
Minneapolis, Minnesota 55402 



 

$______ 
City of Greenwood, Minnesota 

Charter School Lease Revenue Bonds 
(Main Street School of Performing Arts Project) 

Series 2016A 

$_____ 
City of Greenwood, Minnesota 

Taxable Charter School Lease Revenue Bonds 
(Main Street School of Performing Arts Project) 

Series 2016B 

 
 

BOND PURCHASE AGREEMENT 
 
 

July __, 2016 
 
 
Main Street School of Performing Arts ABC 
1320 Mainstreet 
Hopkins, Minnesota 55343 
 

City of Greenwood, Minnesota 
20225 Cottagewood Rd. 
Excelsior, Minnesota 55331 

Main Street School of Performing Arts 
1320 Mainstreet 
Hopkin, Minnesota 55343 

 

 
Ladies and Gentlemen: 
 
 The undersigned, Piper Jaffray & Co., Minneapolis, Minnesota, (the “Underwriter”) acting on its 
own behalf and as representative for Herbert J. Sims & Co. Inc., Bloomington, Minnesota, hereby offers 
to enter into this Bond Purchase Agreement (this “Bond Purchase Agreement”), dated as of the date 
above, with the City of Greenwood, Minnesota (the “Issuer”), as approved and agreed to by Main Street 
School of Performing Arts ABC (the “Company”), a Minnesota nonprofit corporation, and the Main 
Street School of Performing Arts (the “Charter School”), a Minnesota nonprofit corporation and public 
charter school, for the purchase by the Underwriter of the Series 2016 Bonds described below.  This offer 
is made subject to acceptance by the Issuer and agreement by the Company and the Charter School at or 
prior to ____ P.M., Central time, on July __, 2016, and upon such acceptance this Bond Purchase 
Agreement shall be in full force and effect in accordance with its terms and shall be binding upon the 
Issuer, the Company, the Charter School and the Underwriter.  If not so accepted, this Bond Purchase 
Agreement will be subject to withdrawal by the Underwriter upon notice delivered by the Underwriter to 
the Issuer, the Company and the Charter School at any time prior to the acceptance hereof by the Issuer, 
the Company and the Charter School. 
 

The Issuer, the Company, and the Charter School acknowledge and agree that (i) the purchase 
and sale of the Series 2016 Bonds pursuant to this Bond Purchase Agreement is an arm’s-length 
commercial transaction between the Issuer, the Company, the Charter School and the Underwriter, (ii) in 
connection with such transaction, the Underwriter is acting solely as a principal and not as an agent or a 
fiduciary of the Issuer, the Company, or the Charter School, (iii) the Underwriter has not assumed 
(individually or collectively) a fiduciary responsibility in favor of the Issuer, the Company, or the Charter 
School with respect to (a) the offering of the Series 2016 Bonds or the process leading thereto (whether or 
not the Underwriter has advised or is currently advising the Issuer, the Company, or the Charter School 
on other matters) or (b) any other obligation to the Issuer, the Company, or the Charter School except the 
obligations expressly set forth in this Bond Purchase Agreement, and (iv) the Issuer, the Company, and 
the Charter School have consulted with their own legal and other professional advisors to the extent they 
deemed appropriate in connection with the offering of the Series 2016 Bonds. 



 

2 
 

 
 1. Purchase and Sale.   
 
 Subject to the satisfaction by the Issuer, the Company, and the Charter School of the terms and 
conditions set forth in this Bond Purchase Agreement, subject also to the conditions precedent set forth in 
this Bond Purchase Agreement, and in reliance upon the representations herein set forth or incorporated 
by reference, the Issuer hereby agrees to sell to the Underwriter and the Underwriter hereby agrees to 
purchase from the Issuer, upon the terms and conditions set forth herein, the Issuer’s (i) Charter School 
Lease Revenue Bonds (Main Street School of Performing Arts Project), Series 2016A (the “Series 2016A 
Bonds”), in the original aggregate principal amount of $_____, and (ii) Taxable Charter School Lease 
Revenue Bonds (Main Street School of Performing Arts Project), Series 2016B (the “Series 2016B 
Bonds” and together with the Series 2016A Bonds, the “Series 2016 Bonds”), in the original aggregate 
principal amount of $____.  The Series 2016 Bonds are more fully described in Schedule I hereto and in 
the Indenture and the Official Statement each as hereinafter defined.  The proceeds of the Series 2016 
Bonds will be loaned by the Issuer to the Company pursuant to a Loan Agreement, dated as of August 1, 
2016 (the “Loan Agreement”), by and between the Issuer and the Company.  Proceeds derived from the 
sale of the Series 2016 Bonds will be used by the Company to: (i) finance the acquisition and 
improvement of an approximately 77,548 square foot existing school facility located at 7255 Flying 
Cloud Drive, in the City of Eden Prairie, Minnesota (the “Project”) to be owned by the Company and 
leased to the Charter School; (ii) fund the Reserve Fund in the amount of the Reserve Fund Requirement 
for the Series 2016 Bonds; (iii) fund capitalized interest on the Series 2016 Bonds; and (iv) pay the costs 
of issuance of the Series 2016 Bonds. The expenses of selling the Series 2016 Bonds shall be paid as 
provided in Section 8 hereof.   
 
 The Project will be owned by the Company and will be leased to and operated by the Charter 
School pursuant to a Lease Agreement, dated as of August 1, 2016 (the “Lease”), between the Company 
and the Charter School. 
 

The Series 2016 Bonds will be issued by the Issuer pursuant to the authority granted by the 
Constitution and laws of the State of Minnesota, including particularly Minnesota Statutes, 
Section 469.152 through 469.1655 and Section 471.656, as amended (the “Act”), and the terms of (i) a 
resolution of the governing body of the Issuer, adopted on _____ __, 2016 (the “Resolution”), and (ii) an 
Indenture of Trust, dated as of August 1, 2016 (the “Indenture”), between the Issuer and U.S. Bank 
National Association (the “Trustee”).  The City of Eden Prairie, Minnesota (the “Host City”) granted host 
approval to issue the Series 2016 Bonds pursuant to a resolution adopted on June 14, 2016.   

 
In connection with the issuance of the Series 2016 Bonds, the Charter School has entered into a 

Pledge and Covenant Agreement, dated as of August 1, 2016 (the “Pledge Agreement”), from the Charter 
School for the benefit of the Trustee, pursuant to which the Charter School will pledge certain of its 
revenues received from the State of Minnesota (the “State”) to the Trustee for payments on the Series 
2016 Bonds.  The Series 2016 Bonds will be secured by the Pledge Agreement and by a Combination 
Mortgage, Security Agreement, Assignment of Leases and Rents and Fixture Financing Statement, dated 
as of August 1, 2016 (the “Mortgage”), from the Company in favor of the Trustee.   

 
It is understood and agreed that the Series 2016 Bonds and the interest thereon are special, limited 

obligations of the Issuer payable solely from revenues provided by the Company, amounts paid by the 
Company pursuant to the Loan Agreement, amounts payable by the Charter School pursuant to the Lease 
and the Pledge Agreement and amounts held in various funds and accounts as provided in the Indenture 
and shall never constitute a general obligation indebtedness of the Issuer within the meaning of any state 
constitutional or statutory provision and do not give rise to a general or moral obligation of the Issuer, the 



 

3 
 

State, or any of its political subdivisions, and do not constitute a charge against the Issuer’s or the State’s 
general credit or taxing powers. 

 
 The Underwriter’s purchase price for the Series 2016A Bonds is $______ (which amount 
represents the principal amount of the Series 2016A Bonds ($_____), plus an original issue premium of 
$_____, less the Underwriter’s discount of $_______).  The Underwriter’s purchase price for the Series 
2016B Bonds is $_____ (which amount represents the principal amount of the Series 2016B Bonds 
($______), less the Underwriter’s discount of $______). 
 
 2. Official Statement. 
 
 (a) The Issuer, the Charter School, and the Company hereby ratify and consent to the use by 
the Underwriter of the Preliminary Official Statement, dated July ___, 2016 relating to the Series 2016 
Bonds (the “Preliminary Official Statement”), and the Official Statement, to be dated on or about August 
____, 2016, relating to the Series 2016 Bonds (the “Official Statement”), in connection with the sale of 
the Series 2016 Bonds.  The Charter School shall deliver or cause to be delivered to the Underwriter, 
promptly upon the completion thereof, copies of the Official Statement.  In connection with the offering 
and sale of the Series 2016 Bonds, the Issuer, the Company, and the Charter School authorize the use by 
the Underwriter of copies of the Official Statement with respect to the Series 2016 Bonds, together with 
copies of the Resolution, the Indenture, the Loan Agreement, the Mortgage, the Lease, the Pledge 
Agreement, and the other documents described therein.   
 
 (b) The Company and the Charter School, on behalf of themselves and any other “issuers” 
within the meaning of Rule 15c2-12 of the Securities and Exchange Commission under the Securities 
Exchange Act of 1934, as amended (the “Rule”), agree to deliver to the Underwriter, at such address as 
the Underwriter shall specify, as many copies of the Preliminary Official Statement and Official 
Statement as the Underwriter shall reasonably request as necessary to comply with paragraph (b)(4) of the 
Rule and with Rule G-32 of the Municipal Securities Rulemaking Board (the “MSRB”) and all other 
applicable rules of the MSRB.  The Company and the Charter School agree to deliver such Official 
Statement within seven (7) business days after the date of this Bond Purchase Agreement. 
 
 (c) The Underwriter agrees that it shall send or cause to be sent no later than the next 
business day, by first class mail or other equally prompt means, to any potential customer, on request, one 
or more copies of the Official Statement, as most recently supplemented or amended (if any). 
 
 (d) The Underwriter agrees from the time the Official Statement becomes available until the 
earlier of (i) ninety (90) days from the end of the underwriting period, or (ii) the time when the Official 
Statement is available to any person from a nationally recognized municipal securities information 
repository, but in no case less than twenty-five (25) days following the end of the underwriting period, the 
Underwriter shall send or cause to be sent no later than the next business day, by first class mail or other 
equally prompt means to any potential customer, on request, at least one copy of the Official Statement. 
 
 3. Issuer’s Lack of Participation.  The Company, the Charter School and the Underwriter 
acknowledge that the Issuer assumes no responsibility for the sufficiency, accuracy or completeness of 
the Preliminary Official Statement or the Official Statement (other than with respect to information 
provided under the captions “THE ISSUER” and “ABSENCE OF LITIGATION – Issuer,” as it relates to 
the Issuer).  It is further understood and agreed that no obligations of the Issuer contained in this Bond 
Purchase Agreement shall give rise to any pecuniary liability of the Issuer. 
 



 

4 
 

 4. Representations. 
 
 (a) The Issuer represents to and agrees with the Underwriter as follows:   
 
  (i) The statements and information contained in the Official Statement with respect 

to the Issuer under the captions “THE ISSUER” and “ABSENCE OF LITIGATION – The 
Issuer” (together, the “Issuer Portion” of the Official Statement) in the Official Statement are, and 
as of the date of Closing (as defined in Section 5 below), will be, true and correct in all material 
respects.  

 
  (ii) The Issuer is a municipal corporation, and political subdivision of the State.   
 
  (iii) The execution and delivery of this Bond Purchase Agreement does not, and the 

adoption of the Resolution and the execution and delivery of the Series 2016 Bonds, the Loan 
Agreement, and the Indenture, and compliance with the provisions of each of them, under the 
circumstances contemplated thereby, will not, in any material respect, conflict with or constitute 
on the part of the Issuer a breach of or default under any other agreement or instrument to which 
the Issuer is a party or any existing law, administrative regulation, court order or consent decree 
to which the Issuer is subject. 

 
  (iv) So long as any of the Series 2016 Bonds remain outstanding and except as may 

be authorized by the Resolution, the Loan Agreement or the Indenture, the Issuer will not issue or 
sell any bonds or other obligations, other than the Series 2016 Bonds, the interest and premium, if 
any, or principal of which will be payable from the amounts derived by the Issuer from the 
Company pursuant to the Loan Agreement and will not pledge the Loan Agreement or the 
payments to be made thereunder other than to the payment of the Series 2016 Bonds and the 
interest thereon.  

 
  (v) No litigation is pending or threatened against the Issuer, to the knowledge of the 

Issuer, (a) seeking to restrain or enjoin the issuance or delivery of any of the Series 2016 Bonds 
or the application of proceeds of the Series 2016 Bonds or the collection of revenues or other 
security pledged under the Indenture or the Resolution, (b) in any way contesting or affecting any 
authority for the issuance of the Series 2016 Bonds or the validity of the Series 2016 Bonds, the 
Indenture, the Loan Agreement, the Resolution or this Bond Purchase Agreement, or (c) in any 
way contesting the existence or powers of the Issuer. 

 
  (vi) The Issuer Portion of the Preliminary Official Statement was, as of its date, and 

is, as of this date, “final” within the meaning of paragraph (b)(1) of the Rule. 
 
 (b) The Company represents and agrees with the Underwriter as follows: 
 

 (i) The Company approves the distribution and use of the Preliminary Official 
Statement and the Official Statement.  The statements and the information with respect to the 
Company, the Project, and the Company Documents (defined below) set forth and incorporated 
by reference in the Preliminary Official Statement and the Company’s participation in the 
transactions contemplated by (a) the Loan Agreement, (b) this Bond Purchase Agreement, (c) the 
Lease, (d) the Continuing Disclosure Agreement, dated as of August 1, 2016 (the “Disclosure 
Agreement”), by and among the Company, the Charter School, and the Trustee, as dissemination 
agent, (e) the Mortgage, (f) the Tax Agreement, dated August __, 2016 (the “Tax Agreement”), 
between the Company, the Charter School, and the Trustee, (g) the Subordination, Non-
Disturbance, and Attornment Agreement, dated as of August 1, 2016 (the “SNDA”), between the 



 

5 
 

Company, the Charter School and the Trustee, (h) the Assignment of Lease, dated as of August 1, 
2016 (the “Assignment of Lease”), from the Company to the Trustee, (i) the Intercreditor 
Agreement, dated as of August 1, 2016 (the “Intercreditor Agreement”), between the Company, 
the Charter School, the Trustee, and ___________, as line of credit provider, and (j) the 
Disbursing Agreement, dated as of August 1, 2016 (the “Disbursing Agreement”), between 
Commercial Partners Title, LLC, as disbursing agent, the Company, and the Trustee (collectively, 
the documents listed in (a)-(j) are referred to as the “Company Documents”), are true and correct 
and all such statements and information set forth in the Official Statement with respect to the 
Company, the Project, and the Company Documents as of Closing will be true and correct in all 
material respects and the Preliminary Official Statement with respect to the Company and the 
Company Documents does not and the Official Statement with respect to the Company and the 
Company Documents will not contain any untrue or misleading statement of a material fact or 
omit to state any material fact necessary to make the statement therein, in light of the 
circumstances under which it is made, not misleading. 

 
  (ii) If, at any time prior to the earlier of (A) receipt of notice from the Underwriter 

that the Official Statement is no longer required to be delivered under the Rule, or (B) ninety (90) 
days after the Closing, any event occurs known to the Company (or which should have been 
known to the Company upon diligent inquiry) as a result of which the Preliminary Official 
Statement or the Official Statement with respect to the Company, the Project, and the Company 
Documents, as then amended or supplemented, might include an untrue statement of a material 
fact, or omit to state any material fact necessary to make the statements therein, in light of the 
circumstances under which they are made, not misleading, the Company shall promptly notify the 
Underwriter thereof in writing.  Upon the request of the Underwriter, the Company shall prepare 
and deliver to the Underwriter, at the expense of the Company (including attorneys’ fees), as 
many copies of an amendment or supplement to the Preliminary Official Statement or the Official 
Statement which will correct any untrue statement or omission therein as the Underwriter may 
reasonably request.  

 
  (iii) The Company is duly organized and existing as a nonprofit corporation under the 

laws of the State and the Company has full legal right, power and authority to enter into the 
Company Documents, and to carry out and consummate all transactions contemplated by such 
documents.  

 
  (iv) The execution and delivery of this Bond Purchase Agreement does not, and the 

execution and delivery of the Company Documents and compliance with the provisions of each 
of them, under the circumstances contemplated thereby, does not and will not conflict with or 
constitute on the part of the Company a breach of or default under any other agreement or 
instrument to which the Company is a party or to the Company’s knowledge, any existing law, 
administrative regulation, court order or consent decree to which the Company is subject. 

 
  (v) All approvals, consents and orders of any governmental authority, board, agency, 

council, commission or other body in or of any state and the federal government having 
jurisdiction which would constitute a condition precedent to the performance by the Company of 
its obligations hereunder and under the other Company Documents have been obtained or, if not, 
will be obtained at the time of or prior to the Closing (provided no representation or warranty is 
expressed as to any action required under federal or state securities or Blue Sky laws in 
connection with the placement of the Series 2016 Bonds by the Underwriter). 

 
  (vi) This Bond Purchase Agreement does, and the other Company Documents, when 

each of them has been executed and delivered by the Company, will, assuming due authorization, 



 

6 
 

execution and delivery by the other parties thereto, each, constitute a valid and binding obligation 
of the Company, enforceable in accordance with its respective terms, subject to any applicable 
bankruptcy, insolvency or other laws affecting creditors’ rights or remedies heretofore or 
hereafter enacted.   

 
  (vii) To the knowledge of the Company, no litigation is pending or threatened 

(A) seeking to restrain or enjoin the issuance or delivery of the Series 2016 Bonds or the 
application of proceeds of the Series 2016 Bonds as provided in the Indenture and the Loan 
Agreement or the collection of revenues pledged under the Indenture, (B) in any way contesting 
or affecting any authority for the issuance of the Series 2016 Bonds or the validity of the Series 
2016 Bonds, or any other Company Documents, or (C) in any way affecting, in a material adverse 
manner, the property of the Company or contesting the existence or powers of the Company.  

 
  (viii) The Preliminary Official Statement was, as of its date, “final” within the meaning 

of (b)(1) of the Rule. 
 
  (ix) The Company has not been in default as to principal or interest with respect to 

any obligation issued by or guaranteed by the Company or with respect to which the Company is 
an obligor.  

 
  (x) The Company is an organization described in Section 501(c)(3) of the Internal 

Revenue Code of 1986, as amended (the “Code”), or corresponding provisions of prior law, and 
is exempt from federal income taxes under Section 501(a) of the Code, except for unrelated 
business income (if any), which will be subject to taxation under Section 511 of the Code. 

 
  (c) The Charter School represents to and agrees with the Underwriter as follows:  
 

 (i) The Charter School approves the distribution and use of the Preliminary Official 
Statement and Official Statement.  The statements and the information set forth and incorporated 
by reference in the Preliminary Official Statement and the Charter School’s participation in the 
transactions contemplated by (a) this Bond Purchase Agreement, (b) the Lease, (c) the Disclosure 
Agreement, (d) the Pledge Agreement, (e) the Tax Agreement, (f) the Intercreditor Agreement, 
(g) the SNDA, and (h) the Account Control Agreement, dated as of August 1, 2016 (the “Account 
Control Agreement”), between the Charter School, the Trustee, and ________ (collectively, the 
documents listed in (a)-(h) are referred to as the “Charter School Documents”), are true and 
correct and all such statements and information set forth in the Official Statement as of Closing 
will be true and correct in all material respects and the Preliminary Official Statement does not 
and the Official Statement will not contain any untrue or misleading statement of a material fact 
or omit to state any material fact necessary to make the statement therein, in light of the 
circumstances under which it is made, not misleading. 

 
  (ii) If, at any time prior to the earlier of (A) receipt of notice from the Underwriter 

that the Official Statement is no longer required to be delivered under the Rule, or (B) ninety days 
after the Closing, any event occurs known to the Charter School (or which should have been 
known to the Charter School upon diligent inquiry) as a result of which the Preliminary Official 
Statement or the Official Statement as then amended or supplemented might include an untrue 
statement of a material fact, or omit to state any material fact necessary to make the statements 
therein, in light of the circumstances under which they are made, not misleading, the Charter 
School shall promptly notify the Underwriter thereof in writing.  Upon the request of the 
Underwriter, the Charter School shall prepare and deliver to the Underwriter, at the expense of 
the Charter School (including attorneys’ fees), as many copies of an amendment or supplement to 



 

7 
 

the Preliminary Official Statement or the Official Statement which will correct any untrue 
statement or omission therein as the Underwriter may reasonably request.  

 
  (iii) The Charter School is duly organized and existing as a nonprofit corporation and 

public charter school under the laws of the State and the Charter School has full legal right, power 
and authority to enter into the Charter School Documents, and to carry out and consummate all 
transactions contemplated by such documents. 

 
  (iv) The execution and delivery of this Bond Purchase Agreement does not, and the 

execution and delivery of the Charter School Documents and compliance with the provisions of 
each of them, under the circumstances contemplated thereby, does not and will not conflict with 
or constitute on the part of the Charter School a breach of or default under any other agreement or 
instrument to which the Charter School is a party or to the Charter School’s knowledge, any 
existing law, administrative regulation, court order or consent decree to which the Charter School 
is subject. 

 
  (v) All approvals, consents and orders of any governmental authority, board, agency, 

council, commission or other body in or of any state and the federal government having 
jurisdiction which would constitute a condition precedent to the performance by the Charter 
School of its obligations hereunder and under the other Charter School Documents have been 
obtained or, if not, will be obtained at the time of or prior to the Closing (provided no 
representation or warranty is expressed as to any action required under federal or state securities 
or Blue Sky laws in connection with the placement of the Series 2016 Bonds by the Underwriter). 

 
  (vi) This Bond Purchase Agreement does, and the other Charter School Documents, 

when each of them has been executed and delivered by the Charter School, will, assuming due 
authorization, execution and delivery by the other parties thereto, each, constitute a valid and 
binding obligation of the Charter School, enforceable in accordance with its respective terms, 
subject to any applicable bankruptcy, insolvency or other laws affecting creditors’ rights or 
remedies heretofore or hereafter enacted.   

 
  (vii) To the knowledge of the Charter School, no litigation is pending or threatened 

(A) seeking to restrain or enjoin the issuance or delivery of the Series 2016 Bonds or the 
application of proceeds of the Series 2016 Bonds as provided in the Indenture and the Loan 
Agreement or the collection of revenues pledged under the Indenture, (B) in any way contesting 
or affecting any authority for the issuance of the Series 2016 Bonds or the validity of the Series 
2016 Bonds, or any other Charter School Documents, or (C) in any way affecting, in a material 
adverse manner, the property of the Charter School or contesting the existence or powers of the 
Charter School.  

 
  (viii) The Preliminary Official Statement was, as of its date, “final” within the meaning 

of (b)(1) of the Rule. 
 
  (ix) The Charter School has not been in default as to principal or interest with respect 

to any obligation issued by or guaranteed by the Charter School (including the Charter School’s 
current lease of the Project) or with respect to which the Charter School is an obligor.  

 
  (x) The Charter School is an organization described in Section 501(c)(3) of the 

Code, or corresponding provisions of prior law, is exempt from federal income taxes under 
Section 501(a) of the Code, except for unrelated business income subject to taxation under 



 

8 
 

Section 511 of the Code, or that the Charter School’s operation of the Project does not result in 
unrelated business income. 

 
(d) The Underwriter represents to and agrees with the Issuer as follows: 

 
  (i) The Underwriter has all necessary power and authority to execute and deliver this 

Bond Purchase Agreement and to consummate all of the actions contemplated hereby. 
 
  (ii) The Underwriter is a registered broker-dealer qualified under federal and state 

securities laws to offer and sell the Series 2016 Bonds in those jurisdictions where the Series 
2016 Bonds will be offered or sold. 

 
  (iii) The Series 2016 Bonds to be sold to the initial purchasers pursuant to this Bond 

Purchase Agreement shall be in minimum denominations of $5,000 or any $5,000 multiple in 
excess thereof (each an “Authorized Denomination”). 

 
(iv) In the course of selling the Series 2016 Bonds, the Underwriter shall comply with 

the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the rules and regulations promulgated thereunder, the rules 
of the National Association of Securities Dealers, Inc. and the rules of the MSRB. 

 
5. Closing.  At or before 12:00 P.M. Central time, on August ___, 2016 or such later date as 

we mutually agree upon (the “Closing” or the “Closing Date”), the Issuer will deliver or cause to be 
delivered to the Underwriter, at the offices of Dorsey & Whitney LLP, Minneapolis, Minnesota (“Bond 
Counsel”), or at such other place as we may mutually agree upon, through the facilities of The Depository 
Trust Company (“DTC”), the Series 2016 Bonds in definitive fully registered form, duly executed and 
authenticated.  In addition, the other documents hereinafter mentioned will be delivered to the offices of 
Bond Counsel, and the Underwriter will accept such delivery and cause the purchase price thereof to be 
paid in federal funds payable to the order of the Issuer or the order of such person as the Issuer shall direct 
and such funds shall be available to the Issuer on the date of Closing. 
 

The Series 2016 Bonds will be delivered as fully registered bonds in Authorized Denominations 
and registered in the name of Cede & Co., as nominee of DTC, and in such amounts as the Underwriter 
may have requested not less than five (5) business days prior to the Closing.  The Issuer will deposit with 
the Trustee, as agent to DTC (or such other acceptable depository institution), any or all of the Series 
2016 Bonds, registered in such name or names as the Underwriter may request.   
 

It is anticipated that CUSIP identification numbers will be printed on the Series 2016 Bonds, but 
neither the failure to print such numbers on any Bond nor any error in the printing of such numbers shall 
constitute cause for a failure or refusal by the Underwriter to accept delivery of and pay for any Series 
2016 Bonds.  The Underwriter and the Issuer will cooperate with the Company and Charter School to 
obtain the CUSIP numbers.  Simultaneously with the delivery of the Series 2016 Bonds, the Issuer shall 
cause to be delivered to the Underwriter opinions of Bond Counsel dated the date of Closing as provided 
in Section 6(d)(i) below. 
 
 6. Conditions Precedent.  The Underwriter has entered into this Bond Purchase Agreement 
in reliance upon: (i) the representations, warranties and agreements of the Issuer contained in this Bond 
Purchase Agreement and in the Indenture, the Loan Agreement, and the Resolution; (ii) the 
representations, warranties and agreements of the Company contained in this Bond Purchase Agreement 
and in the other Company Documents; (iii) the representations, warranties and agreements of the Charter 
School contained in this Bond Purchase Agreement and in the other Charter School Documents; and 
(iv) the performance by the Issuer, the Company, and the Charter School of their obligations under this 



 

9 
 

Bond Purchase Agreement, if any, and under the above-mentioned documents, both as of the date hereof 
and as of the date of the Closing.  The Underwriter’s obligation under this Bond Purchase Agreement is 
and shall be subject to the following further conditions:   
 

 (a) The representations and warranties of the Issuer, the Company, and the Charter 
School contained herein shall be true, complete and correct on the date of acceptance hereof and 
on and as of the date of the Closing with the same effect as if made on the date of the Closing.   
 
 (b) At the time of the Closing, the Official Statement, the Resolution, the Indenture, 
the Loan Agreement, the Mortgage, the Lease, the Pledge Agreement, the Account Control 
Agreement, the Tax Agreement, the Intercreditor Agreement, the Assignment of Lease, the 
SNDA, the Disbursing Agreement, and the Disclosure Agreement, shall be in full force and 
effect, shall each be in form and substance acceptable to the Underwriter in all respects, and shall 
not have been amended, modified or supplemented except as may have been agreed to in writing 
by the Underwriter; the Issuer shall have duly adopted and there shall be in full force and effect 
such Resolution, and entered into such agreements, as, in the opinion of Bond Counsel and in the 
opinion of Barnes & Thornburg LLP, counsel to the Underwriter (the “Underwriter’s Counsel”), 
shall be necessary in connection with the transactions contemplated hereby or the documentation 
of security for the Series 2016 Bonds.   
 
 (c) The Underwriter may terminate this Bond Purchase Agreement by notification in 
writing to the Issuer, the Company and the Charter School if at any time subsequent to the date 
hereof and at or prior to the Closing:  (A) legislation shall be enacted by, or favorably reported 
out of committee to, either House of the Congress of the United States of America, or a decision 
by a court of the United States of America shall be rendered, or a regulation or ruling shall be 
issued or proposed by or on behalf of the Treasury Department, the Internal Revenue Service of 
the United States, or any other agency of the Federal government having jurisdiction, or a release 
or official statement shall be issued by the Treasury Department, the Internal Revenue Service of 
the United States, or any other agency of the Federal government having jurisdiction, with respect 
to Federal taxation upon interest received on obligations of the character of the Series 2016A 
Bonds, which, in the reasonable judgment of the Underwriter, adversely affects the market for the 
Series 2016A Bonds or the sale, at the contemplated offering prices, by the Underwriter of the 
Series 2016A Bonds; or (B) a stop order, ruling, regulation, proposed regulation or statement by 
or on behalf of the Securities and Exchange Commission is issued or made to the effect that the 
issuance, offering, sale or distribution of obligations of the character of the Series 2016 Bonds is 
in violation of any provisions of the Securities Act of 1933, as amended (the “1933 Act”), or of 
the Trust Indenture Act of 1939, as amended (the “1939 Act”); or (C) the Congress of the United 
States of America shall enact a law, or a bill is favorably reported out of committee of either 
House, or a decision by a court of the United States of America is rendered, or a ruling, 
regulation, proposed regulation or statement by or on behalf of the Securities and Exchange 
Commission or any other agency of the Federal government having jurisdiction of the subject 
matter is made, to the effect that securities of the Issuer or of any similar public body are not 
exempt from the registration, qualification or other requirements of the 1933 Act or the 1939 Act; 
or (D) the United States of America becomes engaged in hostilities (other than those currently 
ongoing in Iraq and Afghanistan) that result in a declaration of war or a national emergency; or 
(E) there occurs a general suspension of trading on the New York Stock Exchange; or (F) a 
general banking moratorium is declared by the United States of America, State of New York or 
State authorities; or (G) an event occurs which in the judgment of the Underwriter (i) makes 
untrue or incorrect in any material respect, as of the time of such event, any statement or 
information contained in the Preliminary Official Statement or the Official Statement or which is 
not reflected in the Preliminary Official Statement or the Official Statement but should be 



 

10 
 

reflected therein in order to make the statements and information contained therein not 
misleading in any material respect and/or (ii) adversely affects the market for the Series 2016 
Bonds or the sale, at the contemplated offering prices, by the Underwriter of the Series 2016 
Bonds; or (H) all documentation in connection with the issuance of the Series 2016 Bonds is not 
satisfactory in form and substance to the Underwriter or the Underwriter’s Counsel; or (I) 
economic, market or other conditions occur or exist which, in the judgment of the Underwriter, 
render the Series 2016 Bonds incapable of being sold on terms acceptable to the Underwriter; or 
(J) the results of any due diligence efforts by the Underwriter with respect to the proposed 
issuance of the Series 2016 Bonds shall not, in the sole discretion of the Underwriter, be 
satisfactory to the Underwriter; or (K) any suit, proceeding, litigation or other action are 
commenced, or, if commenced prior to the date hereof, are continuing or have been adjudicated, 
which, in any event, in the reasonable judgment of the Underwriter, may affect the marketing, 
sale or delivery of the Series 2016 Bonds; or (L) the Underwriter, the Company, the Charter 
School and the Issuer have not reached agreement as to the terms of any of the agreements 
referred to in this Bond Purchase Agreement. 
 
 (d) At or prior to the Closing, the Underwriter shall have received the following 
documents (in each case with such changes as the Underwriter shall approve):   

 
  (i) The unqualified approving opinion of Bond Counsel, dated the date of 

the Closing, in form acceptable in all respects to the Underwriter, and a supplementary 
opinion of Bond Counsel addressed to the Underwriter, dated the date of the Closing, in 
form and substance satisfactory to the Underwriter;  

 
(ii) The opinion of Lindquist & Vennum PLLP, Minneapolis, Minnesota, 

Counsel to the Charter School and the Company, dated the date of Closing and addressed 
to the Issuer, the Trustee, Bond Counsel and the Underwriter, in customary form and in 
form and substance satisfactory to Bond Counsel, the Issuer, the Trustee and the 
Underwriter; 

 
  (iii) The opinion of Barnes & Thornburg LLP, as counsel to the Underwriter, 

in customary form and in form and substance satisfactory to the Underwriter;  
 

  (iv) A certificate of the Issuer, signed by the Mayor and City Clerk of the 
Issuer, or their designees, dated the date of the Closing, to the effect that: (A) the 
representations, warranties and agreements of the Issuer contained herein and in the 
Issuer’s Resolution, the Indenture and the Loan Agreement are true and correct in all 
material respects as of the date of the Closing; (B) no litigation is pending or threatened 
against the Issuer, to the knowledge of the Issuer, (1) seeking to restrain or enjoin the 
issuance or delivery of any of the Series 2016 Bonds or the collection of revenues or 
other security pledged under the Indenture or the Issuer’s Resolution, (2) in any way 
contesting or affecting any authority for the issuance of the Series 2016 Bonds or the 
validity of the Series 2016 Bonds, the Issuer’s Resolution, the Indenture, the Loan 
Agreement or this Bond Purchase Agreement, or (3) in any way contesting the existence 
or powers of the Issuer; and (C) the information in the Issuer Portion of the Official 
Statement is true and accurate in all material respects; 

 
(v) A certificate of the Company, signed by an authorized officer or 

authorized officers of the Company, dated the date of the Closing, to the effect that: 
(A) the representations, warranties and agreements of the Company contained in the 
Company Documents are true and correct in all material respects as of the date of the 



 

11 
 

Closing; (B) to the knowledge of the Company, no litigation is pending or threatened, 
(1) seeking to restrain or enjoin the issuance or delivery of any of the Series 2016 Bonds 
or the collection of revenues or other security pledged under the Indenture, (2) in any way 
contesting or affecting any authority for the issuance of the Series 2016 Bonds or the 
validity of the Series 2016 Bonds or any of the Company Documents, or (3) in any way 
contesting the existence or powers of the Company; (C) no event affecting the Company 
has occurred since the date of the Official Statement which should be disclosed in the 
Official Statement, for the purpose for which it is to be used or which should be disclosed 
therein in order to make the statements and information therein not misleading in any 
material respect; (D) the information in the Official Statement with respect to the 
Company and the Company Documents is true, accurate and complete in all material 
respects; (E) all resolutions and other actions required to be approved or taken by or on 
behalf of the Company authorizing and approving the transactions described or 
contemplated in this Bond Purchase Agreement or in the Official Statement, the 
execution of or approving of the respective forms of, as the case may be, the Company 
Documents and the Series 2016 Bonds have been duly approved by the Board of 
Governors of the Company, are in full force and effect and have not been modified, 
amended or repealed; (F) the Company has all necessary licenses, approvals, 
accreditations and permits presently required under federal, state and local laws to own 
its facilities; and (G) the Company is a nonprofit corporation organized and validly 
existing under the laws of the State with full power and authority to own its properties 
and conduct its business; 

 
  (vi) Certified copies of the Company’s resolutions or comparable actions of 

its Board of Governors (or a person’s actions at the authorization of the Board of 
Governors) authorizing the execution and delivery of the Company Documents and 
approving the Series 2016 Bonds and the Official Statement; 
 

  (vii) A certificate of the Charter School, signed by an authorized officer or 
authorized officers of the Charter School, dated the date of the Closing, to the effect that: 
(A) the representations, warranties and agreements of the Charter School contained 
herein and in the Charter School Documents are true and correct in all material respects 
as of the date of the Closing; (B) to the knowledge of the Charter School, no litigation is 
pending or threatened, (1) seeking to restrain or enjoin the issuance or delivery of any of 
the Series 2016 Bonds or the collection of revenues or other security pledged under the 
Indenture and the Pledge Agreement, (2) in any way contesting or affecting any authority 
for the issuance of the Series 2016 Bonds or the validity of the Series 2016 Bonds or any 
of the Charter School Documents, or (3) in any way contesting the existence or powers of 
the Charter School; (C) no event affecting the Charter School has occurred since the date 
of the Official Statement which should be disclosed in the Official Statement, for the 
purpose for which it is to be used or which should be disclosed therein in order to make 
the statements and information therein not misleading in any material respect; (D) the 
information in the Official Statement is true, accurate and complete in all material 
respects; (E) all resolutions and other actions required to be approved or taken by or on 
behalf of the Charter School authorizing and approving the transactions described or 
contemplated in this Bond Purchase Agreement or in the Official Statement, the 
execution of or approving of the respective forms of, as the case may be, the Charter 
School Documents and the Series 2016 Bonds have been duly approved by the Board of 
Directors of the Charter School, are in full force and effect and have not been modified, 
amended or repealed; (F) the Charter School has all necessary licenses, approvals, 
accreditations and permits presently required under federal, state and local laws to lease 



 

12 
 

and operate its facilities; and (G) the Charter School is a nonprofit corporation organized 
and validly existing under the laws of the State with full power and authority to conduct 
its business; 

 
  (viii) Certified copies of the Charter School’s resolutions or comparable 

actions of its Board of Directors authorizing the execution and delivery of the Charter 
School Documents and approving the Series 2016 Bonds and the Official Statement; 

 
  (ix) A title insurance policy, or commitment therefor, in a form satisfactory 

to the Underwriter;  
 

(x) An execution copy or other copy, certified to the Underwriter’s 
satisfaction as true and correct, of each of the following items: the Charter School 
Documents, the Indenture, the Resolution, the Charter School’s articles of incorporation, 
bylaws, and certificate of good standing in the State; 

 
(xi) Receipt of Certificates of Insurance acceptable to the Underwriter 

demonstrating that the Company has obtained the insurance policies required by the 
terms of the Loan Agreement; 

 
(xii) Receipt of Certificates of Insurance acceptable to the Underwriter 

demonstrating that the Charter School has obtained the insurance policies required by the 
terms of the Lease; and 

 
(xiii) Such additional legal opinions, certificates, proceedings, agreements, 

instruments and other documents as the Underwriter, Underwriter’s Counsel, or Bond 
Counsel may reasonably request to evidence compliance with any legal requirements, to 
provide such additional assurances as the Underwriter may request, the truth and 
accuracy, as of the time of Closing, of any representations given and the due performance 
or satisfaction at or prior to such time of all agreements then to be performed and all 
conditions then to be satisfied as conditions precedent to the issuance of the Series 2016 
Bonds.  

 
If the Issuer, the Company, or the Charter School shall be unable for any reason to satisfy the 

conditions of the Underwriter’s obligations contained in this Bond Purchase Agreement or if the 
Underwriter’s obligations shall be terminated for any reason permitted by this Bond Purchase Agreement, 
this Bond Purchase Agreement shall terminate and neither the Underwriter, the Issuer, the Company nor 
the Charter School shall have any further obligations or liability hereunder, except that the respective 
obligations of the Issuer, the Company, the Charter School and the Underwriter set forth in Section 8 
hereof shall continue in full force and effect.   
 
 7. Amendments to Official Statement.  After the date of the Official Statement and so 
long as the Underwriter is offering the Series 2016 Bonds which constitute the whole or a part of their 
unsold participations, the Issuer, the Company or the Charter School will (a) not adopt any amendment of 
or supplement to the Official Statement without the prior written consent of the Underwriter, and (b) 
during such period or for forty-five (45) days from the date of the Closing, whichever is earlier, if any 
event relating to or affecting the Official Statement shall occur as a result of which, in the reasonable 
judgment of the Underwriter, it is necessary to amend or supplement the Official Statement in order to 
make the Official Statement not misleading in the light of the circumstances existing at the time it is 
delivered to a purchaser, forthwith prepare and furnish to the Underwriter, at the expense of the Charter 
School, a reasonable number of copies of an amendment of or supplement to the Official Statement (in 



 

13 
 

form and substance satisfactory to Underwriter’s Counsel) which will amend or supplement the Official 
Statement so that it will not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a material fact 
necessary in order to make the statements therein, in the light of the circumstances existing at the time the 
Official Statement is delivered to a purchaser, not misleading.  For the purposes of, and during the period 
of time provided by this Section, the Issuer, the Company and the Charter School will furnish, or cause to 
be furnished, such information with respect to itself as the Underwriter may from time to time reasonably 
request.   
 
 8. Payment of Expenses.   
 
 (a) Upon and subject to the issuance, sale and delivery of the Series 2016 Bonds by the 
Issuer, the Company agrees to pay either directly or, to the extent permitted under federal tax law as 
determined by Bond Counsel, from the proceeds of the Series 2016 Bonds, all expenses and costs to 
effect the authorization, preparation, issuance, delivery and sale of the Series 2016 Bonds, the terms of 
which have all been previously agreed to and specified in separate agreements, including, without 
limitation, (i) the Underwriter’s discount of $_____ for the Series 2016A Bonds and $_____ for the Series 
2016B Bonds, (ii) miscellaneous out-of-pocket fees and expenses the Underwriter incurred with respect to 
the Series 2016 Bonds, (iii) the fees and disbursements of Bond Counsel, (iv) the fees and disbursements 
of counsel to the Company and the Charter School, (v) the fees and disbursements of counsel to the 
Company, (vi) the fees and disbursements of the Issuer and the Trustee, (vii) the fees and disbursements 
of Underwriter’s Counsel, (viii) the fees and expenses, if any, of Underwriter’s Counsel in connection 
with qualification of the Series 2016 Bonds for sale under any Blue Sky or other securities laws and 
regulations of various jurisdictions and preparation of any Blue Sky survey, (ix) the expenses and costs 
for the printing and distribution of the Series 2016 Bonds, the Preliminary Official Statement and the 
Official Statement, (x) the expenses and costs for photocopying the Preliminary Official Statement, the 
Official Statement, the Resolution, the Indenture, the Company Documents, the Charter School 
Documents and all other agreements and documents contemplated hereby, and (xi) the various other 
expenses and costs of Closing. 
 
 (b) If the Series 2016 Bonds are not issued and delivered by the Issuer to the Underwriter, as 
a result of the failure by the Company to perform any of its obligations under this Bond Purchase 
Agreement (other than a failure of the Underwriter to comply with its obligation set forth in Section 1 
hereof, if such obligation is not otherwise excused or terminated as provided herein) or as a result of the 
Company failing to reach agreement with the Underwriter as to the terms and conditions of the 
transactions and documents contemplated hereby, the Company agrees that it shall pay all expenses set 
forth in this Section 8.  In no event will the Issuer be obligated to pay any fees, costs or expenses relating 
to the issuance, sale and delivery of the Series 2016 Bonds.   
 
 (c) If the Series 2016 Bonds are not issued and delivered by the Issuer to the Underwriter, as 
a result of the failure by the Charter School to perform any of its obligations under this Bond Purchase 
Agreement (other than a failure of the Underwriter to comply with its obligation set forth in Section 1 
hereof, if such obligation is not otherwise excused or terminated as provided herein) or as a result of the 
Charter School failing to reach agreement with the Underwriter as to the terms and conditions of the 
transactions and documents contemplated hereby, the Charter School agrees that it shall pay all expenses 
of the Company as set forth in this Section 8.  In no event will the Issuer be obligated to pay any fees, 
costs or expenses relating to the issuance, sale and delivery of the Series 2016 Bonds. 
 



 

14 
 

 9. Rule 15c2-12 and Related Matters.  Each of the parties hereto agrees to reasonably 
cooperate with each other in order to carry out and comply with certain requirements of the Rule. 

 
The Underwriter has obtained and reviewed the Official Statement and, on the basis of such 

review, the Underwriter states that it has no reason to believe that the key representations contained 
therein are not truthful and complete (and in reaching such conclusion the Underwriter has relied upon 
(a)  the accuracy and completeness of the financial information of the Charter School included in the 
Official Statement; (b) the accuracy and completeness of the discussion under the heading “TAX 
MATTERS” in the Official Statement; and (c) the accuracy of all the other information furnished by the 
Company and the Charter School). 
 
 10. Indemnification.  The Charter School and Company agree to jointly and severally 
indemnify and hold harmless the Issuer and the Underwriter and each person, if any, who controls (as 
such term is defined in Section 15 of the 1933 Act) the Issuer or the Underwriter against any and all 
losses, claims, damages and liability (a) arising out of any allegations that any statement or information 
contained in the Preliminary Official Statement or the Official Statement that is untrue in any material 
respect or the omission therefrom of any statement which should be contained therein as of the date of the 
delivery of the Series 2016 Bonds to make the statements and information therein not misleading in any 
material respect, and (b) to the extent of the aggregate amount paid in settlement of any litigation 
commenced or threatened arising from a claim based upon any such untrue statement or omission if such 
settlement is effected with the written consent of the Charter School or the Company.  In case any claim 
shall be made or action brought against the Underwriter or the Issuer or any controlling person (as 
aforesaid) based upon the Preliminary Official Statement or the Official Statement, in respect of which 
indemnity may be sought against the Charter School or the Company, the person or persons seeking 
indemnity shall promptly notify the Charter School and the Company in writing setting forth the 
particulars of such claim or action and the Charter School and the Company shall jointly assume the 
defense thereof including the retention of counsel and the payment of all expenses.  The person or persons 
seeking indemnity or any such controlling person shall have the right to retain separate counsel in any 
such action and to participate in the defense thereof, but the fees and expenses of such counsel shall be at 
the expense of such person seeking such indemnity unless (i) the retention of such counsel has been 
specifically authorized by the Charter School and the Company or (ii) in the reasonable judgment of the 
person seeking such indemnity, such separate counsel is advisable by reason of any actual or potential 
conflict of interest or by reason of separate defenses.   
 
 To the same extent as the foregoing indemnity from the Company and the Charter School to the 
Issuer and the Underwriter, the Underwriter agrees to indemnify and hold harmless the Issuer, the Charter 
School, the Company, as applicable, and each person, if any, who controls (as such term is defined in 
Section 15 of the 1933 Act) the Issuer, the Company, the Charter School, as applicable, but only with 
reference to (a) the price and yield of the Series 2016 Bonds stated on the inside front cover of the 
Official Statement, (b) the optional redemption dates and prices for the Series 2016 Bonds, (c) the last 
paragraph of the cover of the Official Statement, (d) the information under the heading 
“UNDERWRITING” in the Official Statement, which information has been furnished by the Underwriter 
specifically for use in preparation thereof (collectively, the “Underwriter’s Portion”) and (e) allegations or 
determinations that the Underwriter has violated the agreement set forth in Section 4(c) hereof or the 1933 
Act, the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended, or any applicable state Blue Sky law in the offer 
or sale of the Series 2016 Bonds.  In case any such claim shall be presented in writing or any action shall 
be brought against the Issuer, the Company, or the Charter School, as applicable, with respect thereto, 
indemnity may be sought from the Underwriter on account of its agreement contained in this Section, the 
Underwriter shall have the rights and duties given to the Company and the Charter School in the above 
paragraph and the Issuer, the Company, and the Charter School, as applicable, shall have the rights and 
duties given by the above paragraph to the persons therein referred to as controlling persons.  In no case 



 

15 
 

shall the Underwriter be responsible for any amount in excess of the underwriting fee applicable to the 
Series 2016 Bonds purchased by it pursuant to this Bond Purchase Agreement.   
 

No recourse shall be had against the Underwriter for loss, damage, liability, cost or expense 
(whether direct, indirect or consequential) of the Issuer, the Company, or the Charter School arising out of 
or in defending, prosecuting, negotiating or responding to any inquiry, questionnaire, audit, suit, action, or 
other proceeding brought or received from the Internal Revenue Service in connection with the Series 
2016A Bonds or otherwise relating to the tax treatment of interest on the Series 2016A Bonds. 

 
The indemnities contained herein shall survive the Closing under the Bond Purchase Agreement 

and any investigation made by or on behalf of the Underwriter or the Issuer or any person who controls 
any of such parties of any matters described in or related to the transactions contemplated hereby and by 
the Official Statement, the Resolution, the Indenture, the Company Documents and the Charter School 
Documents. 
 
 The parties hereto shall not be liable to indemnify any person in any settlement of any action 
effected without its consent.  The parties hereto shall not be liable for any judgment if, as a result of the 
failure of the indemnified person to give notice of the commencement of a suit in respect of which 
indemnity shall be sought, the parties hereto are not provided sufficient notice to defend such suit. 
 
 11. Notices.  Any notice or other communication to be given to the Issuer, the Company or 
the Charter School under this Bond Purchase Agreement may be given by delivering the same in writing 
to the addresses set forth above, and any such notice or other communication to be given to the 
Underwriter may be given by delivering the same in writing to the Underwriter c/o Manager, Public 
Finance Department. 
 
 12. Benefit.  This Bond Purchase Agreement is made solely for the benefit of the Issuer, the 
Company, the Charter School and the Underwriter (including its successors or assigns), and no other 
person, partnership, association or corporation shall acquire or have any right hereunder or by virtue 
hereof.   
 
 13. Approval.  The approval of the Underwriter when required hereunder or the 
determination of its satisfaction as to any document referred to herein shall be in writing signed by the 
undersigned and delivered to the Company, the Charter School and the Issuer.   
 
 14. Governing Law; Counterparts.  This Bond Purchase Agreement shall be governed by 
the laws of the State and may be executed in several counterparts, each of which shall be regarded as an 
original and all of which shall constitute one and the same document.  
 
 15. Electronic Signatures.  The parties agree that the electronic signature of a party to this 
Bond Purchase Agreement shall be as valid as an original signature of such party and shall be effective to 
bind such party to this Bond Purchase Agreement.  For purposes hereof: (i) “electronic signature” means 
a manually signed original signature that is then transmitted by electronic means; and (ii) “transmitted by 
electronic means” means sent in the form of a facsimile or sent via the internet as a portable document 
format (“pdf”) or other replicating image attached to an electronic mail or internet message. 
 
 



 

S-1 
 

PIPER JAFFRAY & CO., on behalf of itself and as 
representative for Herbert J. Sims & Co. Inc. 
 
 
 
By:  ______________________________________ 
       Bruce E. Sorensen 
 
Its:  Managing Director 
 
 
 



 

S-2 
 

Approved and Agreed to: 
 

CITY OF GREENWOOD, MINNESOTA 
 
 
 
By:  _____________________________________ 
Its:  Mayor 
 
 
 
By:  _____________________________________ 
Its:  City Clerk 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 

(Signature page for the Main Street School of Performing Arts Bond Purchase Agreement) 



 

S-3 
 

Approved and Agreed to: 
 
MAIN STREET SCHOOL OF PERFORMING 
ARTS ABC,  

 
 

 
By:  _________________________________________ 
Its:   _________________________________________ 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 

(Signature page for the Main Street School of Performing Arts Bond Purchase Agreement) 
 



 

S-4 
 

Approved and Agreed to: 
 
MAIN STREET SCHOOL OF PERFORMING 
ARTS,  

 
 
 

By:  _________________________________________ 
Its:   _________________________________________ 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

(Signature page for the Main Street School of Performing Arts Bond Purchase Agreement) 
 



 

I-1 

SCHEDULE I 
 

MATURITY SCHEDULE FOR THE SERIES 2016 BONDS 
 

$_____ 
City of Greenwood, Minnesota 

Charter School Lease Revenue Bonds 
(Main Street School of Performing Arts Project) 

Series 2016A 
 
Dated: August __, 2016 

 
Maturity Date and Schedule of Series 2016A Bonds 
 
Term Bonds 
 

$_____ ____% Series 2016A Term Bond due July 1, 20___ 
Price of ____% to Yield ____% 

 
Redemption Date 

(July 1) 
 

Principal Amount 
   

  $ 
   
*   

_________________ 
* Stated Maturity.  

 
$_____ ____% Series 2016A Term Bond due July 1, 20___ 

Price of ____% to Yield ____% 
 

Redemption Date 
(July 1) 

 
Principal Amount 

   
  $ 
   
   
   
*   

_________________ 
* Stated Maturity.  

 
$_____ ____% Series 2016A Term Bond due July 1, 20___ 

Price of ____% to Yield ____% 
 

Redemption Date 
(July 1) 

 
Principal Amount 

   
  $ 
   
   
   
*   

_________________ 
* Stated Maturity.  

 
 



 

I-2 

Maturity Date and Schedule of Series 2016B Bonds 
 

$____ 
City of Greenwood, Minnesota 

Taxable Charter School Lease Revenue Bonds 
(Main Street School of Performing Arts Project) 

Series 2016B 
 
 

Maturity Date 
(July 1) 

 Principal 
Amount* 

 Interest 
Rate 

  
Yield 

  
Price 

         
20__  $       
20__         
20__         
20__         
20__         
20__         
20__         

 
 
Optional Redemption  
 

The Series 2016A Bonds maturing on or after July 1, 20___ are subject to optional redemption on July 1, 
20___ and any Business Day thereafter at the option of the Issuer, at the request of the Charter School, in whole or 
in part and in inverse order of maturity, and, if less than all of a maturity, then by lot within a maturity, at a 
redemption price equal to the principal amount of the Series 2016A Bonds to be redeemed, plus accrued interest to 
the date fixed for redemption.  

 
 The Series 2016B Bonds are not subject to optional redemption. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
10003048-43 (BWJ) 
3934447v2 





MSSPA – Main Street School of Performing Arts ISS – Issuer (City of Greenwood) PJC – Piper Jaffray (Underwriter) 
BWC – Borrower’s Counsel (L&V)  BC – Bond Counsel (D&W) UWC – Underwriter’s Counsel (B&T) 
BKDA – Beltz, Kes, Darling & Associates  LH – Local Host (City of Eden Prairie)  

 

 
The City of Greenwood, Minnesota 

Charter School Lease Revenue Bonds 
(Main Street School of Performing Arts Project) 

Series 2016  
 

Timetable as of 5/13/2016 
 

 
 

Date Action Responsible Party 

Week of April 18 
Discuss issuance with the Issuer PJC 
First draft of Financial Forecast distributed MSSPA, BKDA 

   

Week of April 25 
Due Diligence Request distributed UWC 
Begin submitting Due Diligence materials MSSPA 

   

Wednesday, April 27 Submission of materials to MDE for review and comment MSSPA 
   

Friday, April 29 Weekly Conference Call; 10:00 a.m. 
Call in #: 888 212-4616; Access code: 8259983468 

All 

   

Week of May 2 Continue submitting Due Diligence materials MSSPA 
   

Thursday, May 5 Notice of Greenwood Public Hearing to paper ISS 
   

Friday, May 6 Weekly Conference Call; 10:00 a.m. 
Call in #: 888 212-4616; Access code: 8259983468 

All 

   

Monday, May 9 First draft of Bond Documents distributed BC 
   

Thursday, May 12 Publish Notice of Greenwood Public Hearing  ISS 
   

Friday, May 13 
Weekly Conference Call; 10:00 a.m. 
Call in #: 888 212-4616; Access code: 8259983468 All 

First draft of POS distributed UWC 
   

Tuesday, May 17 First draft of Appendix A distributed MSSPA, BWC 
   

Thursday, May 19 Notice of Eden Prairie Public Hearing to paper LH 
   

Friday, May 20 
Weekly Conference Call; 10:00 a.m. 
Call in #: 888 212-4616; Access code: 8259983468 All 

   

Week of May 23 
Due Diligence Call PJC, MSSPA, UWC 
Comments due on Documents/POS/Appendix A/Forecast All 
Continue submitting Due Diligence materials MSSPA 

   

Thursday, May 19 Notice of Eden Prairie Public Hearing to paper LH 

S M T W T F S S M T W T F S S M T W T F S S M T W T F S

1 2 1 2 3 4 5 6 7 1 2 3 4 1 2

3 4 5 6 7 8 9 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 3 4 5 6 7 8 9

10 11 12 13 14 15 16 15 16 17 18 19 20 21 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 10 11 12 13 14 15 16

17 18 19 20 21 22 23 22 23 24 25 26 27 28 19 20 21 22 23 24 25 17 18 19 20 21 22 23

24 25 26 27 28 29 30 29 30 31 26 27 28 29 30  24 25 26 27 28 29 30

 31

MAY 2016 JUNE 2016 JULY 2016APRIL 2016



MSSPA – Main Street School of Performing Arts ISS – Issuer (City of Greenwood) PJC – Piper Jaffray (Underwriter) 
BWC – Borrower’s Counsel (L&V)  BC – Bond Counsel (D&W) UWC – Underwriter’s Counsel (B&T) 
BKDA – Beltz, Kes, Darling & Associates  LH – Local Host (City of Eden Prairie)  

 

Friday, May 20 
Weekly Conference Call; 10:00 a.m. 
Call in #: 888 212-4616; Access code: 8259983468 All 

   

Thursday, May 26 Publish Notice of Eden Prairie Public Hearing  LH 
   

Friday, May 27 Weekly Conference Call; 10:00 a.m. 
Call in #: 888 212-4616; Access code: 8259983468 

All 

   

Week of May 30 

Second draft of Financial Forecast distributed MSSPA, BKDA 
Second draft of Bond Documents distributed BC 
Second draft of Appendix A distributed MSSPA, BWC 
Second draft of POS distributed UWC 

   

Wednesday, June 1 Greenwood Public Hearing and Approval ISS 
   

Friday, June 3 
Weekly Conference Call; 10:00 a.m. 
Call in #: 888 212-4616; Access code: 8259983468 All 

   

Week of June 6 
Comments due on Documents/POS/Appendix A/Forecast All 
All requested Due Diligence material submitted/collected MSSPA, UWC 

   

Friday, June 10 
Weekly Conference Call; 10:00 a.m. 
Call in #: 888 212-4616; Access code: 8259983468 All 

   

Tuesday, June 14 Eden Prairie Public Hearing and Local Host Approval LH 
   

Friday, June 17 Weekly Conference Call; 10:00 a.m. 
Call in #: 888 212-4616; Access code: 8259983468 

All 

   

Week of June 20 
Finalize Documents BC, UWC 
Finalize Financial Forecast & 2016 Unaudited Financials MSSPA 

   

Thursday, June 23 Piper Jaffray Credit Committee PJC 
   

Friday, June 24 
Weekly Conference Call; 10:00 a.m. 
Call in #: 888 212-4616; Access code: 8259983468 

All 

   

Week of June 27 
Final Resolution considered by School & Building Company MSSPA 
Receive positive response from MDE on Review & Comment MSSPA 

   

Friday, July 1 
Weekly Conference Call; 10:00 a.m. 
Call in #: 888 212-4616; Access code: 8259983468 All 

   

Tuesday, July 6 Distribute final POS to market UWC, PJC 
   

Friday, July 8 Weekly Conference Call; 10:00 a.m. 
Call in #: 888 212-4616; Access code: 8259983468 

All 

   

Wednesday, July 13 Investor Presentation and Site Visit(s) PJC, MSSPA 
   

Tuesday, July 18 Pre-price Bonds PJC, MSSPA 
   

Wednesday, July 20 Price Bonds, Execute BPA PJC, MSSPA 
   

Friday, July 22 Final OS Distributed UWC 
   

Wednesday, July 27 
Pre-Closing All 
Finalize Settlement Statement/Invoices All 
Finalize Closing Flow of Funds PJC 

   

Thursday, July 28 Closing All 
 



 

RESOLUTION NO. 25-16 

RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE ISSUANCE AND SALE BY THE 
CITY OF ITS CHARTER SCHOOL LEASE REVENUE BONDS, 
SERIES 2016A AND SERIES 2016B (MAIN STREET SCHOOL OF 
PERFORMING ARTS PROJECT), AUTHORIZING EXECUTION OF 
DOCUMENTS RELATING TO SAID BONDS, AND AUTHORIZING 
OTHER ACTION TO BE TAKEN WITH RESPECT TO THE 
ISSUANCE, SALE AND DELIVERY OF SAID BONDS 

BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council (the “Council”) of the City of Greenwood, 
Minnesota (the “City”), as follows: 

Section 1.  Recitals. 

1.1. The City is authorized by Minnesota Statutes, Sections 469.152 through 469.165 
(the “Act”), to issue its revenue bonds to finance and refinance capital projects consisting of 
properties used and useful in connection with a revenue-producing enterprise. 

1.2. This Council has received a proposal that the City issue its revenue bonds in one 
or more series, pursuant to the Act, for the purpose of financing the cost of a proposed project on 
behalf of Main Street School of Performing Arts Affiliated Building Company, a Minnesota 
nonprofit corporation (the “Corporation”), consisting of (i) financing all or a portion of the 
acquisition, construction, reconstruction, improvement, betterment or extension of an 
approximately 77,548 square foot charter school facility (the “Facility”) located at 7255 Flying 
Cloud Drive in the City of Eden Prairie, Minnesota, to be owned by the Corporation and leased 
to and operated by Main Street School of Performing Arts (the “School”), a public charter school 
sponsored the University of St. Thomas; (ii) fund a debt service reserve fund; (iii) pay a portion 
of the capitalized interest on the Bonds; and (iv) pay all or a portion of the costs of issuing the 
Bonds (together, the “Project”). 

1.3. At a public hearing, duly noticed and held on the date hereof, in accordance with 
the Act and Section 147(f) of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, all parties who appeared at the 
hearing were given an opportunity to express their views with respect to the proposal to 
undertake the Project and interested persons were given the opportunity to submit written 
comments to the City Clerk before the time of the hearing.  Based on the public hearing, such 
written comments (if any) and such other facts and circumstances, as this Council deems 
relevant, this Council hereby finds, determines and declares as follows: 

(a) The welfare of the State of Minnesota requires the provision of necessary 
public education facilities at reasonable cost, and the State of Minnesota has encouraged 
local governmental units to act to provide such facilities.  Based on representations of the 
Corporation, the purpose of the Project and the effect thereof will be to retain and 
improve existing public school facilities available to residents of the City and 
surrounding areas, so that adequate public education opportunities are available to 
residents. 



2 

(b) The financing of the Project would further the general purposes 
contemplated and described in Section 469.152 of the Act.  Based on representations of 
the Corporation and the School, the Project constitutes a “project” authorized by the Act, 
and the Corporation is a “qualifying organization” under the Act. 

(c) The Project would further promote the public purposes and legislative 
objectives of the Act by providing public education facilities at the lowest possible cost in 
the City and surrounding area. 

(d) This Council has been advised by representatives of the Corporation that 
conventional, commercial financing to pay the cost of the Project is available only on a 
limited basis and at such high costs of borrowing that the economic feasibility of the 
Project would be significantly reduced from that resulting with the aid of municipal 
borrowing and its resulting lower borrowing cost. 

(e) This Council has also been advised by representatives of the Corporation 
that, on the basis of its discussions with potential buyers of tax-exempt bonds, revenue 
bonds of the City could be issued and sold upon favorable rates and terms to finance and 
refinance the Project. 

(f) The City is authorized by the Act to issue its revenue bonds to finance and 
refinance capital projects consisting of properties used and useful in connection with 
revenue-producing enterprises such as those of the Corporation, and the issuance of the 
Bonds by the City would be a substantial inducement to the Corporation to undertake the 
Project. 

(g) The City has been advised that the financing of the Project, the issuance 
and sale of the Bonds, the execution and delivery of the Loan Agreement, the Indenture 
and the Bond Purchase Agreement and the performance of all covenants and agreements 
of the City contained in the Bonds, the Loan Agreement, the Indenture and the Bond 
Purchase Agreement described hereinafter and of all other acts and things required under 
the Constitution and laws of the State of Minnesota to make the Loan Agreement, the 
Indenture, the Bond Purchase Agreement and the Bonds valid and binding special, 
limited obligations of the City in accordance with their terms are authorized by the Act. 

(h) At the request of the Corporation, it is proposed that the Bonds in an 
aggregate principal amount not to exceed $10,500,000 be issued by the City upon the 
terms set forth in the Indenture and as hereinafter set forth, under the provisions of which 
all of the City’s right, title and interest in the Loan Agreement and the payments 
thereunder (except for certain expenses and indemnification) will be pledged and 
assigned to the Trustee as security for the payment of principal of, premium, if any, and 
interest on the Bonds. 

(i) The Corporation will covenant and agree to charge the School rent in 
amounts sufficient to provide for prompt payment of the principal of, premium, if any, 
and interest on the Bonds when due, as well as additional amounts to establish, fund and 



3 

maintain a repair and replacement fund to be used by the Corporation solely for the 
purpose of making repairs, improvements and replacements with respect to the Project. 

(j) Under the provisions of the Act, and as provided in the Loan Agreement 
and Indenture, the Bonds are not to be payable from nor charged upon any funds of the 
City other than the revenues pledged to the payment thereof under the Indenture; the City 
is not subject to any pecuniary liability thereon; no holders of the Bonds shall ever have 
the right to compel any exercise of the taxing power of the City to pay any of the Bonds 
or the interest thereon, nor to enforce payment thereof against any property of the City, 
except the revenue, including payments under the Loan Agreement pledged to the 
payment thereof under the Indenture; the Bonds shall not constitute a charge, lien or 
encumbrance, legal or equitable, upon any property of the City, except the revenue, 
including payments under the Loan Agreement pledged to the payment thereof under the 
Indenture; and each Bond issued under the Indenture shall recite that the Bonds, 
including interest thereon, are payable solely from the revenue pledged to the payment 
thereof and that no Bond shall constitute a debt of the City within the meaning of any 
constitutional, statutory or charter limitation. 

Section 2.  Authorization of the Bonds; Form of Documents; Terms 

2.1. This Council hereby approves the Project and finds that the issuance and sale of 
its revenue bonds, to be designated Charter School Lease Revenue Bonds (Main Street School of 
Performing Arts Project), Series 2016A (the “Series 2016A Bonds”) and, presuming taxable 
bonds are required as determined by bond counsel, its Taxable Charter School Lease Revenue 
Bonds (Main Street School of Performing Arts Project), Series 2016B (the “Series 2016B 
Bonds,” and together with the Series 2016A Bonds, the “Bonds”), in an aggregate principal 
amount not to exceed $10,500,000, is in the best interest of the City, and the City hereby 
determines to issue and sell such Bonds. 

2.2. Drafts of the following documents relating to the Bonds (the “Bond Documents”) 
have now been presented to the City Council for review and shall be filed in the office of the 
City Clerk: 

(a) a Loan Agreement (the “Loan Agreement”) between the City and the 
Corporation (the “Loan Agreement”), whereby, pursuant to the provisions thereof, the 
City agrees to make a loan to the Corporation of the gross proceeds of sale of the Bonds 
and the Corporation agrees to complete the Project and to pay amounts in repayment of 
the loan sufficient to provide for the full and prompt payment of the principal of, 
premium, if any, and interest on the Bonds; and 

(b) an Indenture of Trust (the “Indenture of Trust”) between the City and U.S. 
Bank National Association, St. Paul, Minnesota, as trustee (the “Trustee”), which sets 
forth the terms of the Bonds and authorizes the issuance of and pledging certain revenues, 
including those to be derived from the Loan Agreement, as security for the Bonds, and 
setting forth proposed recitals, covenants and agreements relating thereto; and 



4 

(c) a Bond Purchase Agreement (the “Bond Purchase Agreement”) with 
respect to the Bonds proposed to be made and entered into between the City, the 
Corporation, the School, Piper Jaffray & Co. and Herbert J. Sims & Co., Inc. 
(collectively, the “Underwriters”). 

(d) a Preliminary Official Statement (the “Offering Document”) to be used in 
connection with the offer and sale of the Bonds by the Underwriters. 

2.3 It is acknowledged that the purchase price of the Bonds and the interest rates on 
the Bonds have not been determined as of this date and are not reflected in the forms of the Loan 
Agreement, the Indenture, the Bond Purchase Agreement or the Offering Document.  The City 
Clerk is hereby authorized to approve: 

(a) the purchase price of each series of the Bonds; 

(b) the initial reoffering prices of each series of the Bonds; 

(c) the provisions for redemption of each series of the Bonds; and 

(d) the interest rates borne by each series of the Bonds; provided that the 
interest rate on the Series 2016A Bonds shall not exceed 8.00% per annum and on the 
Series 2016B Bonds shall not exceed 8.00% per annum.  

Such approval shall be conclusively evidenced by the execution of the Bond Purchase 
Agreement by the officer or officers hereinafter authorized to execute the Bond Purchase 
Agreement on behalf of the City. 

Section 3.  Approval and Execution of Documents. 

3.1. The forms of the Loan Agreement, the Indenture and the Bond Purchase 
Agreement referred to in Section 2.2 are approved.  The Bond Purchase Agreement as so 
approved, with such variations, insertions and additions as the Mayor and City Clerk may 
hereafter deem appropriate, is directed to be executed forthwith in the name and on behalf of the 
City by the Mayor and the City Clerk following the execution thereof by the Corporation and the 
Underwriter.  The Loan Agreement as so approved, with such variations, insertions and additions 
as the Mayor and City Clerk may hereafter deem appropriate, is directed to be executed in the 
name and on behalf of the City by the Mayor and City Clerk upon execution thereof by the 
Corporation.  The Indenture as so approved, with such variations, insertions and additions as the 
Mayor and City Clerk may hereafter deem appropriate, is directed to be executed in the name 
and on behalf of the City by the Mayor and the City Clerk and delivered to the Trustee.  Copies 
of all the documents shall be delivered, filed or recorded as provided therein, subject to Section 
5.3 of this resolution.  The Mayor and the City Clerk are also authorized and directed to execute 
such other instruments as may be required to give effect to the transactions herein contemplated. 

3.2. The City hereby consents to the use of the Offering Document by the Underwriter 
in connection with the offer and sale of the Bonds to potential investors, provided, however, that 
the City has not reviewed the Offering Document and takes no responsibility for, and makes no 



5 

representations or warranties as to the accuracy, sufficiency or completeness of the information 
contained therein, except for the provisions thereof under the captions “THE ISSUER” and 
“ABSENCE OF LITIGATION—Issuer.”  Subject to the limitations on liability set forth in the 
immediately preceding sentence, the City Clerk is authorized to deem the Offering Document 
“final” as of its date for the purpose of Rule 15c2-12 promulgated by the Securities and 
Exchange Commission. 

3.3. In anticipation of the collection of payments under the Loan Agreement, the City 
shall, subject to Section 5.3 of this resolution, proceed forthwith to issue the Bonds in the form 
and upon the terms set forth in the Indenture or established pursuant to this resolution.  The 
Mayor and City Clerk are authorized and directed to execute by manual or facsimile signature 
the Bonds in the forms prepared by bond counsel as prescribed in the Indenture and to deliver 
them to the Trustee, together with a certified copy of this resolution and other documents 
required by the Indenture, for authentication and delivery to the purchaser.  The Trustee is 
hereby appointed authenticating agent with respect to the Bonds pursuant to Minnesota Statutes, 
Section 475.55, and the certificate of authentication on the Bonds shall evidence authentication 
of the Bonds under this authority.  The City hereby appoints the Trustee as Paying Agent and 
Bond Registrar with respect to the Bonds and the Indenture. 

3.4.  The proposal of the Underwriter to purchase the Bonds upon the terms and 
conditions set forth in the Bond Purchase Agreement is hereby accepted and the Mayor and City 
Clerk are, subject to Section 5.3 of this resolution, authorized and directed to execute the Bond 
Purchase Agreement (subject to approval of the purchase price and terms of the Bonds described 
in Section 2.3) in the name and on behalf of the City. 

3.5. The Mayor, the City Clerk and the other officers of the City are hereby authorized 
and directed to prepare and furnish to the Purchaser and to Bond Counsel certified copies of all 
proceedings and records of the City relating to the Bonds and such other affidavits and 
certificates as may be required to show the facts relating to the legality and marketability of the 
Bonds as such facts appear from the books and records in the officers’ custody and control or as 
otherwise known to them.  All such certified copies, affidavits and certificates, including any 
heretofore furnished, shall constitute representations of the City as to the truth of all statements 
contained therein. 

3.6. The approval hereby given to the various documents referred to above includes an 
approval of such additional details therein as may be necessary and appropriate and such 
modifications thereof, deletions therefrom and additions thereto as may be necessary and 
appropriate and approved by the Mayor and City Clerk prior to the execution of the documents.  
The execution of any instrument by the appropriate officer or officers of the City herein 
authorized shall be conclusive evidence of the approval of such documents in accordance with 
the terms hereof.  In the absence of the Mayor or City Clerk, any of the documents authorized by 
this resolution to be executed may be executed by the Acting Mayor or Acting City Clerk, 
respectively. 

3.7. In addition to the approval described in Section 5 hereof, the issuance of the 
Bonds is subject to the approval of the City of Eden Prairie, Minnesota. 



6 

Section 4.  Not Qualified Tax-Exempt Obligations.  The Bonds are not designated  by the 
Council as “qualified tax-exempt obligations” for purposes of Section 265(b)(3) of the Code. 

Section 5.  Approval of the Department of Employment and Economic Development.   

5.1. The Application to the Minnesota Department of Employment and Economic 
Development, with attachments, form of which are on file with the City Clerk, is hereby 
approved, and the Mayor and the City Clerk are authorized to execute said documents on behalf 
of the City. 

5.2. In accordance with Section 469.154, Subdivision 3, of the Act, the Mayor and 
City Clerk are hereby authorized and directed to cause the Application to be submitted to the 
Department for approval of the Project.  The Mayor, City Clerk, City Attorney and other 
officers, employees and agents of the City are hereby authorized and directed to provide the 
Department with any preliminary information needed for this purpose.  The City Attorney is 
authorized to initiate and assist in the preparation of such documents as may be appropriate to the 
Project, if approved by the Department. 

5.3 Notwithstanding the foregoing, the issuance of the Bonds and the execution by 
the City of the various documents referred to above are subject to the approval of the Project by 
the Department of Employment and Economic Development of the State of Minnesota. 



7 

Adopted this 1st day of June, 2016. 

Approved: 

(SEAL)   
Mayor 

Attest:    
City Clerk 

 

The motion for the adoption of the foregoing resolution was made by Councilmember 

________ and duly seconded by Councilmember _______________ and, upon vote being taken 

thereon, the following voted in favor thereof: ___________________ 

and the following voted against the same: _____________________ 

whereupon the resolution was declared duly passed and adopted and was approved by the 

Mayor, whose signature was attested by the City Clerk. 

 
 
 
 



  www.greenwoodmn.com

	

	

Agenda Number: 8B 

Agenda Date: 06-01-16 

Prepared by Deb Kind 
 
 

Agenda Item: Discuss Potential Conduit Financing for Eagle Ridge Academy 
 
Summary: Jennifer Hanson of Dorsey & Whitney contacted the city regarding another related charter school financing 
project for both Greenwood and Deephaven.  
 
Eagle Ridge Academy (the charter school selling its former Eden Prairie facilities to Main Street) has done two prior bond 
financings through Deephaven. Once they sell their old facilities, they plan to finance approximately $8 million of 
improvements at their new Minnetonka facilities. Under their existing bond documents, the conduit issuer is required to be 
Deephaven, but Deephaven cannot issue more than $10 million of bonds this year given that it is issuing $4.5M of bank 
qualified debt for Minnetonka Youth Hockey. 
  
Jennifer is wondering if Greenwood would consider participating in the Deephaven-Eagle Ridge bonding through a joint 
powers arrangement. Deephaven would be the issuer, but approximately half the issue would be allocated to 
Greenwood. Greenwood would need to hold a public hearing (ideally July 6) and approve the bond issuance in order for 
the joint powers agreement to be effective. 
  
Representatives from Dorsey & Whitney and the underwriter (Piper Jaffray)	will be at the 06-01-16 city council meeting to 
answer questions. 
 
Council Action: None required. Potential motions ... 
 

1. I move the Greenwood city council authorizes the publication of a public hearing for the Eagle Ridge Academy 
conduit financing project to be held at the regularly scheduled Greenwood city council meeting at 7pm on July 6, 
2016 at the Deephaven City Council Chambers, 20225 Cottagewood Road, Deephaven, MN 55331. 
 

2. Do nothing or other motion ??? 



  www.greenwoodmn.com

	

	

Agenda Number: 8C 

Agenda Date: 06-01-16 

Prepared by Deb Kind 
 
 

Agenda Item: Consider 2017-2020 Assessment Contract 
 
Summary: The city's contract with Hennepin County for assessment services expires in 2016. Attached are two proposals 
for the 2017-2020 assessment contract ... 
 

(1) Hennepin County's proposed contract is for $19,000 for each assessment year 2017-2020, but the amount may be 
increased by the amount which exceeds the county's estimated cost of appraising new construction and new parcels. 
Historically, the county's assessments have increased each year (2013 $14,000; 2014 $15,000; 2015 $17,000; and 2016 
$18,000). A copy of the Hennepin County Assessor's contract is included in the hard copy of the full council packet and in 
the electronic packet available at www.greenwoodmn.com. If the city approves the 2017-2020 contract with the county, 
the county requests the city return 3 signed originals of the contract to County Assessor Jim Atchison. 
 

(2) Equalized Assessment Solutions' proposed contract is for $13,000 for 2017, and the contract may be extended for a 
period of 4 years. A copy of the EAS contract and bios for Michael Vanderlinden, AMA and Conrad Anderson, SAMA are 
included in the hard copy of the full council packet and in the electronic packet available at www.greenwoodmn.com.   
 
Council Action: None required. Potential motions ... 
 

1. I move the Greenwood city council approves the 2017-____ assessment contract provided by 
_________________ and authorizes the mayor and city clerk to sign the contract on behalf of the city. 
 

2. Do nothing or other motion ??? 



 

 

    Contract No. A16________                  
 
 

AGREEMENT 
 
 THIS AGREEMENT, Made and entered into by and between the COUNTY OF 

HENNEPIN, a political subdivision of the State of Minnesota, hereinafter referred to as 

the "COUNTY", and the CITY OF GREENWOOD, a political subdivision of the State of 

Minnesota, hereinafter referred to as "CITY"; 

 WHEREAS, said CITY lies wholly within the COUNTY OF HENNEPIN and 

constitutes a separate assessment district; and 

 WHEREAS, under such circumstances, the provisions of Minnesota Statutes, 

Section 273.072 and Minnesota Statutes, Section 471.59 permit the County Assessor to 

provide for the assessment of property; and 

 WHEREAS, said CITY desires the COUNTY to perform certain assessments 

on behalf of said CITY; and 

 WHEREAS, the COUNTY is willing to cooperate with said CITY by completing 

the assessment in a proper manner; 

 NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual covenants contained 

herein, it is agreed as follows: 

 1. The COUNTY shall perform the 2017, 2018, 2019, and 2020 property 

assessment for the CITY OF GREENWOOD in accordance with property assessment 

procedures and practices established and observed by the COUNTY, the validity and 

reasonableness of which are hereby acknowledged and approved by the CITY.  Any 

such practices and procedures may be changed from time to time, by the COUNTY in 

its sole judgment, when good and efficient assessment procedures so require.  The 

property assessment by the COUNTY shall be composed of those assessment services 



 

 
(2) 

which are set forth in Exhibit A, attached hereto and made a part hereof by this 

reference, provided that the time frames set forth therein shall be considered to be 

approximate only. 

 2. All information, records, data, reports, etc. necessary to allow the 

COUNTY to carry out its herein responsibilities shall be furnished to the COUNTY 

without charge by the CITY, and the CITY agrees to cooperate in good faith with the 

COUNTY in carrying out the work under this Agreement. 

 3. The CITY agrees to furnish, without charge, office space needed by the 

COUNTY at appropriate places in the CITY's offices.  Such office space shall be 

sufficient in size to accommodate reasonably one (1) appraiser and any furniture placed 

therein.  The office space shall be available for the COUNTY's use at any and all times 

during typical business hours, and during all such hours the COUNTY shall be provided 

with levels of heat, air conditioning and ventilation as are appropriate for the seasons.   

 4. The CITY also agrees to provide appropriate desk and office furniture as 

necessary, clerical and secretarial support necessary and reasonable for the carrying 

out of the work herein, necessary office supplies and equipment, copying machines and 

fax machines and their respective supplies, and telephone and internet service to the 

COUNTY, all without charge to the COUNTY. 

 5. It shall be the responsibility of the CITY to have available at the CITY's 

offices a person who has the knowledge and skill to be able to answer routine questions 

pertaining to homesteads and property assessment matters and to receive, evaluate 

and organize homestead applications.  The CITY shall store all homestead applications 

and homestead data in secure storage meeting the requirements set by the COUNTY.   

It shall also be the responsibility of the CITY to promptly refer any homestead 



 

 
(3) 

application which needs investigation to the COUNTY. 

 6. In accordance with Hennepin County Affirmative Action Policy and the 

County Commissioners' policies against discrimination, no person shall be excluded 

from full employment rights or participation in or the benefits of any program, service or 

activity on the grounds of race, color, creed, religion, age, sex, disability, marital status, 

sexual orientation, public assistance status, ex-offender status or national origin; and no 

person who is protected by applicable Federal or State laws, rules and regulations 

against discrimination shall be otherwise subjected to discrimination.   

 7. It is agreed that nothing herein contained is intended or should be 

construed in any manner as creating or establishing the relationship of joint venturers or 

co-partners between the parties hereto or as constituting the CITY as the agent, 

representative or employee of the COUNTY for any purpose or in any manner 

whatsoever.  Any and all personnel of CITY or other persons, while engaged in the 

performance of any activity under this Agreement, shall have no contractual relationship 

with the COUNTY and shall not be considered employees of the COUNTY and any and 

all claims that may or might arise under the Workers' Compensation Act of the State of 

Minnesota on behalf of said personnel or other persons while so engaged, and any and 

all claims whatsoever on behalf of any such person or personnel arising out of 

employment or alleged employment including, without limitation, claims of discrimination 

against the CITY, its officers, agents, CITY or employees shall in no way be the 

responsibility of the COUNTY, and CITY shall defend, indemnify and hold the COUNTY, 

its officials, officers, agents, employees and duly authorized volunteers harmless from 

any and all such claims regardless of any determination of any pertinent tribunal, 

agency, board, commission or court.  Such personnel or other persons shall not require 



 

 
(4) 

nor be entitled to any compensation, rights or benefits of any kind whatsoever from the 

COUNTY, including, without limitation, tenure rights, medical and hospital care, sick and 

vacation leave, Workers' Compensation, Re-employment Compensation, disability, 

severance pay and retirement benefits. 

8. CITY agrees that it will defend, indemnify and hold the COUNTY, its 

elected officials, officers, agents, employees and duly authorized volunteers harmless 

from any and all liability (statutory or otherwise) claims, suits, damages, judgments, 

interest, costs or expenses (including reasonable attorney’s fees, witness fees and 

disbursements incurred in the defense thereof) resulting from or caused by the 

negligent or intentional acts or omissions of the CITY, its officers, agents, contractors, 

employees or duly authorized volunteers in the performance of the responsibilities 

provided by this Agreement.  The CITY’s liability shall be governed by Minn. Stat. 

Chapter 466 and other applicable law, rule and regulation, including common law. 

9. COUNTY agrees that it will defend, indemnify and hold the CITY, its 

elected officials, officers, agents, employees and duly authorized volunteers harmless 

from any and all liability (statutory or otherwise) claims, suits, damages, judgments, 

interest, costs or expenses (including reasonable attorney’s fees, witness fees and 

disbursements incurred in the defense thereof) resulting from or caused by the 

negligent or intentional acts or omissions of the COUNTY, its officers, agents, 

contractors, employees or duly authorized volunteers in the performance of the 

responsibilities provided by this Agreement.  The COUNTY’s liability shall be governed 

by Minn. Stat. Chapter 466 and other applicable law, rule and regulation, including 

common law. 



 

 
(5) 

10. The COUNTY shall endeavor to perform all services called for herein in an 

efficient manner.  The sole and exclusive remedy for any breach of this Agreement by 

the COUNTY and for COUNTY's liability of any kind whatsoever, including but not 

limited to liability arising out of, resulting from or in any manner related to contract, tort, 

warranty, statute or otherwise, shall be limited to correcting diligently any deficiency in 

said services as is reasonably possible under the pertinent circumstances. 

11. Neither party hereto shall be deemed to be in default of any provision of 

this Agreement, or for delay or failure in performance, resulting from causes beyond the 

reasonable control of such party, which causes shall include, but are not limited to, acts 

of God, labor disputes, acts of civil or military authority, fire, civil disturbance, changes in 

laws, ordinances or regulations which materially affect the provisions hereof, or any 

other causes beyond the parties' reasonable control. 

12. This Agreement shall commence on August 1, 2016, and shall terminate 

on July 31, 2020.  Either party may initiate an extension of this Agreement for a term of 

four (4) years by giving the other written notice of its intent to so extend prior to March 1, 

2020.  If the party who receives said notice of intent to extend gives written notice to the 

other party of its desire not to extend prior to, April 15, 2020 this Agreement shall 

terminate on July 31, 2020. 

 Nothing herein shall preclude the parties, prior to the end of this Agreement, from 

agreeing to extend this contract for a term of four (4) years.  Any extended term hereof shall be 

on the same terms and conditions set forth herein and shall commence on August 1, 2020.  

Either party may terminate this Agreement for "just cause" as determined by the Commissioner 

of Revenue after hearing for such a determination is held by the Commissioner of Revenue 

and which has been attended by representatives of COUNTY and CITY or which said 



 

 
(6) 

representatives had a reasonable opportunity to attend, provided that after such determination, 

any party desiring to cancel this Agreement may do so by giving the other party no less 

than 120 days' written notice.  If the CITY should cancel this Agreement, as above provided, 

before the completion of the then current property assessment by the COUNTY, the CITY 

agrees to defend and hold the COUNTY, its officials, officers, agents, employees and duly 

authorized volunteers harmless from any liability that might ensue as a result of the non-

completion of a property tax assessment. 

 For the purpose of this Agreement, the term "just cause" shall mean the failure of 

any party hereto reasonably to perform a material responsibility arising hereunder. 

13.A.  In consideration of said assessment services, the CITY agrees to pay the 

COUNTY the sum of Nineteen Thousand Dollars ($19,000) for each assessment, 

provided that any payment for the current year’s assessment may be increased or 

decreased by that amount which exceeds or is less than the COUNTY's estimated cost 

of appraising new construction and new parcels for the current year’s assessment.  The 

amount of any increase or decrease shall be specified in the billing for the current year’s 

assessment. 

13.B.  Regarding each assessment, in addition to being subject to adjustment in 

the above manner, said assessment cost of $19,000 may also be increased by the 

COUNTY if:  

 (1) The COUNTY determines that any cost to the COUNTY in carrying 
out any aspect of this Agreement has increased, including but not 
limited to the following types of costs: new construction and new 
parcel appraisals, mileage, postage, supplies, labor (including 
fringe benefits) and other types of costs, whether similar or 
dissimilar; and/or 

 
 

 2) The COUNTY reasonably determines that other costs should be 
included in the costs of assessment work. 



 

 
(7) 

 
 If the COUNTY desires to increase the assessment cost pursuant to this paragraph 

13(B), it shall give written notice thereof by June 15 of any year and such increase shall 

apply to the assessment for the calendar year next following the current calendar year.  Any 

such notification shall specifically set forth the amount of any new construction and new 

parcel appraisal charges.  Notwithstanding any provisions herein to the contrary, if any such 

increase, exclusive of any charge for the estimated costs of new construction and new parcel 

appraisals, exceeds seven and one half percent (7.5%) of the amount charged for the 

assessment for the then current calendar year, exclusive of any charge for the estimated 

costs of new construction and new parcel appraisals, the CITY may cancel this Agreement 

by giving to the COUNTY written notice thereof, provided that said cancellation notice must 

be received by the COUNTY not later than July 24 of the then current calendar year and said 

cancellation shall be effective no earlier than five (5) days after the receipt of said notice by 

the COUNTY and not later than July 31 of said next calendar year.  Supportive records of the 

cost increase will be open to inspection by the CITY at such times as are mutually agreed 

upon by the COUNTY and CITY.   

 Failure of the COUNTY to give the CITY a price-change notice by June 15 shall 

not preclude the COUNTY from giving CITY such notice after said date but prior to 

September 1 of any year, provided that if such price increase exceeds said ten (10%) - 

all as above set forth - the CITY may cancel this Agreement if the COUNTY receives 

notice thereof not later than thirty-nine (39) days from the date of receipt by the CITY of 

any said late price-change notice, provided further that any such cancellation shall be 

effective not earlier than five (5) days after COUNTY's receipt of said cancellation notice 

and not later than forty-six (46) days after the CITY's receipt of any said price-increase 

notice. 



 

 
(8) 

Payment for each assessment shall be made in the following manner:  

Approximately one-half (1/2) of the cost of an assessment (the amount payable being 

set forth in a bill sent by the COUNTY to the CITY) shall be paid by the CITY no later 

than the fifteenth (15th) day of the December which precedes the pertinent assessment 

year; and the remaining portion of said cost (the amount payable being set forth in a bill 

sent by the COUNTY to the CITY) shall be paid by the CITY no later than July 15 of the 

pertinent year. 

 The COUNTY may bill the CITY after the aforesaid dates and in each such case, 

the CITY shall pay such bill within thirty (30) days after receipt thereof.   

  14. Any notice or demand, which may or must be given or made by a party 

hereto, under the terms of this Agreement or any statute or ordinance, shall be in writing 

and shall be sent registered or certified mail to the other party addressed as follows: 

 TO CITY: Mayor, City of Greenwood 
  20225 Cottagewood Road 
  Deephaven, MN 55331 
 
 TO COUNTY: Hennepin County Administrator 
   2300A Government Center 
  Minneapolis, MN  55487 
 
 copies to: County Assessor 
  Hennepin County 
  2103A Government Center 
  Minneapolis, MN  55487 
 
 
 copies to: Assistant County Assessor 
  Hennepin County 
  2103A Government Center 
  Minneapolis, MN  55487 

 

 



 

 
(9) 

Any party may designate a different addressee or address at any time by giving 

written notice thereof as above provided.  Any notice, if mailed, properly addressed, 

postage prepaid, registered or certified mail, shall be deemed dispatched on the 

registered date or that stamped on the certified mail receipt and shall be deemed 

received within the second business day thereafter or when it is actually received, 

whichever is sooner.  Any notice delivered by hand shall be deemed received upon 

actual delivery. 

 15. It is expressly understood that the obligations of the CITY under 

Paragraphs 7, 8, 11, and 12 hereof and the obligations of the CITY which, by their sense 

and context, are intended to survive the performance thereof by the CITY, shall so survive 

the completion of performance, termination or cancellation of this Agreement. 

THIS PORTION OF PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK 



 

 
(10) 

 IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have caused this Agreement to be 

executed by its duly authorized officers and delivered on its behalf, this ______ day of 

_____________, 2016. 
 
 

COUNTY OF HENNEPIN 
STATE OF MINNESOTA 

 
Reviewed by County 
Attorney’s Office: By:   
  Chair of the County Board 
 
______________________ 
Date: _________________ And:   
  Assistant/Deputy/County Administrator 
 
 
 
 ATTEST:   
   Deputy/Clerk of the County Board 
  
 
 
 CITY OF GREENWOOD 
 
 
 By:   
 
 Its   
 
 And:   
 
 Its   
 
 
City organized under: 
 
______ Statutory  ______Option A   ______  Option B  ______Charter 



 

 
(11) 

   Contract No. A16______ 

 

EXHIBIT A 

CITY OF GREENWOOD 
 

During the contract term, the County shall: 
 
1. Physically inspect and revalue 20% of the real property, as required by 

law. 
 
2. Physically inspect and value all new construction, additions and 

renovation. 
 
3. Adjust estimated market values on those properties not physically 

inspected as deemed necessary per sales ratio analysis. 
 
4. Prepare the initial assessment roll. 
 
5. Print and mail valuation notices. 
 
6. Respond to taxpayers regarding assessment or appraisal problems or 

inquiries. 
 
7. Conduct valuation reviews prior to Board of Review or Open Book 

Meetings, as determined by the City – approximate dates: March through 
May 15. 

 
8. Attend Board of Review or conduct Open Book Meeting.  Prepare all 

necessary review appraisals.  Approximate dates: April 1 – May 31. 
 
9. Maintain an updated property file – current values, classification data and 

characteristic data. 
 
10. Prepare divisions and combinations as required. 
 
11. Process all homestead and special program applications. 
 
12. Administer the abatement process pursuant to Minn. Stat. §375.192. 
 
13. Prepare appraisals; defend and/or negotiate all Tax Court cases. 

 
  



INDEPENDENT CONTRACTOR AGREEMENT 

This independent contractor agreement (the “Agreement”) is made and entered into as of July 1, 2016 
(the “Effective Date”) between the City of Greenwood (the “City”), a political subdivision of the State 
of Minnesota, and DBA Equalized Assessment Solutions (the “Contractor”) (collectively, the 
“Parties”). 

The City requests the Contractor to perform services for it and may request the Contractor to perform 
other services in the future; and 

The Parties therefore agree as follows: 

1.0.Term and Termination. 

1.1. This Agreement takes effect immediately as of the Effective Date, and remains in full force and 
effect until the Contractor has completed the Services (the "Term"), unless earlier terminated under this 
Section 1. 

1.2. Either Party may terminate this Agreement for cause by providing the other Party written notice if 
the other Party: (i) is in material breach of this Agreement and has failed to cure such breach within five 
(5) days after its receipt of written notice of such breach provided by the non-breaching Party; (ii) 
engages in any unlawful business practice related to that Party's performance under the Agreement; or 
(iii) files a petition for bankruptcy, becomes insolvent, acknowledges its insolvency in any manner, 
ceases to do business, makes an assignment for the benefit of its creditors, or has a receiver, trustee or 
similar party appointed for its property. 

2.0.Contractor Services. 

2.1. During the Term, the City may engage the Contractor to provide the following services as needed 
(the "Services"):The Contractor agrees to cooperate with officials of the City and Hennepin County in 
performing 2017 assessment services as defined in Minnesota Statute. The City agrees and 
acknowledges that the manner used in the performance of the assessment duties will be under the control 
and direction of said Contractor. The property assessment by the Contractor shall be composed of those 
assessment services which are set forth in Exhibit A, attached and made a part of by this reference. 

2.2. The Contractor shall provide transportation and the necessary equipment to perform the Services. If 
the Contractor has obtained employees or agents (the "Contractor Personnel"), the Contractor shall be 
solely responsible for all costs associated with the Contractor Personnel.  The City shall furnish all 
equipment and supplies necessary for the performance of the contracted services including the Hennepin 
County Data fee. Additionally, the City agrees to provide office space and office furniture to 
accommodate one appraiser and provide heat, air conditioning, clerical support, office supplies and 
equipment, copying machine with supplies and WIFI without charge to the contractor. 

2.3.  The Contractor shall attend Local Board of Review and Open book meetings on the date or dates 
agreed upon by the Parties. 

. 



2.4. In consideration of the services rendered by the Contractor, the City shall pay to the contractor the 
sum of $13,000.00 payable in 12 installments of $1,083.33 beginning the last day of July, 2016 and 
ending to the last day of June, 2017. Nothing in this agreement shall preclude the parties from 
negotiating to extend this contract for a period of four years. 

3.0.Independent Contractor Status. 

3.1. The Parties intend that the Contractor and any Contractor Personnel be engaged as independent 
contractors of City. Nothing contained in this Agreement will be construed to create the relationship of 
employer and employee, principal and agent, partnership or joint venture, or any other fiduciary 
relationship. 

3.2. The Contractor may not act as agent for, or on behalf of, the City, or to represent the City, or bind 
the City in any manner. 

3.3. The Contractor will not be entitled to worker's compensation, retirement, insurance or other benefits 
afforded to employees of the City. 

4.0. Representations. Both Parties represent that they are fully authorized and empowered to enter into 
this Agreement, and that the performance of the obligations under this Agreement will not violate or 
infringe upon the rights of any third-party, or violate any agreement between the Parties and any other 
person, firm or organization or any law or governmental regulation. 

5.0. Indemnification. The Contractor shall indemnify and hold harmless the City, its affiliates, and its 
respective officers, directors, agents and employees from any and all claims, demands, losses, causes of 
action, damage, lawsuits, judgments, including attorneys’ fees and costs, arising out of, or relating to, 
the Contractor’s services under this Agreement. 

6.0. Liability. EXCEPT WITH RESPECT TO THE PARTIES’ INDEMNIFICATION OBLIGATIONS, 
NEITHER PARTY SHALL BE LIABLE TO THE OTHER FOR ANY SPECIAL, INDIRECT, 
INCIDENTAL, PUNITIVE, OR CONSEQUENTIAL DAMAGES ARISING FROM OR RELATED 
TO THIS AGREEMENT, INCLUDING BODILY INJURY, DEATH, LOSS OF REVENUE, OR 
PROFITS OR OTHER BENEFITS, AND CLAIMS BY ANY THIRD PARTY, EVEN IF THE 
PARTIES HAVE BEEN ADVISED OF THE POSSIBILITY OF SUCH DAMAGES. THE 
FOREGOING LIMITATION APPLIES TO ALL CAUSES OF ACTION IN THE AGGREGATE, 
INCLUDING WITHOOUT LIMITATION TO BREACH OF CONTRACT, BREACH OF 
WARRANTY, NEGLIGENCE, STRICT LIABILITY, AND OTHER TORTS. 

7.0. Disclaimer of Warranty. THE WARRANTIES CONTAINED HEREIN ARE THE ONLY 
WARRANTIES MADE BY THE PARTIES HEREUNDER. EACH PARTY MAKES NO OTHER 
WARRANTY, WHETHER EXPRESS OR IMPLIED, AND EXPRESSLY EXCLUDES AND 
DISCLAIMS ALL OTHER WARRANTIES AND REPRESENTATIONS OF ANY KIND, 
INCLUDING ANY WARRANTIES OF MERCHANTABILITY, FITNESS FOR A PARTICULAR 
PURPOSE, TITLE, AND NON-INFRINGEMENT. THE COMPANY DOES NOT PROVIDE ANY 
WARRANTY THAT OPERATION OF ANY SERVICES HEREUNDER WILL BE 
UNINTERRUPTED OR ERROR-FREE. 

8.0 Miscellaneous Provisions. 



8.1. This Agreement, and any accompanying appendices, duplicates, or copies, constitutes the 
entire agreement between the Parties with respect to the subject matter of this Agreement, and 
supersedes all prior negotiations, agreements, representations, and understandings of any kind, whether 
written or oral, between the Parties, preceding the date of this Agreement. 

8.2. This Agreement may be amended only by written agreement duly executed by an authorized 
representative of each party (email is acceptable). 

8.3. If any provision or provisions of this Agreement shall be held unenforceable for any reason, 
then such provision shall be modified to reflect the parties’ intention. All remaining provisions of this 
Agreement shall remain in full force and effect for the duration of this Agreement. 

8.4. This Agreement shall not be assigned by either party without the express consent of the 
other party. 

8.5. A failure or delay in exercising any right, power or privilege in respect of this Agreement 
will not be presumed to operate as a waiver, and a single or partial exercise of any right, power or 
privilege will not be presumed to preclude any subsequent or further exercise, of that right, power or 
privilege or the exercise of any other right, power or privilege. 

8.6. This Agreement is be governed by and construed in accordance with the laws of the State of 
Minnesota without reference to any principles of conflicts of laws, which might cause the application of 
the laws of another state. Any action instituted by either party arising out of this Agreement will only be 
brought, tried and resolved in the applicable federal or state courts having jurisdiction in the State of 
Minnesota. EACH PARTY HEREBY CONSENTS TO THE EXCLUSIVE PERSONAL 
JURISDICTION AND VENUE OF THE COURTS, STATE AND FEDERAL, HAVING 
JURISDICTION IN THE STATE OF MINNESOTA. 

The Parties are signing this Agreement on the date stated in the introductory clause. 

City of Greenwood 

By: _________________________________ 

Name: 

Title: 

Equalized Assessment Solutions 

By:_________________________________ 

Name: 

Title: 



EXHIBIT	A	

	

							During	the	contract	term	E.A.S.	shall:	

1. Physically	inspect	and	revalue	20%	of	the	real	property,	as	required	by			

law.	

2. Physically	inspect	and	revalue	all	new	construction,	additions	and	

renovation.	

3. Adjust	estimated	market	values	on	those	properties	not	physically	

inspected	as	deemed	necessary	per	sales	ratio	analysis.	

4. Prepare	the	initial	assessment	roll.	

5. Respond	to	taxpayers	regarding	assessment	or	appraisal	problems	or	

inquiries.	

6. Conduct	valuation	reviews	prior	to	Local	Board	of	Appeal	and	

Equalization	or	Open	Book	Meetings,	as	determined	by	the	City	–	

approximate	dates:	March	1st	through	May	15.	

7. Attend	Local	Board	of	Appeal	and	Equalization	or	conduct	Open	Book	

Meeting.	Prepare	all	necessary	review	appraisals.	Approximate	dates:	

April	1st	–	May	31st.	

8. Maintain	an	updated	property	file	=	current	values,	classification	data	

and	characteristic	data.	

9. Prepare	divisions	and	combinations	as	required.	

10. 	Assist	Hennepin	County	with	tax	court	petitions.	

	

	

	



WE ARE 

EQUALIZED ASSESSMENT 

SOLUTIONS 

Michael Vanderlinden, AMA 

www.linkedin.com/pub/michael-vanderlinden/49/579/338/ 

Professional Assessor since 2004. Ten years in the rapidly growing, second ring suburb of 
Plymouth and two years in the commuter suburb of Otsego. Currently licensed as an Income 
Qualified, Accredited Minnesota Assessor. Strong background in surveying and residential 
construction. Education includes BA in Public Management from Metropolitan State.  

Professional reference: Jake Pidde, Assistant County Assessor, Stearns County. 

(612)840-7953 jake.pidde@co.stearns.mn.us      

   

Conrad Anderson, SAMA 

Professional Assessor since 2002. Beginning with three years at McLeod County responsible for 
Winsted City, Lester Prairie City, Hutchinson City and Brownton City assessments. Eleven years 
with Wright County, ten working as an assessor with the districts of Rockford and Hanover cities 
and nine in the city of Otsego. Contract work as an independent Local Assessor in Rich Valley 
Township and Biscay City from 2005 to 2011. Currently assigned the townships of Albion, 
Middleville and French Lake in and for Wright County. Strong background in agricultural, 
commercial and industrial properties. Education includes Ridgewater College, and continuing 
education through MAAO, IAAO and Kaplan University. Currently a candidate for RES and 
CAE licensure through IAAO. 

Professional Reference: Randy DesMarais, Retired Deputy Assessor, Wright County. 

(763) 682-5586 Rld586@hotmail.com  





  www.greenwoodmn.com

	

	

Agenda Number: 8D 

Agenda Date: 06-01-16 

Prepared by Deb Kind 
 
 

Agenda Item: Requests Regarding the Fire Lane Between 5120 & 5130 Meadville Street   
 
Summary:	The city's road committee (Councilman Bob Quam and Councilman Bill Cook) received an email from Mark 
Krezowski, 5120 Meadville Street, regarding the Meadville Fire Lane located between 5120 and 5130 Meadville Street. 
Mark would like the city council to approve the following ... 
 

1. Post a “parking by permit only” sign in the area. 
2. Stripe the center line around the hard curve on Meadville Street to make it clear that the Fire Lane is not a 

continuation of the road.  
3. Remove the 2nd Meadville Street sign blade that currently is on the post at the hard curve on Meadville.   

  
In 1998, the city council approved resolution 2-98A which includes the following conditions and principles for the  
Fire Lane ... 
 

(a) It shall not be improved; 
(b) It shall not be developed; 
(c) No tree or shrub shall be removed; 
(d) No swimming beach shall be developed thereat; 
(e) No fishing shall be authorized thereat; 
(f) No boat docking shall be permitted thereat; 
(g) Parking shall be allowed by permit only; 
(h) Snowmobiles shall not be permitted to travel over and across the parcel; and 
(i) The property shall not be denominated by the city as a “park.” 

 
Copies of Mark Krezowski's email and resolution 2-98A from 1998 are included in the hard copy of the full council packet 
and in the electronic packet online at www.greenwoodmn.com. 
 
For the council's reference, below are city code sections that are related to the requests: 

Section 710.00. No-Parking and Limited-Parking Zones.  
The city council may, from time to time, by motion or resolution designate portions of the highways and streets within 
the city as no-parking zones or limited-parking zones and shall cause such zones to be marked by appropriate signs. 
The location of such signs limiting parking shall be prima facia evidence that the city council has by proper resolution 
or motion authorized the establishment of such no-parking or limited-parking zones. The council shall make a 
determination of such no-parking zones or limited-parking zones on the basis of convenience to the public and traffic 
hazards. No person shall park any vehicle in a no-parking zone or any limited-parking zone for a longer period than is 
specified on the signs posted in such zones. 

Section 710.30. Regulation of Fire Lane Use.   
The city council may, from time to time, by resolution designate such portions of the highways and streets within the 
city which dead end at the waters edge of public waters as no parking zones, parking by permit only zones, limited 
parking zones, no trailer parking zones, no boat launching, no lake access zones, restricted lake access zones, and 
may prohibit or restrict the use and operation of motor vehicles (as defined by Minnesota statutes) including boats, 
trailers, snowmobiles, and all terrain vehicles thereon by vehicle type, purpose, season, permit, dates, times and such 
other restrictions as deemed necessary, including the installation of seasonal or permanent barriers within the public 
right of way. The city council shall cause such zones to be marked by appropriate signs. The location of such signs 
and the restrictions stated thereon shall be prima facia evidence that the city council has by proper resolution 
authorized the establishment of such no parking zones, parking by permit only zones, limited parking zones, no trailer 
parking zones, no boat launching, no lake access zones, restricted lake access zones or other restricted use zones. 
The city council shall make a determination of such use restriction zones on the basis of necessity in the interest of 
the public health safety and welfare. No person shall park or perform an act in contravention of the posted restriction. 

 
 



  www.greenwoodmn.com

	

	

710.05. Temporary Parking Permits. 
Upon the request of a resident holding a social event, the city clerk may issue a permit for the parking of vehicles in a 
no-parking zone for a limited time period during the event if no other feasible alternative exists. Permits may be issued 
for a maximum of 24 hours and no more than 2 permits may be issued to the same property per year. Persons 
requesting a permit shall submit the following to the city clerk:  
 

(a) Written statement that includes the reason for the request and lists the date and time period vehicles will be 
parked in the no-parking zone. 

(b) A map indicating the area and number of parking spaces that will be utilized.  
(c) Payment of the permit fee set forth in chapter 5.  

 

The city clerk may deny the permit request or revoke an approved permit if it is found there is endangerment to public 
safety or if inclement weather such as a heavy snowfall makes roadside parking unsafe. If the city clerk approves the 
request, a hard copy or electronic copy of the permit will be issued. The permit holder may make copies of the permit 
as needed. Permits must be displayed on the driver’s side dash of each vehicle during the time permitted. Vehicles 
must be parked in a manner that allows space for the unimpeded passage of emergency vehicles. The city clerk shall  
notify the fire chief and police chief regarding the date, location, and duration of approved temporary parking permits. 

 
Even though there is no city ordinance that requires it, historically the city council has approved all street markings and all 
signage installations / removals in the city (not just for parking-related signage). 
 
Council Action: None required. Potential motions ... 
 

1. I move the Greenwood city council authorizes the following regarding the Meadville Fire Lane located between 
5120 & 5130 Meadville Street: (1) The installation of a "Parking by Permit Only" sign per resolution 2-98A;  
(2) Center line striping around the hard curve on Meadville Street; and (3) Removal of the 2nd Meadville Street 
sign blade parallel to the Fire Lane currently on the post at the hard curve on Meadville Street. 
 

2. I move the Greenwood city council authorizes the following regarding the Meadville Fire Lane located between 
5120 & 5130 Meadville Street: (1) The installation of a "Parking by Permit Only" sign per resolution 2-98A;  
(2) Center line striping around the hard curve on Meadville Street; and (3) Installation of 2 new Meadville Street 
sign blades with arrows indicating the road continues around the hard curve in both directions. 

 
3. Do nothing or other motion ??? 



From: Mark Krezowski mtkrezowski@frontiernet.net
Subject: Fire Alley signage request from neighbors

Date: May 23, 2016 at 9:33 AM
To: billandtishcook@msn.com, quamco@aol.com
Cc: Dana Young danayoung@mchsi.com, Mtk mtkrezowski@frontiernet.net, dkind100@gmail.com

To:  Bob Quam, Bill Cook,
 
Hi Bob, Bill,
 
We have discussed with the four other neighbors adjoining the Meadville Fire Alley and would like to request that the Meadville
Fire Alley signage be put in place per the 9/17/1997 Planning Commission recommendations adopted by the then City Council
and put in place shortly thereafter.  It seems that over the years and administration changes your predecessors decided to
replace that 1997 signage with the current signage?  Perhaps you know the history better over the past 20 years. 
 
The basic reasons for signage change is that we are interested in security and privacy from transient people (defined as non-
greenwood residents) who come to our neighborhood and use the Alley in violation of the Meadville Fire Alley resolution dated 1-
6-1998.
 
We believe that if the City followed the 9-17-1997 Planning Commission signage requests to the City Council, which was agreed
to by the City Council and enacted, we would not have the security and privacy issues of the Fire Alley today.  The 1997 solutions
enacted were: (1) the existing “resident only” sign changed to “parking by permit only”, (2) a white line drawn along Meadville
Street so it is clear that it is not a continuation of the road, and (3) the additional Meadville Street sign taken off of the street
sign on the corner.  Interesting that all of these things were done but somehow the City reverted back to no doing these things
and refuses to put up the prior “residents only” sign per our request last year.  If these things had not been overlooked and/or
overruled by later City officials we would likely not have had the problems with security and privacy listed below.
 
At some point the City decided that it could not enforce the “parking by permit only” and we understand that and would
therefore ask that the “residents only” sign be put back up in alignment with the 1998 Council enacted resolution that essentially
denies access to the Meadville Fire Alley except for adjoining residents parking.  Thanks.  I will follow up later this week with a
phone call to both of you.
 
Mark Krezowski
612-868-3783
 
-----------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------
	
Problems with Meadville Fire Alley:
 
1.  No security or safety for surrounding residents.  Since city allows transient traffic and
identifies the Meadville fire Alley as a street, the following occurs:
 
    - Non-residents park and use Fire Alley as a point to walk neighborhood taking up
residents parking use and cluttering Alley with cars.  Overnight parking has occurred with
transients sleeping in their cars.
 
    - Vandalism occurs when transients run their cars on the grass and hit residents
houses, landscaping and garage doors with them.
 
    - Trespassing occurs on residents yards, docks and homes. Fishing from our docks
and asking to use our bathroom facilities.  There is danger of home invasion.
 
    - Trash, noise and peeping occur when diesel truck transients park at lake and leave
engines running while they eat their lunch.  They watch us in our yards.  Pretty bad
listening and smelling a diesel engine 3 feet from your yard.
 

mailto:Krezowskimtkrezowski@frontiernet.net
mailto:Krezowskimtkrezowski@frontiernet.net
mailto:billandtishcook@msn.com
mailto:quamco@aol.com
mailto:Youngdanayoung@mchsi.com
mailto:Youngdanayoung@mchsi.com
mailto:Mtkmtkrezowski@frontiernet.net
mailto:Mtkmtkrezowski@frontiernet.net
mailto:dkind100@gmail.com


 
    - Curfew is broken and noise ordinances broken when midnight drunk swimmers help
themselves to the Alley and lake access.
 
    - Safety and probable City liability at risk due to lack of care to Alley with overgrown
buckthorn, trash, noxious weeds, rip-rap that consists of broken cement, chains, cable,
trash and toilet seats.  Shoreline looks horrible.  The buckthorn, vines and junk trees
have been an eyesore and risk to transients who walk down to the lake.  Current natural
gas line work has left a class 5 scar 40 feet long on green area.
 
    Note: Four of us families have put forth considerable effort in the past few years to
again beautify this Alley as the city takes no responsibility to do so.  Many areas of the
above issue have been improved by us.  Unfortunately this makes the Alley more
attractive to transients as well as for our neighborhood.
 
2.  Resident privacy is an issue:
 
    - Privacy is violated when steady streams of 20 or more theater goers walk to
shoreline and on to private property of adjoining residents.  This happens on any nice
day when there is a performance.
 
    - Privacy and Safety are at issue when continuous cars park, idle, turn around and hit
private property of adjoining residents.
 
    - Privacy and Safety is violated when transients use adjoining residents lawns and
docks and even fish from them.  When confronted they plead public property and
become belligerent.
 
    - Privacy and Safety are an issue when people put chairs on shore, open their coolers
and drink beer while remaining in their chairs for the entire day, except to urinate.  All
while watching adjoining residents in their yards.
 
    - Traffic and noise from non-Greenwood transients is increased down Meadville street
effecting everyone on Meadville street.  Greenwood is almost completely a residential
neighborhood with no need or desire for transients to drive up and down Meadville street
looking for lake access and deciding the Meadville Fire Alley is a good spot to stop for
access, and then continuing to come back to this Fire Alley.
 
3.  City is perhaps liable for the above risks by labeling the Alley as a public street, not
posting resident only sign and not messaging that there is no lake access or fire alley
use other than that per the city resolution for this Alley.
 
    - City inadequately cares for, cleans and maintains the Alley green areas.  City does
maintain the actual street, but that is all.
 
    - City used to post a “resident only” sign but refuses to now.  Proposals to city date
back to 1997 to take street sign down, paint white line on Meadville showing actual street
and put up “parking by permit only” as per current resolution dating January 6, 1998. 
City is not following 1998 resolution.  City is not following the wishes of Adjacent



City is not following 1998 resolution.  City is not following the wishes of Adjacent
residents to this Fire Alley.
 
What makes this Fire Alley different from other Greenwood lake access:
 
1.  Driveway access.  There are 4 residents that have driveway access directly off this
Fire Alley.  This Fire Alley is not a simple lake access between homes.
 
2.  Existing resolution is for a passive non-use city property, except for 4 residences that
have driveway access.  The city does not make this known with improper Alley naming
(calling it Meadville Street), and no signage for proper resident parking and non-use.
 
3.  The adjoining residents residents have banded together to “take care” of this Fire
Alley.  That includes eradicating buckthorn, vines, noxious weeds, junk trees, cleaning
trash and debris, cleaning rip-rap, improving rip-rap and caring for the grass, shrubs and
plantings that one adjoining neighbor has provided to this Fire Alley for over 30 years.







  www.greenwoodmn.com

	

	

Agenda Number: 8E 

Agenda Date: 06-01-16 

Prepared by Deb Kind 
 
 

Agenda Item: Consider 2016 Proposals for Weed Clean Up at St. Alban's Bay Docks 
 
Summary:	Late in the summer of 2015, the city council contracted with Lakefront Restoration to clean up weeds around 
the city docks located on St. Alban's Bay. At that time the council indicated interest in contracting for annual clean up of 
the weeds by the docks. The city clerk secured proposals from 3 companies to provide weed clean up: 
 

  
Number of 
treatments 

Cost per 
treatment 

Total 
Estimate 

Life's A Beach 4 $150.00 $600.00 
Waterfront Restoration 2 $570.00 $1,140.00 
Lakescape 3 $455.40 $1,366.20 

 
Copies of the proposals are in the hard copy of the full council packet and in the electronic packet at 
www.greenwoodmn.com. 
 
Council Action: None required. Potential motions ... 
 

1. I move the Greenwood city council authorizes the city clerk to sign a contract with ________ for 2016 weed 
removal at the city docks on St. Alban's Bay for a cost of $________. 
 

2. Do nothing or other motion ??? 



LakescaQe 
"Keeping your shoreline clean and pristine." 

www.lakescapellc.com 

Mailing Address: 20920 Oak Lane 
Greenwood, MN 

55331 

Phone: (952) 222-7740 

E-mail: thomaslecy@lakescapellc.com

Licensed and Fully Insured! We hold a commercial mechanical control permit issued by the Minnesota DNR. 

Dear 

Thank you for inquiring about Lakescape LLC's services. We are happy to provide you with the following information: 

1.) Lake weed removal estimate .. pg. 2 

2.) Additional services ................ pg. 3 

3.) Terms of service ................... pg. 4 

You may need to obtain a DNR permit if you would like to get a large area of lake weeds treated using our hand 

removal method. As stated in the Minnesota DNR rules and regulations, " Under Minnesota law, aquatic plants growing in 

public waters are the property of the state. Because of their value to the lake ecosystem, they may not be destroyed or 

transplanted unless authorized by the Commissioner of the Department of Natural Resources as stipulated in the Aquatic 

Plant Management Rules." 

Control methods which MUST HAVE a permit: 

• Destruction of any emergent vegetation (for example, cattails and bulrushes).

• Cutting or pulling by hand, or by mechanical means, submerged vegetation in an area larger than 2,500 square feet.

• Applying herbicides or algicides. 

• Moving or removing a bog of any size that is free-floating or lodged in any area other than its place of origin in public waters. 

• Transplanting aquatic plants into public waters. 

• Use of automated aquatic plant control devices (such as the Crary WeedRoller). 

• Physical removal of floating-leaf vegetation from an area larger than a channel 15 feet wide extending to open water. 

Taken from: http ://www. dnr. state. mn. us/shorelandmgmt/apg/regulations. html 

A Lakescape Representative can assist you in filling out this permit and send into the MN DNR for approval. 

All estimates are subject to alteration if the conditions outlined in the cost breakdown are different than described. 

Estimates will be checked in the spring to asses accuracy. 

If you are satisfied with this estimate, please fill out your preferred payment option, comments, and any referrals you 

may have! Finally, please sign and date the third page of this packet. Scan in and send via e-mail to 

thomaslecy@lakescapellc.com. By doing this, you acknowledge that you are satisfied with the price and description of the 

services in this document, and would like to receive an invoice for the coming summer season. 

Thanks, 

Thomas Lecy, Nick Baumgard, 

Co-founder and President Co-founder and Chief Operations Officer 

1 of 4 



LakescaQe 
"Keeping your shoreline clean and pristine." 

www.lakescapellc.com 

Mailing Address: 20920 Oak Lane 
Greenwood, MN 

55331 

Phone: (952) 222-7740 

E-mail: thomaslecy@lakescapellc.com

Licensed and Fully Insured! We hold a commercial mechanical control permit issued by the Minnesota DNR. 

Lake Weed Removal 

Marked Zone 

Zone 1- Low difficulty 

Sguare Feet 

Zone 2 - Medium difficulty 

Zone 3 - High difficulty 

Aquatic Plant Management Permit 

Visit 1 

Number of Visits 

Visit 2 

Diagram of the Zones 

Feet of shoreline. 

Rate 

Visit 3 

2 of 4 

0 
N 

Price Disposal Fee (15%) 

Sub Total: 

Special Offers: 

Grand Total: 

1st Payment Due: 

2nd Payment Due: 

Amount 

*** Grand total includes all 3 hand removal treatments 

throughout the summer to manage lake weed growth. 

See terms of service for payment information. 

Lakescape LLC will remove aquatic vegetation in 
marked zones. Due to the difficulty of servicing an area 
underwater in low conditions of visibility, Lakescape LLC 
cannot guarantee absolutely clear lake bottoms. 
Aquatic vegetation usually grows back at a lower rate in 
serviced areas (depending heavily on lake 
characteristics and weather conditions). Larger 
treatment areas tend to achieve best results. 

There is a 4 day warranty period following each visit. 
Any further growth after this period may be subject 
to additional fees. 









If chemicals have been recently applied, within the area outlined, divers cannot enter the water until the date of drinking water 
restriction outlined on the posted sign.

Young, Dana- (City of Greenwood Dock Slips)- St. Albans Bay - 2016 
Lakeshore Management Proposal- 5205 Greenwood Circle, 
Excelsior

   Page 1    



  www.greenwoodmn.com

	

	

Agenda Number: 8F 

Agenda Date: 06-01-16 

Prepared by Deb Kind 
 
 
 

Agenda Item: Consider Lake Minnetonka Conservation District 2017 Budget  
 
Summary: The LMCD board approves the budget with input from the cities. But the cities do not take official action on the 
budget. The budget is certified to the state by July 1 each year.  
 
Greenwood's share of the LMCD budget is proposed to decrease from $ 6,009 in 2016 to $6,298 in the 2017 budget. 
 
Council Action: No action required. Possible motions … 

 
1. I move the city council expresses support for the 2017 Lake Minnetonka Conservation District budget as 

proposed and directs the city clerk to send a copy of this motion to Interim LMCD Executive Director Jim 
Brimeyer. 
 

2. Do nothing or other motion ??? 
 



April29,2016

TO:

FROM:

5341 MAYWOOD ROAD. SUITE 200 . MOUND, MINNESOTA 5s364 . TELEPHONE 952t45-0789 . FAX 9s2i745-9085

LMCD City Administrators
LMCD Board Members

Jay Green, Chair
Chris Jewett, Treasurer
Gary Hughes, Board Member
Jim Brimeyer, Interim Director

SUBJECT: Draft2}l7 LMCD Budget

Enclosed is a copy of the draft2ll7 Lake Minnetonka Conservation District (LMCD) Budget. The

in the LMCD office.

By state statute, the allocation of levy to the 14 member cities is based on their percentage of the
cumulative net tax capacity, with no city paying greater than2lVo of the overall levy. The LMCD Board
performed a detailed review of projected expenses and revenues for 2017, using the 2015 budget for a
baseline of operating expenses. The LMCD is proposing a decrease in overall operating expenses for
2017 as less non-levy revenue and grant opportunities is anticipated; however, this will require an
increase in the overall levy to balance the budeet.

H I of the draft2017 LMCD Budset include the fbl
Draft20I7 LMCD Budset

Budeet Hishlishts Details
Total Exoenditures 5.4%o deqease ($539,392 compared to $570.366 in 2016).
Personnel Services 26.6% decrease ($186,940 compared to$254,738 in 2016).

Administrative Technician position will not be filled at this time. Contract
services will be used to augment staffing requirements.

Contract Services
Temporarv Staffins

$54,689 (compared to $2,500 in2016)

Office Lease & Storase 2.3o/o increase ($18,049 compared to $17,609 in 2016).
Eurasian Watermilfoil
Harvestine Prosram

29.8% decrease ($60,062 compared to $85,500 in2016).
Reflects adiusted 2016 proeram after loss of the $30,000 MN DNR srant.

Aquatic Invasive Species
Prevention

$37,562 for watercraft inspections through various partnerships.
An $18,781 grant from the Minnehaha Creek Watershed District is anticipated.

Overall Lew 6.3%o increase ($326.343 compared to $306.866 in 2016).

Web Page Address: http://www.lmcd.orq " F-mail Address: lmcd@lnrcd,org
To protect and preserve Lake Minnetonka.

The LMCD values your review and input. Please let Interim Executive Director Jim Brimeyer or your
member city representative know if you would like a representative to attend an upcoming city council
meeting to discuss the draft 2017 LMCD Budget or to review LMCD activities and projects. Review and
approval by the LMCD Board is planned for the June 8tnmeeting.

g
307i Post Oonsurner Wasie



 

City

2010  U.S. 

Census 

Population 

Data

2015 Taxable 

Market Value

2015 Net Tax 

Capacity

% of Total 

Net Tax 

Capacity 

(Note 1)

Share of 

Admin. Levy 

in 2017

Share of AIS 

Levy in 2017

Share of Total 

Levy in 2017

Share of Total 

Levy in 2016

Increase in 

Total Levy 

from 2016

% of 

Increase 

from 2016

DEEPHAVEN 3,642 1,141,547,816 12,886,000 5.3% $18,558 $5,160 $23,719 $21,239 $2,480 11.7%

EXCELSIOR 2,188 409,363,345 5,120,997 2.1% $7,375 $2,051 $9,426 $8,492 $934 11.0%

GREENWOOD 688 298,057,890 3,421,492 1.4% $4,928 $1,370 $6,298 $6,009 $289 4.8%

MINNETONKA 49,734 8,228,641,888 103,533,501 42.2% $51,069 $14,200 $65,269 $61,373 $3,896 6.3%

MTKA BEACH 539 292,418,268 3,416,139 1.4% $4,920 $1,368 $6,288 $5,969 $319 5.3%

MINNETRISTA 6,384 1,315,210,248 13,979,097 5.7% $20,133 $5,598 $25,731 $25,063 $668 2.7%

MOUND 9,052 1,025,501,450 10,894,400 4.4% $15,690 $4,363 $20,053 $19,560 $493 2.5%

ORONO 7,437 2,531,423,498 28,749,183 11.7% $41,404 $11,513 $52,917 $50,553 $2,364 4.7%

SHOREWOOD 7,307 1,517,977,665 16,691,552 6.8% $24,039 $6,684 $30,723 $29,207 $1,516 5.2%

SPRING PARK 1,669 227,113,200 2,711,561 1.1% $3,905 $1,086 $4,991 $4,728 $263 5.6%

TONKA BAY 1,475 519,003,290 5,899,254 2.4% $8,496 $2,362 $10,858 $10,665 $193 1.8%

VICTORIA 7,345 1,253,840,400 13,235,787 5.4% $19,062 $5,300 $24,362 $22,430 $1,932 8.6%

WAYZATA 3,688 1,643,114,630 21,501,877 8.8% $30,967 $8,611 $39,577 $35,954 $3,623 10.1%

WOODLAND 437 283,977,780 3,330,587 1.4% $4,797 $1,334 $6,130 $5,623 $507 9.0%

101,585 20,687,191,368 245,371,427 100.0% $255,343 $71,000 $326,343 $306,865 $19,478 6.3%

Maximum Levy Per MN statute 103B.635 (Total Taxable Market Value * .00242%):    $500,630

(Note 1) Per MN statute 103B.631, no city may pay more than 20% of the total levy.  The City of Minnetonka would pay a constant 20% of any amounts to be levied. 

Remaining cities factor for determining levy amounts is computed as: (City Net Tax Capacity / ( Total Net Tax Capacity - Minnetonka Net Tax Capacity ) ) * 80%

Total Net Tax Capacity 245,371,427

    less Minnetonka Net Tax Capacity (103,533,501)

Net Tax Capacity for remaining 13 cities 141,837,926

LAKE MINNETONKA CONSERVATION DISTRICT

2017 BUDGET AND LEVY

(Preliminary Approved)



2014 2015 2015 2016 2016 Actual 2017 Footnote #

Actual Budget Actual Budget Projected Note Budget See Appendix A

1.

a) LMCD Communities Levy 245,990 247,992 247,992 235,866 235,866 255,343

b) Use from Administration Reserve 0 0 0 17,500 64,567 K 8,525 17

c) Court Fines 62,156 55,000 33,974 55,000 47,400 47,400  

d) Licenses 114,586 115,000 107,510 115,000 112,000 112,000

e) Other Public Agencies 696 500 696 500 500 500

f) Interest 1,358 2,000 1,352 1,500 1,500 1,500

g) Other Income  1,043 2,000 1,533 2,000 2,000 1,500

425,829 422,492 393,057 427,366 463,833 426,768

2.

a) LMCD Communities Levy 94,625 94,500 94,500 71,000 71,000 71,000  

b) Other Public Agencies 51,841 30,000 53,304 54,000 18,781 A 18,781 1

c) Use from AIS & Administration Reserves 0 0 0 0 7,343 B 7,343 17

d)  Interest 0 500 492 500 500 500

146,466 125,000 148,296 125,500 97,624 97,624

3.

a) Transfers from Administration and AIS Reserves 25,000 35,000 35,000 17,500 0 15,000 17

b) Use from Equipment Replacement Reserve 0 0 0 0 0 0  

25,000 35,000 35,000 17,500 0 15,000

597,295 582,492 576,353 570,366 561,457 539,392

340,615 342,492 342,492 306,866 306,866 326,343

1.

a) Salaries 203,829 204,488 203,296 205,100 166,873 C 149,893 2

b) FICA & Medicare 15,502 15,643 15,538 15,690 12,766 D 11,467 3

c) Employer Benefit Contributions 32,397 34,085 31,562 33,948 26,749 E 25,580 4

d) ED Vacation/Sick Payout (2016 only) 0 0 0 0 14,289 F 0

251,728 254,216 250,396 254,738 220,677 186,940

2.

a) Office Lease & Storage 16,760 17,180 17,180 17,609 17,609 18,049 5

b) Professional Services 2,054 2,500 18,587 2,500 2,500 2,500 6

18,814 19,680 35,767 20,109 20,109 20,549

SUB-TOTAL ADMINISTRATION 

SUB-TOTAL AQUATIC INVASIVE SPECIES

SUB-TOTAL EQUIPMENT REPLACEMENT

SUB-TOTAL PERSONNEL SERVICES

SUB-TOTAL CONTRACTUAL SERVICES

TOTAL REVENUES

Total Levy

DISBURSEMENTS

ADMINISTRATION

Personnel Services:

2017 BUDGET DETAIL (Preliminary Approved)

Administration

Aquatic Invasive Species 

Equipment Replacement

REVENUES

Contractual Services:



2014 2015 2015 2016 2016 Actual 2017 Footnote #

Actual Budget Actual Budget Projected Note Budget See Appendix A

2017 BUDGET DETAIL (Preliminary Approved)

3.

a) Office, General Supplies 4,077 4,500 3,720 4,500 4,500 4,500

b) Telephone 2,621 2,460 2,627 2,640 2,640 2,640  

c) Website, Internet, & E-mail 228 300 421 300 421 450

d) Postage 4,968 5,000 4,249 5,000 5,000 5,000

e) Printing, Publications, Advertising 11,575 11,000 6,076 12,000 8,800 9,000 6

f) Maintenance, Office Equipment 917 1,100 786 1,100 1,100 1,100

g) Subscriptions, Memberships (primarily League of MN Cities) 1,677 1,700 1,775 1,768 1,825 1,900

h) Insurance, Bonds 6,591 7,250 7,489 7,250 7,250 7,500 8

i) Public Information, Legal Notices 1,435 1,000 1,183 1,000 1,250 1,250

j) Meeting Expenses 5,786 4,260 4,432 4,500 4,500 4,750

k) Media (Cable & Internet) 0 3,300 2,780 3,600 2,400 2,400 9

l) Mileage 1,514 2000 1206 2000 2000 2000

m) Employee Training 50 400 279 400 400 400

41,439 44,270 37,023 46,058 42,086 42,890

4.

a) Furniture & Equipment 478 1,500 204 1,500 1,500 1,500

b) Computer Software & Hardware 1,583 2,000 1,004 2,000 2,000 2,000 10

2,061 3,500 1,208 3,500 3,500 3,500

5.

a) Legal Services 40,744 32,000 46,582 32,000 53,000 G 54,000 11

b) Prosecution Services 29,738 45,000 42,337 45,000 45,000 45,000 12

c) Hennepin County Room & Board 812 1,000 279 1,000 1,000 1,000

71,294 78,000 89,198 78,000 99,000 100,000

6.

a) Audit 7,250 7,486 7,450 7,711 7,711 7,950

b) Information Technology 303 750 0 750 750 750

7,553 8,236 7,450 8,461 8,461 8,700

7. 11,940 4,590 2,239 4,500 0 H 0  

8. 0 0 0 0 0 0  

9. 25,000 0 0 2,500 0 0  

10. 3,073 10,000 3,487 12,000 70,000 J 64,189 13

432,902 422,492 426,768 429,866 463,833 426,768

Administration Reserve Fund

Equipment Replacement Fund

Contingency

 TOTAL ADMINISTRATION

Legal:

Contract Services/Studies:

Code Enforcement Program

SUB-TOTAL CAPITAL OUTLAY

SUB-TOTAL LEGAL

SUB-TOTAL CONTRACT SERVICES/STUDIES

Office & Administration:

Capital Outlay:

SUB-TOTAL OFFICE & ADMINISTRATION



2014 2015 2015 2016 2016 Actual 2017 Footnote #

Actual Budget Actual Budget Projected Note Budget See Appendix A

2017 BUDGET DETAIL (Preliminary Approved)

1. 97,496 95,000 80,718 85,500 60,062 60,062 14

2. 0 35,000 35,000 15,000 0 15,000 15

3. 0 0 0 0 0 0

4. 0 0 0 0 0 0  

5. 35,492 30,000 37,571 40,000 37,562 37,562 16

1. 0 0 0 0 0 0  

132,988 160,000 153,289 140,500 97,624 112,624

565,890 582,492 580,057 570,366 561,457 539,392

EQUIPMENT REPLACEMENT FUND

Purchase of New Mechanical Harvester

TOTAL AQUATIC INVASIVE SPECIES

TOTAL DISBURSEMENTS

Eurasian Watermilfoil (EWM) Harvesting Program

AQUATIC INVASIVE SPECIES (AIS) 

Equipment Replacement Fund 

AIS Reserve Fund

Herbicide Treatment Program

AIS Prevention & Management Programs



Other Public Agencies (Note A) The LMCD projects that it will receive a $18,781 grant from the Minnehaha Creek Watershed District for watercraft 

 inspections.  The two grants anticipated from the Minnesota Department of Natural Resources ($30,000 for mechanical 

harvesting and $4,000 for watercraft inspections) will not be funded.

Use from AIS & Administration Reserves The $17,500 planned for the Equipment Replacement Fund had been proposed to be reallocated for harvesting and 

(Note B) watercraft inspections ($2,500 from General Reserve Fund and $15,000 from AIS Reserve Fund)

and has been reduced to $7,343 (from AIS Reserves only) in order to balance the AIS program budget*

Salaries (Note C)   2016 actual projected

Current Executive Director  $67,675.49  (January through October)

Replacement Executive Director $27,070.20 (September through December)

Administrative Technician (vacant) $0.00

Administrative Assistant   $55,382.60  (includes 100 hours of overtime)

Administrative Clerk (part-time) $16,744.95 (assumes that 1,143 hours to be worked in 2016)

Seasonal Code Enforcement (part-time) $0.00

$166,873.24  

F.I.C.A. & Medicare (D) 2016 actual projected

Total Salaries  (7.65%) $12,765.80

$12,765.80

Employer Benefit Contributions (Note E) 2016 actual projected

P.E.R.A. (7.50%) $12,515.49

NCPERS Life Insurance $416.00

Medical & Dental Insurance $13,817.96

$26,749.45

NCPERS Life Insurance Medical & Dental Insurance (*)

Current Executive Director $160.00 $5,314.60

Replacement Executive Director $64.00 $2,125.84

Administrative Technician (vacant) $0.00 $0.00

Administrative Assistant $192.00 $6,377.52

Administrative Clerk (part-time) $0.00 $0.00

$416.00 $13,817.96

(*) Monthly premiums for medical & dental insurance was $531.46 ($478 for Blue Cross Blue Shield & $53.46 for Health Partners)

ED Vacation/Sick Payout (Note F) Estimated at $14,289

Legal Services (Note G) Includes additional $10,000 as we anticipate more need in 2016.

Also includes $11,000 to cover bill from LMC for EOF appeal

Code Enforcement Program (Note H) The LMCD Board has suspended this program for the 2016 boating season (enforcement to be done through complaints)

$1,255.87 $1,255.87

$12,515.49 $26,749.45

$2,030.27 $4,220.11

$0.00 $0.00

$4,153.70 $10,723.22

Lake Minnetonka Conservation District (LMCD)

2016 Actual Projected Notes

 

P.E.R.A.

$5,075.66

Totals

$10,550.26



Contingency (Note J)  2016 actual projected

Interim Executive Director $40,500.00 (18 weeks, 30 hours per week, $75 per hour)

Professional Search Firm $20,000.00 (Replacement of Executive Director position)

Temporary Staffing $6,000.00 (Temporary agency staff, where needed)

Unanticipated Expenses  $3,500.00

 $70,000.00

Reserves (Note K) Reserve needed to balance budget (need better explanation)

LMC Invoice $11,000.00

ED Vac/Sick Payout $14,289.00

Increased Legal Services $12,000.00

Search Firm $20,000.00

Shortage (Fines and Fees) $7,278.00

$64,567.00



Other Public Agencies (Footnote #1) It is anticipated that the Minnehaha Creek Watershed District (MCWD) will fund the LMCD a $18,781 grant for watercraft  

inspections.   Based solely on 2016 projected program costs.

Salaries (Footnote #2)   estimated 2017 baseline

Executive Director  $81,210.59

$0.00

Administrative Assistant/Code Enforcement   $51,937.60 (*)

Administrative Clerk (part-time) $16,744.95

Seasonal Code Enforcement (part-time) $0.00

$149,893.14 (**)

(*)  Salaries will be grossed up to pay for long-term disability insurance for full-time LMCD employees

(**) Salary adjustments & limited overtime (including F.I.C.A., medicare, & P.E.R.A.) are included in Contingency (line-item 10)  

F.I.C.A. & Medicare (Footnote #3) 2016 actual projected

Total Salaries  (7.65%) $11,466.83

$11,466.83

Employer Benefit

Contributions (Footnote #4)  

P.E.R.A. (7.50%) $11,241.99

NCPERS Life Insurance $384.00

Medical & Dental Insurance (*) $13,953.56

$25,579.55

(*) Medical & dental insurance provided for Executive Director & Administrative Assistant positions- assumes a 10% increase for medical insurance & 4% increase for dental 

insurance.

Office Lease & Storage (Footnote #5) Monthly Rate Months

 $1,494.78 9 $13,453.02

$1,532.15 3 $4,596.45

$18,049.47

Professional Services (Footnote #6)

Contracted Payroll & Taxes $2,000.00

Contracted Bookkeeping Consulting $500.00

$2,500.00

Printing, Publications, & Advertising $9,000 has been budgeted for one LMCD Newsletter, the re-printing of the Summer and Winter Rules brochures,    

(Footnote #7)

Insurance, Bonds (Footnote #8)  $7,500 has been budgeted with the League of Minnesota Cities for insurance for the LMCD. 

Administrative Technician

Lake Minnetonka Conservation District (LMCD)

and other LMCD literature.

 

 

Preliminary Approved 2017 LMCD Budget

 

(*)

Appendix A 



Media (Cable & Internet) $2,400 has been budgeted to contract with a producer and on-line viewing of LMCD Board Meetings (one per month).

(Footnote #9)  

Computer Software & Hardware 

(Footnote #10)  

Legal Services (Footnote #11) $54,000 has been budgeted for legal services (taking into consideration changes to the civil attorney and Executive  

Director positions in 2016).   ($12,000 of this was added to begin recodification efforts)

Prosecution Services (Footnote #12) $45,000 has been budgeted for prosecution services.  These expenses will be offset by projected $45,000 of court fines.  

EWM Harvesting Program (Footnote #13) A mechanical harvesting program is planned from mid June through mid August to manage EWM on Lake

Minnetonka.  Harvesting priorities will be based on impediments to public navigation to the open water due to EWM

growth (in particular matted areas).  All areas that dictate the need for harvesting will be done at least once, with high

growth areas being harvested twice (time permitting).  Further details of the proposed project (including a more detailed

budget) will be provided in the spring of 2017.

Equipment Replacement Fund $15,000 has been budgeted for replacement of depreciated EWM Harvesting Program (transfer from the AIS Reserve

(Footnote #14) Fund).

AIS Prevention & Management

Programs (Footnote #15)

Contingency (Footnote #16)

Projected salary actions/fica/pera $9,500.00

Contracted Temporary Staffing (as needed) $54,689.00

$64,189.00

Reserves (Footnote #17)

Admin Reserve $8,525.00

AIS Reserve $7,343.00

$15,868.00

particular the MCWD as a funding partner and the Three Rivers Park District for professional services).  

$37,562 has been budgeted for unspecified AIS management and prevention programs (most likely watercraft  

$2,000 has been budgeted for information technology, hardware, and software updates.  

inspections).  Similar to past years, the LMCD will seek partnerships for the implementation of these projects (in   



RESERVE FUND ANALYSIS: Administration AIS  Equipment Replacement Fund

2016

12/31/15 Balance  $160,925 $139,346  $102,800

Reserve Fund Contribution $0 $0  $0

Transfer from Reserve Fund ($64,567) ($7,343)  $0

Transfer to Equip. Repl. Fund $0 $0  $0

Projected 12/31/15 Balance $96,358 $132,003 $102,800

Administration AIS Equipment Replacement Fund

2017

Projected 12/31/16 Balance $96,358 $132,003 $102,800

Reserve Fund Contribution $0 $0 $0

Transfer from Reserve Fund ($8,525) ($7,343) $0

Transfer to Equip. Repl. Fund $0 ($15,000) $15,000

Projected 12/31/17 Balance $87,833 $109,660 $117,800

Projected % of 2016 Annual Budget 20.4% 78.0%

 



  www.greenwoodmn.com

	

	

Agenda Number: 8G 

Agenda Date: 06-01-16 

Prepared by Deb Kind 
 

 
Agenda Item: Consider Res 26-16, 2017-2020 Deephaven-Greenwood Service Contract 
 
Summary:	Greenwood's current contract with Deephaven expires at the end of 2016. The contract includes city hall / 
equipment rental, clerk services, zoning coordinator services, public works services, and building permit processing. The 
administrative committee (Councilman Fletcher and Mayor Kind) had two meetings with Deephaven City Administrator 
Dana Young to discuss the new contract. Mayor Kind also met with Mayor Skrede and Dana in a follow-up meeting.  
 
Copies of the May 10, 2016 cover letter from Dana, the 2017-2020 contract, and resolution 26-26 are included in the hard 
copy of the full council packet and in the electronic packet available at www.greenwoodmn.com. 
 
The 2017-2020 contract content is the same as in the previous contract, except for the following changes: 
 

1. Changed from a 3-year contract to a 4-year contract to correspond with the new mayoral term.  
 

2. Changed the clerk fees from a set dollar amount with a 3% annual increases to "actual" to match the other hourly 
fees on the schedule.  

 

3. Changed the number of clerk hours from 20 to 18 hours per week to acknowledge the "clerk" work done by Mayor 
Kind. The contract includes language stating that the contract will need to be revisited if Mayor Kind is not re-
elected.  

 
Council Action: Action required. Possible motions … 

 
1. I move the council approves the Deephaven-Greenwood 2017-2020 Service Contract Agreement as presented 

and authorizes the mayor and city clerk to sign the agreement. 
 

2. Other motion ???		



































CITY OF GREENWOOD & CITY OF DEEPHAVEN 
LETTER OF UNDERSTANDING 

FOR YEARS 2017 - 2020 
 

RESOLUTION NO. 26-16 
 

 
1. Public Works Services 

a) The City of Deephaven will provide public works services to the City of Greenwood that 
includes street, sign, park, bike trail, tennis court and dock maintenance; snow removal and 
ice control; storm sewer maintenance; and sewer maintenance.   

b) All public works services provided to Greenwood will be charged at an hourly labor and vehicle 
rate as described in Exhibit A.    

c) Greenwood’s share of the costs of parts, equipment, materials and supplies shall be billed at 
110% of the cost to Deephaven for all material and supplies purchased by Deephaven to 
perform the above described services within Greenwood or for its benefit. 

d) All payments for public works services will be paid monthly to the City of Deephaven. 
 
2. Building Inspection Services 

a) Building Permit Fees, plan check fees and other fees collected in connection with the issuance 
of building permits will be divided between the parties 69%-31%, with 69% payable to 
Deephaven and 31% payable to Greenwood.   

b) All applicable building permit fees will be paid monthly to the City of Deephaven.  
 
3. Zoning Coordinator 

a) The Zoning Coordinator will be a full-service provider for zoning matters and shoreline 
ordinance compliance as described in Exhibit C and will be billed to Greenwood at an hourly 
rate described in Exhibit A. 

b) All payments for Zoning Coordinator Services will be paid monthly to the City of Deephaven. 
 
4. Monthly Rental Charge 

a) The City of Deephaven shall lease to the City of Greenwood the appropriate office and storage  
space within Deephaven City Hall at a monthly rate described in Exhibit A. 

b) In addition to the Monthly Rental Charge, the City of Greenwood shall pay a Monthly Meeting  
Charge at a cost described in Exhibit A for providing space to conduct two public meetings per 
month for the Greenwood City Council and the Greenwood Planning Commission.  There will 
be no fee charged for any additional Greenwood meetings. 

 
5. Monthly Equipment Rental Charge 

a) The City of Deephaven shall provide the City of Greenwood with the use of office equipment to 
conduct business.  The City of Greenwood will pay to the City of Deephaven an Equipment 
Rental Charge at a monthly cost described in Exhibit A and detailed in Exhibit E. 

b) The City of Greenwood may elect to purchase such office equipment as it deems necessary to 
own outright.  The appropriate adjustments will be made to the Monthly Equipment Usage 
Charge for each piece of equipment that Greenwood decides to purchase rather than rent. 

 
6. Clerical Services 

The City of Deephaven shall provide clerical services to the City of Greenwood according to the 
Clerical Services described in Exhibit B.  All clerical services provided to Greenwood will be based 
on an 18 hour work week charged at the hourly rate described in Exhibit A.  All payments for 
clerical will be paid monthly to the City of Deephaven. 
   
 



7. Joint Board 
The Joint Board will consist of the Mayors from each City.  The Joint Board will meet as needed to 
clarify the scope of services provided by the City of Deephaven. 

 
8. Terms of Agreement  

The term of this agreement is four years effective on January 1, 2017 and expiring on December 
31, 2020.  Either party may terminate or re-negotiate the terms of this agreement upon giving the 
other party a 180-day notice. 

 
9. Deephaven/Greenwood Contract 

The Mayor and City Clerk of the Cities of Deephaven and Greenwood are hereby authorized to 
enter into a mutually agreeable contract that more specifically describes the terms and conditions 
of this agreement upon the adoption of the Joint Resolutions. 
 

Adopted by the Council of the City of Greenwood this 1st day of June, 2016 and by the Council 
of the City of Deephaven this 20th day of June, 2016. 
 
 
 
 
CITY OF GREENWOOD         CITY OF DEEPHAVEN 
 
_______________________________    _____________________________ 
Debra J. Kind, Mayor                                                    Paul A. Skrede, Mayor 
 
 
Attest:        Attest: 
 
_                                                _                                    _                                                     _ 
Dana Young, City Clerk                  Dana Young, City Administrator 
 
 



  www.greenwoodmn.com

	

	

Agenda Number: 10A-E 

 

 
 
 

Agenda Item: Council Reports 
 
Summary: This is an opportunity for each council member to present updates and get input regarding various council 
assignments and projects.  
 
Related documents are included in the hard copy of the full council packet and in the electronic version of the packet 
available at www.greenwoodmn.com.  
 
Council Action: None required.  

 



Variance with Variance with Bulk Email
Month 2015 2016 Prior Month Prior Year List
January 4,123 6,382 -360 2,259 156
February 3,928 7,209 827 3,282 156
March 3,732 6,741 -468 3,009 156
April 5,058 7,351 610 2,293 156
May 5,753 7,603 252 1,850 158
June 6,448 -7,603 -6,448
July 5,481 0 -5,481
August 5,249 0 -5,249
September 9,532 0 -9,532
October 6,969 0 -6,969
November 6,362 0 -6,362
December 6,742 0 -6,742

AVERAGE 5,781 7,057

Gray indicates estimated numbers (average of month prior and month after)

POPULATION: 693
EMAIL ADDRESSES % OF POPULATION: 22.93%

Population source: www.metrocouncil.org, Data & Maps, Download Data, Population and Household Estimates
Population figure updated: 05-20-16

0 

2,000 

4,000 

6,000 

8,000 

10,000 

12,000 

City	of	Greenwood	
Website	Total	Hits	

2015 

2016 



Content Tools Data Center Site Management Security

Welcome, Debra Kind | Hide QuickTips | Help | Logout

Live Site

Get Report

Site Statistics
Use this reporting tool to see your site statistics for your public site for this month or the
previous month. Statistics for the Administration (or "admin") side of your site are not
included in this report. Additionally, visits you make to your own site while administering it
are not included in these statistics. All data collected before the previous month has been
purged from our system and is not available for use; therefore, we recommend printing
this report each month for your records.

The first report - Page Views by Section - shows total page views for each section. The
second report - Unique Visitors by Section - shows the total page views for each section
without the return visitors (showing only views from unique IP addresses). For example, if
you browse to a page today, and then browse to that same page tomorrow, your viewing
of that page would only be counted once in the unique (second) report. 

Each report lists sections in page view order (highest number of page views first) and only
lists sections that have had traffic within the reporting period. It does not list those
sections without traffic.

Begin Date 4/15/2016

End Date 5/15/2016

Report Name Page Views (Default)

Page Views by Section

Section Page Views Percent of Total
Default Home Page 2454 32.28%

Agendas, Minutes & Meeting Packets 760 10%

RFPs & Bids 408 5.37%

Planning Commission 381 5.01%

Assessments & Taxes 311 4.09%

City Departments 262 3.45%

Budget & Finances 249 3.28%

Mayor & City Council 192 2.53%

Spring Clean-Up Day 181 2.38%

Code Book 171 2.25%

Garbage & Recycling 170 2.24%

Photo Gallery 154 2.03%

Welcome to Greenwood 153 2.01%

Forms, Permits & Licenses 148 1.95%

City Newsletters 108 1.42%

Watercraft Spaces 104 1.37%

Lake Minnetonka 93 1.22%

Comp Plan & Maps 92 1.21%

Crime Alerts 83 1.09%

St. Alban's Bay Lake Improvement District 73 0.96%

Links 70 0.92%

Emergency Preparedness 69 0.91%

Email Sign-Up 69 0.91%

Meetings 68 0.89%

Elections & Voting 68 0.89%

The reports offered in
your Site Statistics tool
only track activity on
the public side of your
site.

In each report, a section
named "Default" and a
section named "Home"
may appear.

A page view gets
attributed to "Default"
when a visitor to your
site types your URL into
his or her Web browser. 
In most cases, the
"Default" section is your
Home Page.

A page view gets
attributed to "Home"
each time a visitor clicks
the "Home" button on
your Web site.

In the Page View
(Default) report, only
sections with Web traffic
are reported and they
are listed in page view
order.

In the Page View by
Section report, sections
are listed in the order
they appear in the
navigation menu and
are reported regardless
of their traffic level.

In the Referrers report,
it is important to
remember that your
own site acts like a
referrer.  So, don't be
surprised if you see your
own Web address(es)
listed -- this tracks the
number of times people
went from one part of
your site to another.

Quick Tips

https://greenwoodmn.govoffice2.com/admin/index.asp?ADMINSEC=ContentTools
https://greenwoodmn.govoffice2.com/admin/index.asp?ADMINSEC=DataCenter
https://greenwoodmn.govoffice2.com/admin/index.asp?ADMINSEC=SiteManagement
https://greenwoodmn.govoffice2.com/admin/index.asp?ADMINSEC=Security
https://greenwoodmn.govoffice2.com/admin/index.asp?ADMINSEC=SiteStatistics&BeginDate=4%2F15%2F2016&EndDate=5%2F15%2F2016&report=0
http://help.avenet.net/
https://greenwoodmn.govoffice2.com/admin/index.asp?ADMINSEC=Login&action=logout
http://www.greenwoodmn.com/?persistdesign=none
https://greenwoodmn.govoffice2.com/admin/index.asp?ADMINSEC=SiteStatistics&SEC=&BeginDate=4/15/2016&EndDate=5/15/2016&report=1
https://greenwoodmn.govoffice2.com/admin/index.asp?ADMINSEC=SiteStatistics&SEC=%7B8F3A3A9D-5458-4CB6-BB1F-AC94BB9B09DF%7D&BeginDate=4/15/2016&EndDate=5/15/2016&report=1
https://greenwoodmn.govoffice2.com/admin/index.asp?ADMINSEC=SiteStatistics&SEC=%7BB2F86E65-BD20-40B7-8A26-1B4DC4FF837A%7D&BeginDate=4/15/2016&EndDate=5/15/2016&report=1
https://greenwoodmn.govoffice2.com/admin/index.asp?ADMINSEC=SiteStatistics&SEC=%7B05D0F828-E762-44A3-BC47-B094E012C13F%7D&BeginDate=4/15/2016&EndDate=5/15/2016&report=1
https://greenwoodmn.govoffice2.com/admin/index.asp?ADMINSEC=SiteStatistics&SEC=%7B937BBE21-87E7-4815-95EF-9E4DBD883B56%7D&BeginDate=4/15/2016&EndDate=5/15/2016&report=1
https://greenwoodmn.govoffice2.com/admin/index.asp?ADMINSEC=SiteStatistics&SEC=%7B030CFE4C-5016-4145-982B-BC20CF1CE9B0%7D&BeginDate=4/15/2016&EndDate=5/15/2016&report=1
https://greenwoodmn.govoffice2.com/admin/index.asp?ADMINSEC=SiteStatistics&SEC=%7BC4ED0441-B19F-4C17-8FAB-B27178681446%7D&BeginDate=4/15/2016&EndDate=5/15/2016&report=1
https://greenwoodmn.govoffice2.com/admin/index.asp?ADMINSEC=SiteStatistics&SEC=%7BFF4DABAE-9793-4C75-9595-89E365126209%7D&BeginDate=4/15/2016&EndDate=5/15/2016&report=1
https://greenwoodmn.govoffice2.com/admin/index.asp?ADMINSEC=SiteStatistics&SEC=%7BC0861CA3-9AD6-44B8-83A0-3830DDD789F7%7D&BeginDate=4/15/2016&EndDate=5/15/2016&report=1
https://greenwoodmn.govoffice2.com/admin/index.asp?ADMINSEC=SiteStatistics&SEC=%7B41336A06-DF03-426F-BAC8-B478696E7ABE%7D&BeginDate=4/15/2016&EndDate=5/15/2016&report=1
https://greenwoodmn.govoffice2.com/admin/index.asp?ADMINSEC=SiteStatistics&SEC=%7BF7C1F295-9D1A-47F1-B520-906AEA4C1EF7%7D&BeginDate=4/15/2016&EndDate=5/15/2016&report=1
https://greenwoodmn.govoffice2.com/admin/index.asp?ADMINSEC=SiteStatistics&SEC=%7B5AF5BE04-E22D-498B-8DF0-E4E97E512089%7D&BeginDate=4/15/2016&EndDate=5/15/2016&report=1
https://greenwoodmn.govoffice2.com/admin/index.asp?ADMINSEC=SiteStatistics&SEC=%7BE8F16C03-E9EC-40F7-A931-F5A45B19576E%7D&BeginDate=4/15/2016&EndDate=5/15/2016&report=1
https://greenwoodmn.govoffice2.com/admin/index.asp?ADMINSEC=SiteStatistics&SEC=%7BC446C0E6-C85B-4D6B-9F2A-45390CDE8A69%7D&BeginDate=4/15/2016&EndDate=5/15/2016&report=1
https://greenwoodmn.govoffice2.com/admin/index.asp?ADMINSEC=SiteStatistics&SEC=%7B09C69529-46DA-45C3-9D5A-F642FC7ACBC9%7D&BeginDate=4/15/2016&EndDate=5/15/2016&report=1
https://greenwoodmn.govoffice2.com/admin/index.asp?ADMINSEC=SiteStatistics&SEC=%7B08153459-A93B-48DE-A049-7A47AB3B7C7D%7D&BeginDate=4/15/2016&EndDate=5/15/2016&report=1
https://greenwoodmn.govoffice2.com/admin/index.asp?ADMINSEC=SiteStatistics&SEC=%7BE04A1A51-136D-44C1-BD41-8FC4E61A774B%7D&BeginDate=4/15/2016&EndDate=5/15/2016&report=1
https://greenwoodmn.govoffice2.com/admin/index.asp?ADMINSEC=SiteStatistics&SEC=%7BEC7D78ED-9B90-469C-87DA-F45E8296634D%7D&BeginDate=4/15/2016&EndDate=5/15/2016&report=1
https://greenwoodmn.govoffice2.com/admin/index.asp?ADMINSEC=SiteStatistics&SEC=%7B7D523E15-7556-4375-B814-673BCF885086%7D&BeginDate=4/15/2016&EndDate=5/15/2016&report=1
https://greenwoodmn.govoffice2.com/admin/index.asp?ADMINSEC=SiteStatistics&SEC=%7B29DBC80E-711D-420C-8E7E-88949C90F651%7D&BeginDate=4/15/2016&EndDate=5/15/2016&report=1
https://greenwoodmn.govoffice2.com/admin/index.asp?ADMINSEC=SiteStatistics&SEC=%7B86561FCE-AB6E-4655-9D85-28D89FDF4185%7D&BeginDate=4/15/2016&EndDate=5/15/2016&report=1
https://greenwoodmn.govoffice2.com/admin/index.asp?ADMINSEC=SiteStatistics&SEC=%7B2EE6F67F-9BE4-4076-8A33-F589B91B72C4%7D&BeginDate=4/15/2016&EndDate=5/15/2016&report=1
https://greenwoodmn.govoffice2.com/admin/index.asp?ADMINSEC=SiteStatistics&SEC=%7B45BFFFAD-A74F-4A5C-881D-1DDEB689390B%7D&BeginDate=4/15/2016&EndDate=5/15/2016&report=1
https://greenwoodmn.govoffice2.com/admin/index.asp?ADMINSEC=SiteStatistics&SEC=%7B12A653D6-4378-49A7-A3FC-97A7073E27C9%7D&BeginDate=4/15/2016&EndDate=5/15/2016&report=1
https://greenwoodmn.govoffice2.com/admin/index.asp?ADMINSEC=SiteStatistics&SEC=%7B5FD2DB20-C5E6-4466-BB1F-5137A3A383FA%7D&BeginDate=4/15/2016&EndDate=5/15/2016&report=1
https://greenwoodmn.govoffice2.com/admin/index.asp?ADMINSEC=SiteStatistics&BeginDate=4%2F15%2F2016&EndDate=5%2F15%2F2016&report=0#


Parks, Trails & Watercraft Amenities 67 0.88%

Old Log Events 61 0.8%

Animal Services 60 0.79%

Meetings on TV 59 0.78%

Tree Ordinance 59 0.78%

Swiffers NOT Flushable 59 0.78%

Community Surveys 54 0.71%

Tour de Tonka 53 0.7%

Search Results 52 0.68%

Well Water 52 0.68%

Southshore Center 45 0.59%

Smoke Testing 34 0.45%

--- 10 0.13%

News & Events 7 0.09%

Ordinances & Comprehensive Plan 6 0.08%

Recreation & Amenities 6 0.08%

Utilities, Garbage & Recycling 5 0.07%

Finances, RFPs, Taxes & Assessments 5 0.07%

Public Safety 4 0.05%

Agendas, Minutes & Meetings 4 0.05%

Misc 4 0.05%

Luck O' the Lake 3 0.04%

Unsubscribe 2 0.03%

July 4th 1 0.01%

TOTAL 7603 100%

Unique IPs by Section

Section Unique IPs Percent of Total IPs
Default Home Page 891 24.93%

Agendas, Minutes & Meeting Packets 225 6.3%

City Departments 166 4.64%

Spring Clean-Up Day 126 3.53%

Planning Commission 124 3.47%

Assessments & Taxes 119 3.33%

Photo Gallery 108 3.02%

Welcome to Greenwood 102 2.85%

Mayor & City Council 102 2.85%

Garbage & Recycling 97 2.71%

Code Book 88 2.46%

Budget & Finances 83 2.32%

City Newsletters 82 2.29%

Watercraft Spaces 78 2.18%

Forms, Permits & Licenses 75 2.1%

Lake Minnetonka 66 1.85%

Comp Plan & Maps 63 1.76%

St. Alban's Bay Lake Improvement District 62 1.73%

Crime Alerts 60 1.68%

Parks, Trails & Watercraft Amenities 56 1.57%

Elections & Voting 56 1.57%

Emergency Preparedness 53 1.48%

Swiffers NOT Flushable 51 1.43%

Animal Services 50 1.4%

Tree Ordinance 49 1.37%

Links 49 1.37%

RFPs & Bids 46 1.29%

Email Sign-Up 46 1.29%

Meetings 45 1.26%

Well Water 45 1.26%

https://greenwoodmn.govoffice2.com/admin/index.asp?ADMINSEC=SiteStatistics&SEC=%7B184AC25F-91BE-4826-A9F5-B388A80DC23E%7D&BeginDate=4/15/2016&EndDate=5/15/2016&report=1
https://greenwoodmn.govoffice2.com/admin/index.asp?ADMINSEC=SiteStatistics&SEC=%7BB4737361-6BA3-43DC-893C-D8AE06A935AA%7D&BeginDate=4/15/2016&EndDate=5/15/2016&report=1
https://greenwoodmn.govoffice2.com/admin/index.asp?ADMINSEC=SiteStatistics&SEC=%7BE2CCCFEF-5547-4416-81A6-0ACBB34571E6%7D&BeginDate=4/15/2016&EndDate=5/15/2016&report=1
https://greenwoodmn.govoffice2.com/admin/index.asp?ADMINSEC=SiteStatistics&SEC=%7BF458B3B5-588F-49DF-ACE1-F64600152C67%7D&BeginDate=4/15/2016&EndDate=5/15/2016&report=1
https://greenwoodmn.govoffice2.com/admin/index.asp?ADMINSEC=SiteStatistics&SEC=%7B03D16CDF-8EB7-45AC-B972-E463B037CF8B%7D&BeginDate=4/15/2016&EndDate=5/15/2016&report=1
https://greenwoodmn.govoffice2.com/admin/index.asp?ADMINSEC=SiteStatistics&SEC=%7BA06C3108-5700-4A55-A324-1E2C07C9DC78%7D&BeginDate=4/15/2016&EndDate=5/15/2016&report=1
https://greenwoodmn.govoffice2.com/admin/index.asp?ADMINSEC=SiteStatistics&SEC=%7B5EFC3CE3-C0E6-4AFE-BC8B-FD662DC0B6DE%7D&BeginDate=4/15/2016&EndDate=5/15/2016&report=1
https://greenwoodmn.govoffice2.com/admin/index.asp?ADMINSEC=SiteStatistics&SEC=%7B81865F8A-E58F-4546-80DA-616E969899AF%7D&BeginDate=4/15/2016&EndDate=5/15/2016&report=1
https://greenwoodmn.govoffice2.com/admin/index.asp?ADMINSEC=SiteStatistics&SEC=%7B6428E068-96A6-40C7-9082-13636C643E44%7D&BeginDate=4/15/2016&EndDate=5/15/2016&report=1
https://greenwoodmn.govoffice2.com/admin/index.asp?ADMINSEC=SiteStatistics&SEC=%7B8A0FD9DB-EF26-4B80-AB4F-C79C6F905931%7D&BeginDate=4/15/2016&EndDate=5/15/2016&report=1
https://greenwoodmn.govoffice2.com/admin/index.asp?ADMINSEC=SiteStatistics&SEC=%7BE4E6E072-F7DA-4CB1-A638-8915989F8078%7D&BeginDate=4/15/2016&EndDate=5/15/2016&report=1
https://greenwoodmn.govoffice2.com/admin/index.asp?ADMINSEC=SiteStatistics&SEC=%7B92C503B2-495E-4AB9-88DC-2432B12AC82B%7D&BeginDate=4/15/2016&EndDate=5/15/2016&report=1
https://greenwoodmn.govoffice2.com/admin/index.asp?ADMINSEC=SiteStatistics&SEC=%7BFBA50B9F-9AF7-4CC6-9D2D-09D56A461712%7D&BeginDate=4/15/2016&EndDate=5/15/2016&report=1
https://greenwoodmn.govoffice2.com/admin/index.asp?ADMINSEC=SiteStatistics&SEC=%7BDC72D100-6B66-4675-AAD3-BCEA56CADF38%7D&BeginDate=4/15/2016&EndDate=5/15/2016&report=1
https://greenwoodmn.govoffice2.com/admin/index.asp?ADMINSEC=SiteStatistics&SEC=%7B4D52A888-DFF5-4034-9B42-884488848C33%7D&BeginDate=4/15/2016&EndDate=5/15/2016&report=1
https://greenwoodmn.govoffice2.com/admin/index.asp?ADMINSEC=SiteStatistics&SEC=%7BE36FF7B9-855A-4B43-A3D3-268F500FEA36%7D&BeginDate=4/15/2016&EndDate=5/15/2016&report=1
https://greenwoodmn.govoffice2.com/admin/index.asp?ADMINSEC=SiteStatistics&SEC=%7BD3D9ABB0-CC92-4C54-89F3-D3C8FC9DACA8%7D&BeginDate=4/15/2016&EndDate=5/15/2016&report=1
https://greenwoodmn.govoffice2.com/admin/index.asp?ADMINSEC=SiteStatistics&SEC=%7B8C357980-B476-4C47-A644-4438BBABA5FA%7D&BeginDate=4/15/2016&EndDate=5/15/2016&report=1
https://greenwoodmn.govoffice2.com/admin/index.asp?ADMINSEC=SiteStatistics&SEC=%7BD30E5385-2765-4B89-A039-4CEF2F1E787B%7D&BeginDate=4/15/2016&EndDate=5/15/2016&report=1
https://greenwoodmn.govoffice2.com/admin/index.asp?ADMINSEC=SiteStatistics&SEC=%7B3BFA3AB3-AA76-4A00-8754-141DBE33C293%7D&BeginDate=4/15/2016&EndDate=5/15/2016&report=1
https://greenwoodmn.govoffice2.com/admin/index.asp?ADMINSEC=SiteStatistics&SEC=%7B41A0CC44-0712-4EFB-9E13-5CF1BEBFAC19%7D&BeginDate=4/15/2016&EndDate=5/15/2016&report=1
https://greenwoodmn.govoffice2.com/admin/index.asp?ADMINSEC=SiteStatistics&SEC=%7B54847F9E-6D9F-405E-B61A-B242A5B61F4B%7D&BeginDate=4/15/2016&EndDate=5/15/2016&report=1
https://greenwoodmn.govoffice2.com/admin/index.asp?ADMINSEC=SiteStatistics&SEC=%7BA8FAE50E-D745-414D-8707-F9F9AAD99E95%7D&BeginDate=4/15/2016&EndDate=5/15/2016&report=1
https://greenwoodmn.govoffice2.com/admin/index.asp?ADMINSEC=SiteStatistics&SEC=%7B07F329B3-E4DB-4917-ABEE-96B4435790CB%7D&BeginDate=4/15/2016&EndDate=5/15/2016&report=1


Generate Download File (.csv) for the current report: Generate and Download

Old Log Events 45 1.26%

Tour de Tonka 44 1.23%

Meetings on TV 43 1.2%

Southshore Center 42 1.18%

Community Surveys 41 1.15%

Smoke Testing 30 0.84%

Search Results 28 0.78%

--- 8 0.22%

Ordinances & Comprehensive Plan 4 0.11%

News & Events 4 0.11%

Utilities, Garbage & Recycling 4 0.11%

Luck O' the Lake 3 0.08%

Recreation & Amenities 3 0.08%

Misc 3 0.08%

Agendas, Minutes & Meetings 2 0.06%

Public Safety 2 0.06%

Finances, RFPs, Taxes & Assessments 2 0.06%

Unsubscribe 2 0.06%

July 4th 1 0.03%

TOTAL 3574 100%

Done

https://greenwoodmn.govoffice2.com/admin/index.asp?ADMINSEC=SiteManagement


  www.greenwoodmn.com

	

	

Agenda Number: FYI 

 

 
 
 

Agenda Item: FYI Items in Council Packet 
  
Summary: FYI items typically include planning commission minutes and other items of interest to the council. When the 
agenda is approved at the beginning of the meeting, any council member may request to move an FYI item to the regular 
agenda for further discussion. Moved items will be placed under Other Business on the agenda.  
 
FYI documents are included in the hard copy of the full council packet and in the electronic version of the packet available 
at www.greenwoodmn.com.  
  
Council Action: No council action is needed for FYI items. 



Randy's Environmental Services
2016 Single Sort Recycling Report

Ja
nu

ar
y

Fe
br

ua
ry

M
ar

ch

A
pr

il

M
ay

Ju
ne

Ju
ly

A
ug

us
t

Se
pt

em
be

r

O
ct

ob
er

N
ov

em
be

r

D
ec

em
be

r

To
ta

l t
o 

D
at

e

Av
er

ag
e 

to
 D

at
e

City of Greenwood
Recycling

Recycling Participation % 85.48% 84.52% 85.81% 85.48% 4

Actual Stops Collected 1,060 1,048 1,330 1,060 4,498 1,125 4

Possible Stops for Collection
310 per pick up (weekly) 1,240 1,240 1,550 1,240 5,270 1,318 4

Pounds Per Set Out 17.2 17.0 16.7 18.3

Aluminum 0.19 0.19 0.23 0.20 0.8 0.2 4
Corrugated 1.78 1.74 2.17 1.90 7.6 1.9 4

Glass 1.97 1.93 2.41 2.10 8.4 2.1 4
Mixed Paper 3.31 3.24 4.05 3.53 14.1 3.5 4

Plastics 0.76 0.74 0.92 0.80 3.2 0.8 4
Steel/Tin 0.19 0.19 0.24 0.21 0.8 0.2 4

Total Recycling Tonnage 8.20 8.03 10.02 8.74 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 35.0 2.9 12
Residue 0.90 0.86 1.09 0.94 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 3.8

Total Tonnage Picked Up 9.10 8.89 11.11 9.68 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 38.8 2.9 12



GREENWOOD PLANNING COMMISSION 
WEDNESDAY, MAY 18, 2016 

7:00 P.M. 

 1 

  
1. CALL TO ORDER/ROLL CALL 
 
Chairman Lucking called the meeting to order at 7:03 p.m. 
 
Members Present: Chairman Pat Lucking, Commissioners Lake Bechtell, Kristi Conrad, 

Douglas Reeder, and Fiona Sayer.  
 
Others Present: Council Liaison Bill Cook, and Zoning Administrator Dale Cooney. 

 
2. MINUTES – April 20, 2016 
 
Commissioner Bechtell moved to approve the minutes of April 20, 2016 as presented. 
Commissioner Conrad seconded the motion. Motion carried 5-0.  
 
3. PUBLIC HEARINGS 
 
3a. Consider the variance request of Damian and Jennifer Novak for a side yard setback in 
order to construct a house addition at 20870 St Albans Green 
 
Chairman Lucking introduced the agenda item. He said that the applicants are seeking a variance 
from the side yard setback requirements to build an addition onto their existing house. Lucking 
said that Section 1120:15 of the Zoning Ordinance requires a minimum side yard setback of 15 
feet and that the applicants propose a side yard setback of 10 feet, 1 inch for the proposed home 
addition. 
 
Chairman Lucking opened the public hearing and asked if the applicants wanted to make any 
comments. 
 
Jennifer Novak, applicant, said that her husband works from home and that they have two young 
children. She said that the expansion will help her husband do his work from home by providing a 
sound proof room for his work. She said that the adjacent neighbors who would be impacted by 
this proposal have expressed their support. 
 
Commissioner Bechtell asked where the utilities would be relocated. David Stockdale, architect 
for the applicants, said that the utilities would be relocated to near the utility door on the garage. 
He said they would still be below grade and not very visible. 
 
Lucking asked about the location of the bedroom. Stockdale said that it was on the lower level 
and the office is on the main level. He said that the lower level is grade level since the property is 
slab-on-grade construction. 
 
Stockdale said that the hardcover will actually be reduced since the retaining walls are going 
away. Lucking said that retaining walls are not actually counted as hardcover. 
 
Chairman Lucking closed the public hearing. 
 
Conrad said that, even though it is not structural, the space for the proposed addition is already 
being utilized as a porch, patio area. 
 
Conrad asked if the variance could be negated if the house is torn town. Lucking said that 
typically a footprint is grandfathered in. Cook said that the footprint could be used for negotiating. 
 
Cook asked if the Novak’s were the original owners. Stockdale said that they were the third 
owners and had owned the house about 4 years. Cook said that this was important since if they 



GREENWOOD PLANNING COMMISSION 
WEDNESDAY, MAY 18, 2016 

7:00 P.M. 

 2 

had built the house and then requested a variance for a bigger house that would be a problematic 
scenario under which to grant a variance.  
 
Cook said that the hardcover calculations would need to be cleaned up. He said that there are 
somethings that need to be excluded from the calculations including the landscaping, and 
possibly part of the patio area. 
 
Lucking entertained a motion to approve. 
 
Motion by Bechtell to approve the variance request as proposed with the condition that the 
hardcover calculations be revised to be more accurate. Motion was seconded by Reeder. Motion 
carried 5-0. 
 
4. NEW BUSINESS 

 
5. LIAISON REPORT 
 
Cook said that he wanted to thank the planning commission for the work they do. He said that the 
outcome on the conversation on the future of the planning commission will lead to more training 
for the planning commissioners. He said that a lot of the past planning commissioners had to 
learn at the meetings and were not provided training. He said that he was never given any 
training on the planning commission. 
 
Cook said that the city attorney and the zoning coordinator will be at the meetings at the 
discretion of Chairman Lucking. Lucking said that the zoning coordinator takes meeting minutes 
so would be expected to attend more regularly. 
 
Lucking said that planning commission meetings would not be held unless there were planning 
applications that needed to be heard. He said that meeting would not be held to simply review an 
ordinance unless something else was already on the agenda.  
 
Cook discussed his perspective on the variance request that came before the planning 
commission. He said that, at some level, all of these requests are “wants” and not “needs” and 
that the planning commission should continue to dialogue on these issues. He said that while it is 
important to review the applications on a case-by-case basis, the more variances that are 
approved, the more difficult it is to do something different in the future. 
 
Cook said that he would not have supported tonight’s variance if the applicants had been the 
original owners of the home and had built the home. He said that a variance should be due to 
something unique to the property and not created by the landowner. Cook said that he felt that if 
the owners had built the home, they would have created the situation for which they were seeking 
relief. 
 
6. ADJOURN 
 
Motion by Commissioner Conrad to adjourn the meeting. Commissioner Bechtell seconded the 
motion. Motion carried 5-0. The meeting was adjourned at 7:42 p.m. 
 
Respectively Submitted, 
Dale Cooney - Zoning Administrator 


	2016 06-01 Agenda
	- MEMO Consent no date
	2016 04-28 LBAE Reconvene Minutes
	2016 05-04 Worksession Minutes
	2016 05-04 Minutes
	2016 05-18 Worksession Minutes
	April Cash Summary.xls
	April CD Report.xls
	May Payables Check Register
	May Payables for Council Approval
	June Payroll Check Register
	Res 21-16 Election Judges
	Res 22-16 2016 Elections Central Count
	- MEMO City Engineer
	Street Bid Results 5-24-16
	Street Bid Tab
	I & I Study Cover Letter 5-25-16
	Inflow and Infiltration Study Report
	- MEMO MSSPA Public Hearing
	- Memo Tree Ordinance
	Ord 255 Trees 05-20-16 Draft
	Res 23-16 Summary of Ord 255 TMF rev
	- MEMO 20870 St Albans Green Variance
	20870 St Albans attachments2
	20870 St Albans Green addition plans
	20870 St Albans Green attachments
	20870 St Albans Green Survey
	Res 24-16 20870 St Albans Green
	- MEMO MSSPA Conduit Financing
	Piper Main Street School 2016 BPA
	Public Hearing Certification
	Timetable - MSSPA 5-13-16
	Res 25-16 Greenwood-MSSPA Issuer Bond Resolution-v2
	- MEMO Eagle Ridge Conduit Financing
	- MEMO Assessment Contract
	Hennepin Cty Greenwood Assessment Services Agreement
	EAS Contract w Greenwood
	EXHIBIT A
	EAS Bio
	EAS SAMA and AMA Cards
	- MEMO Fire Lane
	Fire Alley signage request from neighbors
	Res 2-98A re Meadville ROW
	01-06-1998 Council Meeting & Resolution

	- MEMO Weed Clean-Up Proposals
	Lakescape Estimate
	Life's A Beach Estimate
	Waterfront Restoration Estimate
	- MEMO LMCD Budget
	LMCD 2017 Draft Budget-Respective Cover Memo
	Letter to Member Cities (2017 Budget)
	LMCD 2017 Budget (Preliminary Approved)

	- MEMO Deephaven Contract
	Greenwood-Deephaven Contract 2017-2020
	Greenwood Contract Information

	Res 26-16 Greenwood-Deephaven 2017-2020 Contract
	- MEMO Council Reports no date
	2016 05-15 Web Chart.xls
	2016 05-15 Web Report
	- MEMO FYI no date
	Greenwood Recycle 2016.xlsx
	May PC Minutes 2016

	Text1: City of Greenwood,
	Text2: City of Greenwood
	Text8: 25
	Text3: 5205 Greenwood Circle
	Text9: 5/19/16
	Text4: Greenwood, MN 55331
	Text10: 5/31/16
	Text5: (952) 358-9939
	Text6: danayoung@mchsi.com
	Text11: $1,366.20
	Text12: 4,950
	Text13: 0.30
	Check Box1: Yes
	Check Box2: Off
	Check Box3: Off
	Check Box4: Yes
	Text14: $1,485
	Text15: $222.75
	Text16: $1,707.75
	Text17: 
	Text18: 
	Text19: 
	Text20: 
	Text21: 
	Text22: 
	Text23: 
	Text24: 
	Text26: 
	Text27: $35.00
	Text28: $1,707.75
	Text32: $683.10
	Text29: 2 time pull (80%)
	Text33: June (TBD)
	Text34: August (TBD)
	Text35: --------------------
	Text30: $1,366.20
	Text31: $683.10
	Text25: 
	Text36: 
	Text37: 
	Text40: 
	Text38: 
	Text39: 
	Text41: 
	Text42: 
	Text43: 
	Text44: 
	Text45: 
	Text46: 
	Text47: 
	Text48: 
	Text49: 
	Text50: 


